
  

Meeting of the  
 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 7 February 2012 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
______________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Room 71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 

Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 

Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Ann Jackson  
Vice-Chair: Councillor Rachael 
Saunders, Scrutiny Lead, Adults Health 
& Wellbeing 

 

  

Councillor Tim Archer, Scrutiny Lead, 
Chief Executive's 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Sirajul Islam, Scrutiny Lead, 
Resources 
Councillor Fozol Miah 
Councillor Zenith Rahman, Scrutiny 
Lead, Communities Leisure & Culture 
Councillor Amy Whitelock, Scrutiny 
Lead, Children Schools & Families 
Councillor Helal Uddin, Scrutiny Lead, 
Development & Renewal  
 

Councillor Judith Gardiner, (Designated Deputy 
representing Sirajul Islam, Ann Jackson, Rachael 
Saunders, Zenith Rahman, Helal Uddin and Amy 
Whitelock
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer)
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer, 
(Designated Deputy representing Ann Jackson, 
Sirajul Islam, Zenith Rahman, Helal Uddin and 
Amy Whitelock)
Councillor Harun Miah, 
(Designated Deputy representing Councillor Fozol 
Miah)
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer)
Councillor Bill Turner, (Designated 
Deputy representing Ann Jackson, Sirajul Islam, 
Zenith Rahman, Helal Uddin and Amy Whitelock) 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]. 
 

Co-opted Members:  
  

Memory Kampiyawo – (Parent Governor Representative) 

Jake Kemp – (Parent Govenor Representative) 

Rev James Olanipekun – (Parent Governor Representative) 

Canon Michael Ainsworth – (Church of England Diocese Representative) 

Mr Mushfique Uddin – (Muslim Community Representative) 

1 Vacancy – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster Representative 



 
 
 
 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services, 
 
Tel: 020 7364 4881, E-mail: antonella.burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 7 February 2012 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 14  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 10 January 2012. 
 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section One reports ‘callled in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on ………. 
 

  

5 .1 Cabinet Decision Called-in: Corporate and Commercial 
Events in Parks (CAB 061/112)   

 

15 - 26  

 To consider Cabinet Report (CAB 061/112) Corporate and 
Commercial Events in Parks which has been called-in. 
 

  

6. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

6 .1 Enterprise Strategy   
 

27 - 130  

 To comment on the draft strategy   
 
 



 
 
 
 

6 .2 Covert investigation under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000   

 

131 - 144  

 To note the quarterly monitoring report of activity under 
RIPA powers. 

  

 

7. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 

  

 (Time allocated – 5 minutes each) 
 

  

8. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated – 30 minutes). 
 

  

8 .1 Mayoral Decisions   
 

145 - 162  

 To receive a verbal update on recent Mayoral decisions 
which have been made. 
 
i Mayor’s Decision: Contract for 2012 Olympic 

Festival Live Site (Mayor's Decision 20 October 
2011, Log No. 009) - To receive for information, the 
referral of the Mayor’s executive decision: Contract 
for 2012 Olympic Festival Live Site. 

  

 
8 .2 OSC Comments on Budget Proposals   
 

  

 To further comment on the Budget proposals.   
 

9. OSC ANNUAL REVIEW PROCESS  
 

163 - 164  

 To consider a process for producing the 2011/12 Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Annual Review 
 

  

10. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

  
 

 
 



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\9\8\AI00032890\$jswdqkva.doc    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\9\8\AI00032890\$jswdqkva.doc    

iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 
interest.   

 
iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 

give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 
• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 
 

(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 
by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 
• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 

involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 
• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 

which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

��

������������	
������
���
�������
�

������������
���������
����������������������
�


���������������������������������������������
�

������������
��
�����������������������������������������������
�� ���	�

�
�!"#!$%��$!%!&'(�
�

�������������� !�"#����
$!����

�����������!�$!%��	!��&%�#�����%'
$!����
�

������������(����$%��

����������	)%*$!��%��!)���

����������	��!+����#�!(�

����������,%��)$��!$(!��

�����������(-��$�)%���"�

����������.%�!���&&���
�
�)*)+'!,��!"#!$%��$!%!&'(�
�
�%(��-�/!(*�-!0�� �� �1!�%�)�2�3%������%*�%#%�)!)�3%��
 !"%�/%(*� �� �1!�%�)�2�3%�����%*�%#%�)!)�3%��
�%3� !(%#���!��*%"��� �� �1!�%�)�2�3%������%*�%#%�)!)�3%��

�
�'-!$��).&/011)$%��$!%!&'(�
�

���������� �&�)$�2!�&��%��

�����������$�&��$(%&�

�����������!���4�!���#�

�����������!��!�/$!��

�����������!5��!�/$!��
�

�
�220/!$%��$!%!&'(�
�
�!3�&�2!�*��� �� �.%!&� �6� 7%8!�� 	%�3��%#� �
�((���)-��� 7%8!��

	%�3��%#��
$�%6��9%��)�3%:#��
���$!%��/%!)��8� �� �	%�3��%�.%!&����%���0%��.!(�%)#��
��5���;%!))�%� �� �	%�3��%�.%!&�� 	)�!)%8-����%#����%#�����-(*���

�(*!�)���
�((���)�%#�7��!��)�%#���
��)��%��
�#!5%��!�4�%%(!�� �� ��##�#)!�)�
$�%6��9%��)�3%�'�7%8!��	%�3��%#��
$�%6�

�9%��)�3%:#��
 !�"�%��&���-%� �� ���)��8� 
��*��!)%� ���%�)���� �%3%��*(%�)� ��

�%�%0!���
 �$��
$��)��� �� �.%!&� �6� 1!�"��8� 	%�3��%#�� 1�5���� �%!�(��


�((���)�%#�7��!��)�%#�!�&�
��)��%��
 !(�%�;�!"%� �� �	%�3��%� .%!&� �6� 1�5���� �%!�(�� 
�((���)�%#�

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

��

7��!��)�%#�!�&�
��)��%��
	!�!$�;!��� �� �	%�����	)�!)%8-�1����-� !�&�1%�6��(!��%��66��%���

��%���0%��.!(�%)#��
$�%6��9%��)�3%:#��
���$!%��;%��� �� �	)�!)%8��� 1�!����8��!�!8%��� 	)�!)%8��� 1�!����8��

1�!����8� �� ;���&��8� 
��)����� �%3%��*(%�)� ��
�%�%0!���

��)��%��!�;��8��� �� ��%(���!)���	%�3��%#��
�
�

��� �����	�����������������
�
�*���8�%#�6���!5#%��%�0%�%��%�%�3%&�6��(�
����������4�<�����!$=�
�

��� ��������������������������
�
�$%�6����0��8�&%��!�!)���#�0%�%�(!&%�����%#*%�)��6�!8%�&!��)%(�>=�?�
�

�����������#�!(�&%��!�%&�!�*%�#��!����)%�%#)����)$!)�$%�0!#�!�
�������)%�!�)=�
�

���������� 	!��&%�#� &%��!�%&� !� *%�#��!�� ��)%�%#)� ��� )$!)� #$%� 0!#� !� ��0%��
.!(�%)#�.�(%#���..���%!#%$��&%�=�
�

����������.%�!���&&���&%��!�%&�!�*%�#��!����)%�%#)����)$!)�$%�0!#�6��(%��-�!�
(%(5%���6��..�;�!�&=�
�

!��'����%(5%��
���������� �&�)$�2!�&��%��&%��!�%&�!�*%�#��!����)%�%#)����)$!)�
#$%�0!#�6��(%��-�!�;�!�&��%(5%���6��..=�
�

�'�*)%&��%(5%����� !(%#���!��*%"���&%��!�%&�!�*%�#��!�� ��)%�%#)� ���)$!)�
$%�0!#�)$%����%'
$!����6�1�*�!��.��
��;�!�&=�
�

3�� ����������������������
�
�$%�
$!����)4!,�!�&��)�0!#�
�
���������
�

�=� �$!)� )$%� ���%#)���)%&� (���)%#� �6� )$%� %9)�!��&��!�-� (%%)��8� �6� )$%�
�3%�3�%0� !�&� 	���)��-� 
�((�))%%� $%�&� ��� ��� 
�3%(5%�� ����� 5%�
!**��3%&� !�&� #�8�%&� 5-� )$%� 
$!��� !#� !� ����%�)� �%���&� �6� )$%�
*���%%&��8#�!�&��

�
�=� �$!)� )$%� ���%#)���)%&� (���)%#� �6� )$%� (%%)��8� �6� )$%� �3%�3�%0� !�&�

	���)��-�
�((�))%%�$%�&����@��%�%(5%�������5%�!**��3%&�!�&�#�8�%&�
5-�)$%�
$!���!#�!�����%�)��%���&��6�)$%�*���%%&��8#=�

�
�

 �� ��5���������������������������
�

����)%(#=�

Page 4



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

A�

�
�

��� ��������������������6���������6��
�
�$%�
�((�))%%����#�&%�%&� )0���!��'��� �%B�%#)#��%���&%&�!)�(���)%#�C=��!�&�
>=�=���
�
�$%�
$!���")4!,�)��3!�-�)$%���&%���6�5�#��%##�)��%�!5�%�)$%�&%��#���#��!��%&'
���)��5%�&%)%�(��%&����#%��)�3%�-=���
�
�$%�!8%�&!���&%��0!#��%#�(%&�6����0��8�)$%#%��)%(#=�
�
�

���� �7#0&!'� �!/0%0)&� �711!,*0&(� �18"+0/� 	7"!%� �7$90&:� 7&,� �$7220/�
�7&7:!"!&'��%%.!%��
�

���������� �!��� 4�!���#� *�%#%�)%&� )$%� �!��'��� ��� 5%$!�6� �6� 
���������#� 
!����
.!�*%�'1%�(!��� �5&��� ���!$�� �$(%&��(%�� !�&�	$���!� /$!)��� ��)�����8� )$%�
�%!#��#� !�&� )$%� ����%��#� )$!)� 0%�%� �!�#%&=� � 
���������� 4�!���#� )$%��
�%#*��&%&� )�� B�%#)���#� 6��(� )$%� 
�((�))%%=� � �$%� ����%��#� $�8$��8$)%&�
)�8%)$%��0�)$�
����������4�!���#D�!�#0%�#�!�%�#�((!��#%&�5%��0?��
�

•� *!�"��8�(!))%�#�0%�%�!��!�#%��6�����%���)��)$%��%#�&%�)#��6�4�#$��#�!�&��
0$��$�0!#�)$%��!#)�!�%!��6�)$%�;����8$�-%)�)��5%�&%#�8�!)%&�!�
��)����%&�
1!�"��8�,��%��
1,��

�

•� �%(5%�#�0�#$%&� )�� $�8$��8$)�(!))%�#� �6� ����%���0�)$� )$%� &%��#���� )$!)�
$!&� 5%%�� *��3�#���!��-� !**��3%&� 5-� 
!5��%)� !�&� )�� !#"� 6��� )$�%%�
!##��!��%#� )�� (�)�8!)%� )$%� %66%�)#� �6� )$%� ��-(*��#� !�&� )$%�
�(*�%(%�)!)�����6�)$%�
1,�<��%�����%#�&%�)#��6�)$%�4�#$��#�!�&?�

�
�=� �����(�)�)$%�*%���&��6�)$%�
1,�)��!��)��A�(��)$#����!�(!9�(�(��6�@�

(��)$#=�
�=� ���*%�(�)��%#�&%�)#��6�4�#$��#�!�&�)��$!3%�!��%##�)���%#�&%�)�

*!�"��8�*%�(�)#=�
A=� �����&%�)!"%�!�6��)$%�����#��)!)����0�)$��%#�&%�)#�5%6��%�!�

&%��#����)��%9)%�&�!�&������%#)!5��#$�!�*%�(!�%�)�
1,�!)�4�#$�
�#�!�&=�

�

���������� 4�!���#� ��)%&� )$!)�� ��� *�����*�%�� )$%�%� 0!#� ��� �**�#�)���� )�� )$%�
��)��&��)�����6�!�
1,��)!"��8���)��!�����)�)$%��%%&�6���*!�"��8����)���#�&����8�
)$%���-(*��#�� )$%��%�%�)� ����%!#%� ���)�!66�����(*�!��)#� ��� )$%�!�%!�!�&�)$!)� �)�
0���&�5%����%!#��!5�%�6���4�#$��#�!�&�)���%(!���)$%�#��%�*!�)��6�)$%�;����8$�
0�)$��)� ���)����%&� *!�"��8� &����8� )$%� ��-(*��#� !�&� 1!�!�-(*��#=� � .�#�
����%��#�0%�%?�
�

•� )$!)�)$%����)����%&�*!�"��8�<��%�#�$%(%�0���&�5%�(!&%�*%�(!�%�)�!)�
)$%�%�&��6�)$%�)��!��*$!#%�0�)$��)�6��)$%�����#��)��8��%#�&%�)#����)$%�
�(*!�)��6�)$%�)��!�����)$%���((���)-=�

�

Page 5



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

E�

•� !��%##�)��*�5����)�!�#*��)�!�&���6�!#)���)��%����4�#$��#�!�&�0!#�*����
��(*!�%&�)���)$%��!�%!#��6�)$%�;����8$=���6�)$%�
��������$��#%�)��
���)���%�)$%�
1,�#�$%(%�5%-��&�)$%�)��!��*%���&���%#�&%�)#�0���&�
$!3%���#�66���%�)�)�(%�)��(!"%�!�)%��!)�3%�!��!�8%(%�)#=�

�

�����������$�&��$(%&���%*�)-��!-������5���;%!))�%��	%�3��%�.%!&��	)�!)%8-�
!�&� �%#����%#� ��%*�%#%�)��8� 	)%*$%�� .!�#%-� 
��*��!)%� ���%�)���
�
�((���)�%#�7��!��)�%#���
��)��%���� !(�%�;�!"%��.%!&��6�1�5�����%!�(��!�&�
 �$��
$��)����.%!&��6�1!�"��8F� �%#*��&%&� )�� )$%�����%��#� �!�#%&�� ��6��(��8�
)$%�
�((�))%%�)$!)?�

�

•� )$%���)��&��)�����6�6����*!�"��8��%#)���)���#�!)�4�#$��#�!�&�0!#�!�*���)�6���
!�6�%9�5�%�*%���&��6��*�)���G�(��)$#=���$�#�0!#���)%�&%&�)��(!�!8%�
����%!#%&�*!�"��8�*�%##��%#�&����8�)$%���-(*���2!(%#�!�&�!�#���)��
!##%##�)$%�%66%�)��6����)����%&�*!�"��8����)$%�!�%!����8%�%�!���
!6)%�0!�&#=�

�

•� )$%�)$�%%'(��)$�)��!��*%���&�#�88%#)%&�5-�
����������4�!���#�0���&�5%�
��#�66���%�)�6���!�*��*%��!�!�-#�#=���66��%�#:�*�%6%�%��%�0���&�5%�)$!)�)$%�
)��!��*%���&�5%�!)��%!#)�>�(��)$#�)��%�#��%�)$%�����%�)�����6�5%))%��&!)!=�

�

•� ����%8!�&�)������%��#�)$!)�)$%��!��6�%%�<��%�!8�%%(%�)��)$!)�!**��%&�)��
(�#)��%#�&%�)#�����%�)�-���3��8����4�#$��#�!�&��0���&��%�&%��)$%(�
��!5�%�)���5)!���!��%#�&%�)#:�*!�"��8�*%�(�)����%�)$%�
1,�0!#�
��)��&��%&=��
�����������$(%&����6��(%&�)$!)�
!5��%)�$!&�!�0!-#�
��)%�&%&�)$!)�!���4�#$��#�!�&��%#�&%�)#�0���&�5%�!5�%�)��!**�-�6���
*!�"��8�*%�(�)#�&����8�)$%�)��!��*%���&����%#*%�)�3%��6�0$%)$%��)$%���
$�(%�0!#���3%�%&�5-�!��!��6�%%�!8�%%(%�)=�

�

•� �)�$!&�5%%���!�&��%(!��%&��)$%�
������:#���)%�)����)�����#��)�!8!���0�)$�
�%#�&%�)#�!)�)$%�%�&��6�)$%�)��!��*%���&=�

�
�$%� 
�((�))%%� ���#�&%�%&� )$%� 3�%0#� !�&� ��((%�)#� (!&%� 5-� 
����������
4�!���#� ��� *�%#%�)��8� )$%� �!��'���� )$%� ��6��(!)���� 8�3%�� 5-� 
���������� �$�&�
�$(%&���%*�)-��!-����!�&��66��%�#�����%#*��#%�)��
����������4�!���#D��##�%#�
!�&�)$%���!�#0%�#�)��)$%�
�((�))%%D#�B�%#)���#=�
�
�$%�
�((�))%%:#�&�#��##�����6�)$%��!��'����!�#%&�)$%�6����0��8��##�%#?�
�

•� ��)0�)$#)!�&��8�)$!)�(!�-��%#�&%�)�!��*��*%�)�%#����4�#$��#�!�&�0%�%�
��3%�%&�5-��!��6�%%�!8�%%(%�)#���%#�&%�)#�#$���&�5%�!5�%�)��!**�-�6���
�%#�&%�)�*!�"��8�*%�(�)#�&����8�)$%�6����*%���&��6�)$%����)����%&�*!�"��8�
)��!�=�

�

•� )$%�
�((�))%%�6%�)�)$!)��%#�&%�)#�$!&���)�5%%��!&%B�!)%�-���)�6�%&�
!5��)�)$%�%9*%��(%�)!��
1,��!�&��%��((%�&%&�)$!)�!�
��((����!)���#�*��8�!((%�)��&��)$�#�5%���&%�)!"%���((%&�!)%�-=�

�

Page 6



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

C�

•� )$%�
�((�))%%�!�"��0�%&8%&�)$!)��66��%�#��%%&%&�)��#%)�!�*%���&�6���
)$%�
1,�)��!��)$!)�0���&�!����!)%�-��%6�%�)�)$%�%66%�)#��6����)����%&�
*!�"��8����)$%�4�#$��#�!�&�!�%!=���$%�
�((�))%%�)$%�%6��%�%�&��#%&�
�66��%�#:��%��((%�&!)����)$!)�)$%�%9*%��(%�)!��*%���&�5%�5%)0%%��#�9�
!�&����%�(��)$#�)��%�!5�%�)$%�
�������)��8!���!�8�%!)%����&%�#)!�&��8�
�6�*!�"��8�*�%##��%#�!6)%��)$%���-(*��#��!�&�!���0�6���6�)��%�*!�"��8�
(%!#��%#�)��*��)%�)��%#�&%�)#D���)%�%#)#=��

�

•� �%#�&%�)#�#$���&�5%�!##�#)%&������(*�-��8�0�)$�)$%��%0����)���#�0�)$�
��%!��%9*�!�!)���#��6�)$%��%B���%(%�)#�!�&�)��%�!��%�#$�0��)�����)�!��
(�������6���8%(%�)#�)��%�!5�%�!�#(��)$�)�!�#�)�������

�

•� !�6��)$%�����#��)!)����0�)$��%#�&%�)#�#$���&�5%���&%�)!"%��*�����)��!�-�
*%�(!�%�)�&%��#����)����)��&��%�!����)����%&�*!�"��8�<��%����)$%�4�#$�
�#�!�&�!�%!=�

�
.!3��8����#�&%�%&� )$%� ��6��(!)����*��3�&%&�5-�!���*!�)�%#�� )$%��3%�3�%0�!�&�
	���)��-� 
�((�))%%� %�&��#%&� )$%� �%!#��#� 6��� )$%� �!��'��� !�&� �%6%��%&� )$%�
(!))%��5!�"�)��
!5��%)�6���6��)$%�����#�&%�!)�����%��((%�&��8�)$%�!�)%��!)�3%�
����#%#��6�!�)����#%)���)�!)�G=���6�)$%��%*��)�!�&�)$%��%��((%�&!)���#�!5�3%=�
�
���������
�
�=� �$!)�)$%�
!��'���5%�%�&��#%&�5-��3%�3�%0�!�&�	���)��-�
�((�))%%�
�
�=� �$!)� )$%�
!5��%)� �%��#���� �!��%&'��� H��-(*���2!(%#�1!�"��8� !�&�

��!66����!�!8%(%�)��##�%#I��
�;��CA�������5%��%6%��%&�5!�"�)��)$%�

!5��%)�6���6��)$%�����#�&%�!)�������)$%����)%9)��6�)$%�3�%0#�5���8$)�
6��0!�&�5-�)$%�
�((�))%%=���

�
�

;�� ���������������������������
�

;��� �+!&��+7/!��'$7'!:8��
�

�����������!��!�/$!���
!5��%)��%(5%�� 6���
��)��%����5���;%!))�%�� 	%�3��%�
.%!&�� 	)�!)%8-� !�&� �%#����%#�� !�&� �$��#)%�� ��%-%��� 	)�!)%8-� �� ;�#��%##�
�%3%��*(%�)� �!�!8%�� '� 
��)��%� 1�5���� �%!�(� !�&� 	*!)�!�� 1�!����8��
*�%#%�)%&�)$%��%*��)�������!)%&�!)�!8%�&!��)%(�@=�=���
�
�%(5%�#�0%�%�!&3�#%&�)$!)� )$%�5����8$�0!#���!##�6�%&�!#�&%6���%�)� ���8�%%��
#*!�%=� � �$%� �*%�� 	*!�%� 	)�!)%8-� $!&� 5%%�� !&�*)%&� ��� ���@� )�� *��)%�)�
%9�#)��8� �*%�� #*!�%� 6��(� &%3%��*(%�)� !�&� �)$%�� *�%##��%#� �!�#%&� 5-�
*�*��!)���� 8��0)$� !�&� )�� &��%�)� �(*��3%(%�)#� )�� %9�#)��8� �*%�� #*!�%=� � ���
��)%��(� �%3�%0� �6� )$%� �*%�� 	*!�%� 	)�!)%8-� $!&� 5%%�� ��&%�)!"%�� !�&� )$%�

�((�))%%�0!#�!#"%&�)����((%�)����)$%�&�!6)�������!)%&�!)��**%�&�9����*�����
)���)#�!&�*)����5-�
�����������C� !��!�-�������!�&�)����)%�)$!)�&%)!��%&�!�)����
*�!����8�6���)$%�#)�!)%8-�0���&�5%�!��8�%&�0�)$�)$%�!���!��5�&8%)��-��%������8$)�
�6�)$%�(%&��(')%�(��%&��)���#����6��&��8�6��(�
%�)�!��2�3%��(%�)=�
�

Page 7



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

@�

�$%� 
�((�))%%� ���#�&%�%&� )$%� &�!6)� #)�!)%8-� !�&� (!&%� )$%� 6����0��8�
��((%�)#?�
�
�$!)�)$%��%3�#%&��*%��	*!�%#�	)�!)%8-�#$���&?�

•� %�#��%�)$!)�*��3�#���#�6���!�����((���)�%#��#��$�!#���&%��*%�*�%�!#�0%���
!#�*�!-��8�6�%�&#�!�&�#*��)#�6!����)�%#�6���-���8�*%�*�%�

•� �����&%�*��3�#���#�)��%�!5�%��*%��#*!�%#�)$!)�0%�%�*�%#%�)�-��#%&�6���
��((���)-�%3%�)#� )���%(!��� �����#�3%� )���)$%��&%(�8�!*$���8���*#� ���
)$%���((���)-�

•� �����*��!)%�*��3�#����)$!)�0���&���6��%��%�)$%�!**%!�!��%��6�!�%!#�!�&�
�%�8$5���$��&#�5-�����&��!)��8������"��8�8�%%��#*!�%#�

•� �����*��!)%� *��3�#���� )�� %�8!8%� �	7D#� )�� %9*���%� 5%))%�� �#%� �6� )$%���
8�%%��#*!�%#�

�
���������
�
�=� �$!)�)$%�
�((�))%%D#���((%�)#�!5�3%�5%���)%&�
�
�=� �$!)� �)� 5%� ��)%&� )$!)� &%)!��%&� !�)���� *�!����8� 6��� )$%� #)�!)%8-� 0���� 5%�

!��8�%&� 0�)$� )$%� !���!�� 5�&8%)� �-��%� ��� ��8$)� �6� )$%� (%&��(')%�(�
�%&��)���#����6��&��8�6��(��%�)�!��8�3%��(%�)=�

�
�

;��� �17&&0&:��#10:7'0)&%��.++1!"!&'7$8��17&&0&:��)/."!&'��
�
�$%�
�((�))%%��%�%�3%&�!�*�%#%�)!)����6��(����$!%��;%����	)�!)%8���1�!����8�
�!�!8%��� 	)�!)%8��� 1�!����8�� �%3%��*(%�)� �� �%�%0!��� ��� 1�!����8�
�5��8!)���#� 	�**�%(%�)!�-� 1�!����8�����(%�)� �	1���0$��$� 6��(%&� *!�)� �6�
)$%� 7��!�� �%3%��*(%�)� 4�!(%0��"=� � �$%� *�%#%�)!)���� ��6��(%&� )$%�

�((�))%%��6��$!�8%#� )�� )$%�	1��#���%� )$%����#��)!)������&%�)!"%��&����8�
	�((%�� ����=� � �$%� �%3�#%&� 	1�� 0!#� )�� 5%� *�%#%�)%&� )�� 
!5��%)� ��� ���
 !��!�-�����=���$%�6����0��8���6��(!)����0!#�*��3�&%&?�

•� ��� �*���� ������ )$%� �!-��� �6� 7��&��� 0���&� 5%� !5�%� )�� �(*�#%� !�

�((���)-���6�!#)���)��%�7%3-��
�7�=���$�#�0���&�*�!�%�*�%##��%����)$%�
!5���)-��6���0%��.!(�%)#�)��#%���%�*�!����8��5��8!)���#=��.�0%3%���)$%�
1�!����8� �5��8!)���#� 	1�� #%�3%&� )�� #)�%�8)$%�� )$%� 
������:#� �0��
*�����)�%#���)����)#��0��
�7�0!#�*�%*!�%&�!�&��(*�%(%�)%&�����*�������E=���

•� )$%���#%����%&��!)�������)��5�)���#��%#��)��8�6��(�#�$%(%#�*��3�&��8����
%9�%##� �6� ACJ� !66��&!5�%� $��#��8� ����&� &%)%�� �	7#� 6��(� (!"��8�
!**���!)���#=� � �� #*%��6��� �%6%�%��%� ��� )$%� 	1�� $!&� )$%�%6��%� 5%%��
�����&%&� *����� )�� !**��3!�� 5-� 
!5��%)� )�� %�#��%� �66��%�#� !**�-� )$%�
���)��5�)�����%B���%(%�)#�6�%9�5�-=�

•� 0$%�%� �(*��3%(%�)#� ����&� �)$%�0�#%� 5%� �5)!��%&� ��&%�� �)$%��
(%�$!��#(#� K� #��$� !#� ��&%�� 	�LG� �6� )$%� .�8$0!-#� ��)�� �%�!)%&�
��!�#%#�$!&�5%%���%(�3%&�6��(�)$%�	1�=�

•� )$%� 	1�� �%6�%�)#� )$%� *�����)�%#� #%)� ��)� ��� )$%� 7�4� 
��%� 	)�!)%8-�� )$%�
�!-��D#�*�����)�%#�!�&�)$�#%�#%)���)� ���)$%� ��&�3�&�!��#%�3��%�#)�!)%8�%#�
6��(� !���##� )$%�
������� #��$� !#� )$%� �����	)��%� 	)�!)%8-� !�&��*%��
	*!�%�	)�!)%8-=�

Page 8



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

L�

�
����%#*��#%�)���%(5%�#:�B�%#)���#�)$%�6����0��8���6��(!)����0!#�*��3�&%&?�
�

•� 0��"�$!&�5%%����&%�)!"%��)��%�#��%�!�5%))%��*�!)6��(�0!#�*��3�&%&�)��
#%���%� ���)��5�)���#� 6��(� &%3%��*%�#� 6��� %(*��-(%�)� !�&� %�)%�*��#%�
)$!��$!&�*�%3���#�-�5%%��*�##�5�%������&�3�&�!���%8�)�!)���#=��

�

•� !� 6��(��!� 0!#� �#%&� )�� �!����!)%� %&��!)���� 5%�%6�)#� 6��(� &%3%��*%�#:�
���)��5�)���#��)$%#%�����&����-�5%�!**��%&�)��)$%�
������D#�#�$���#��

�

•� )$%��!����!)�����6�)$%��!-����6�7��&��:#�
�7�0!#�!�6�9%&��$!�8%�!)�MAC�
*%�� #B�!�%� (%)�%� �#�5+%�)� )�� 6��!�� ���6��(!)����=� � �66��%�#� 0�#$%&� )��
%�#��%� )$!)� )$%-� 0%�%� !5�%� )�� (!9�(�#%� )$%� 5%�%6�)#� �6� #�$%(%#�
!��%!&-�*�!��%&�5%6��%�)$�#�0!#��(*�#%&=����0%��.!(�%)#�
�������
�7�
0���&�5%�5���8$)�6��0!�&����)$%�#!(%�5!#�#�!#�!���(*��#��-��$!�8%�
���!����%0�&%3%��*(%�)=���

�

•� ��� 6�)��%� �)� 0���&� ��)� 5%� *�##�5�%� )�� #%���%� 	��@� 5%�%6�)#� 6���
��6�!#)���)��%��#��$�!#�%&��!)����� )$%�%6��%�)$%�
�������0���&��%%&�)��
�%�-�����)#�
�7�)��#%���%�6��&��8�6�����6�!#)���)��%=���

�

•� )$%�%#)�(!)%&��(*�%(%�)!)�����6�)$%�
������:#�
�7�5-��*�������E��#�)$%�
�!)%#)� *�##�5�%� &!)%� 6��� �)#� ��)��&��)���=� �66��%�#� $!&� !��%!&-�
��((%��%&�0��"�!�&��)�0!#�!�)���*!)%&��)�0���&�5%��%!&-�!$%!&��6�)$�#�
&!)%=�

�

•� �	7D#�%9*�%##%&�!�3�%0�)$!)����)��5�)���#�%9*%�)%&��6� )$%(�0%�%� )���
8�%!)=� � �$%�%6��%� �)� 0!#� �%�%##!�-� 6��� �66��%�#� )�� %9%���#%� +�&8%(%�)�
0$%��#)�*��!)��8�5%�%6�)#�)$%-�0�#$%&�)���%8�)�!)%=��
%�)$%��)$%��!-���
�6�7��&��:#�
�7�������0%��.!(�%)#�0���&�!**�-�)��!66��&!5�%�$��#��8=�

�

•� )$%�%� 0!#� !� ��#"� )$!)� )$%� 
������� ����&� ��#%� &%3%��*(%�)#� !6)%�� )$%�
��)��&��)���� �6� )$%� �!-��D#� !�&� )$%� ��0%�� .!(�%)#� 
�7� � .�0%3%��
��0%��.!(�%)#�0!#����!�6!3���!5�%�*�#�)������(*!�%&�)���%�)!����)$%��
7��&���5����8$#�5%�!�#%��6��)#�$�8$%���!�&�3!��%#=�

�
���������
�
�$!)�)$%�*�%#%�)!)����5%���)%&=�
�
�

��� ������������������������������������
�

���������� 	��!+��� �#�!(� �%*��)%&� )$!)� )$%� �%#����%#� ���%�)��!)%� 5�&8%)�
*�%##��%#�0%�%��
��!�&�)$%�&%�!�)��6����$��!8%�.��#%=���
�

�����������(-��$�)%���"��%*��)%&�)$!)�5�&8%)�*�%##��%�!�%!#�6���
	4�0%�%�
����%!#%&� &%(!�&� 6��� #�$���� )�!�#*��)� !�&� #�$���� *�!�%#� !�&� �$!�8%#� ���

Page 9



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

G�

&%(!�&� 6��� #%�3��%#� )�� #�$���#�� *!�)����!��-� �6� (��%� �6� )$%(� 5%��(%�
!�!&%(�%#=���
�

�����������!�$!%��	!��&%�#� �%*��)%&�$%������%���� ��� �%�!)���� )�� )$%��.�;�
5�&8%)� *��*�#!�#�� !5��)� )$%� 6!����%� )�� &%��3%�� #!3��8#� �6� MG������� !�&� !��
��#*%��6�%&� #!3��8#� *��*�#!�� �6� M�������=� � 	$%� !�#�� �%*��)%&� ��8���8�
��((����!)�����##�%#�0�)$�;!�)#�!�&��$%�7��&������#)�������&��8��)$%����#��%�
�6�)$%��!�"'���
%�)�%�����$�)%�$!*%��!�&�����%���!5��)�)$%��%#�8�!)�����6�!�
��(5%���6���)$�*!%&���#��8%��#�0$��$�$!&�5%%���%*��)%&�����!)���!��(%&�!=��
	$%�$!&�(%)�0�)$�#%�����(!�!8%�#�6��(�)$%����#)�)��&�#��##�)$%#%��##�%#=��
�

������������(����$%�� �%*��)%&� )$!)� )$%� )%�(#��6� �%6%�%��%� 6��� )$%� �%3�%0��6�
�!#)���&�7�6%���#)#�$!&�5%%��!8�%%&=�
�
����������
�
�$!)�)$%�3%�5!���*&!)%#�5%���)%&��
�
�

<�� ���*��������� ��������� ��� �������� ���� =������������>�
����������������
�

����)%(#=�
�
�

<��� �78)$71��!/0%0)&%��
�
�$%�
$!��� !&3�#%&� )$!)��!-��D#��9%��)�3%��%��#���� I.��#��8�	)��"��*)���#�
�**�!�#!�I� ��!-��:#� �%��#���� 7�8� 
�=� ��A�� $!&� 5%%�� *�5��#$%&� ��� ���
�%�%(5%�������!�&�$!&�5%%���!��%&'��=� ��$%��!��'���0!#�&%)%�(��%&���&%��
��8%�)�5�#��%##�*��3�#���#�!)�!8%�&!��)%(�>=�=�
�
�

?�� ���� ��
��� �������� ���� =������������>� ���������

��
� �
��
�
����������������������	�����
�
�$%�
$!�����6��(%&�)$%�
�((�))%%�)$!)�#$%�$!&�!8�%%&�)�����#�&%��)$%��!��'���
�6� )$%� �!-��D#� �9%��)�3%� �%��#���� H.��#��8� 	)��"� �*)���#� �**�!�#!�I�
��!-��:#��%��#����7�8�
�=���A��!#�!���)%(��6���8%�)����%#)���)%&�5�#��%##�)��
%�!5�%�)$%��!��'���)��5%�&�#�$!�8%&�0�)$���)$%�*�%#���5%&�)�(%#�!�%#=�
�
�

?��� �78)$6%��@!/.'04!��!/0%0)&��711!,*0&��
�
�$%�
$!���(�3%&�)��3!�-�)$%���&%���6�5�#��%##=�������&��8�-��)$%��!��'����6�)$%�
�!-��D#�%9%��)�3%�&%��#����0!#����#�&%�%&�!#�)$%�#%���&��)%(��6�5�#��%##=�
�

����������  �&�)$� 2!�&��%�� *�%#%�)%&� )$%� �!��'��� ��� 5%$!�6� �6� 
���������#�
 �#$�!�1%�"��;��������%���	$���!�/$!)����/$!�%#��&&����$(%&���!+�5��$(%&�
!�&� 
!���� 2�55#� ��)�����8� )$%� �%!#��#� !�&� )$%� ����%��#� )$!)� 0%�%� �!�#%&=��

Page 10



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

>�


����������2!�&��%�� )$%�� �%#*��&%&� )�� B�%#)���#� 6��(� )$%�
�((�))%%=� � �$%�
����%��#� $�8$��8$)%&� )�8%)$%�� 0�)$� 
���������� 2!�&��%�D#� !�#0%�#� !�%�
#�((!��#%&�5%��0?��
�

•� )$%��!-��:#�&%��#����)$!)�)$%��7���#$���&����)���%�0!#�#�**��)%&=�

•� $�0%3%��)$%�&%��#����)���%6��(�)$%�;�!�&��6���0%��.!(�%)#�.�(%#�
��..��!�&�)$%�(%)$�&#���&%�)!"%��)��&��)$�#��!�#%&�����%��=�

•� )$%�#����%��6��%8!��!&3��%�)$!)�$!&�5%%��#��8$)�0$��$�)$%���%&�)��)$%�
&�#5!�&(%�)��6�)$%�*�%3���#��..�;�!�&�0!#���)���%!��-�*�%#%�)%&����
)$%��%*��)�!�&���)����#�#)%�)�-��&%�)�6�%&�!���##�&���(%�)#�!�&�
����%#*��&%��%�)��;�!�&��%(5%�#=�

•� (!�-��6�)$%�"%-�&%��#�������)%��!�0%�%���%!��-�6��6���%&�5�)�)$%�&%��#����
0!#���)�&%!�)�0�)$����)$�#��!)%8��-=���)�0!#�)$%�
!��'����%(5%�#:�3�%0�
)$!)�)$�#�$!&�)$%�%6��%�5%%��&%!�)�0�)$�������%�)�-=�

•� ��)%��(�!��!�8%(%�)#�$!&���)�5%%��*�)����*�!�%�0$��%�)$%��%6��(��6�)$%�
;�!�&�0!#���&%�)!"%��

•� )$%�(%)$�&�6���$!�&���8�)$%���&�;�!�&�0!#������#�#)%�)=���$%�
��&%*%�&%�)��%(5%�#�$!&�5%%��&�#(�##%&�0$��#)��%#�&%�)�
�%*�%#%�)!)�3%#�$!&�5%%��8�3%����)%��(�!**���)(%�)#����)$%�;�!�&�
0$��$�����
!��'����%(5%�#:�3�%0����#"%&��)#�#)!5���)-=�

•� �)�0!#�!�8�%&�)$!)��!)$%��)$!��&�#(�##�)$%�;�!�&����)%��(�!��!�8%(%�)#�
#$���&�$!3%�5%%��*�)����*�!�%���)����%0�;�!�&�(%(5%�#�0%�%��%����)%&�
)��*�%3%�)�!�-���#"�)���..�#%�3��%#=���

•� �)�0!#���)%&�)$!)��..�$!&��%�%�3%&�*�#�)�3%���((%�)#�!5��)�)$%�
��3��3%(%�)�!�&���((�)(%�)��6�;�!�&�(%(5%�#�&����8�!��%�%�)���&�)�

�((�##������#*%�)����)$!)�$!#��%#��)%&����!�)0�'#)!���!)��8=�

�

���������� �!5��!� /$!��� 
!5��%)� �%(5%�� 6��� .��#��8�� �#!5%��!� 4�%%(!���
�##�#)!�)� 
$�%6� �9%��)�3%� K� 7%8!�� 	%�3��%#�� !�&�  !�"�%� �&���-%�� ��)%��(�

��*��!)%� ���%�)��� 6��� �%3%��*(%�)� �� �%�%0!�� �%#*��&%&� )�� )$%� ����%��#�
�!�#%&���6��(��8�)$%�
�((�))%%�)$!)?�
�

•� !**���)(%�)#�)��)$%��..�;�!�&�0%�%�!���9%��)�3%���)�!�
�������
(!))%�=�

•� �%6��(��6�)$%�;�!�&�0���&�%�#��%�(���%#��%�%�3%&�)$��8$��%�%�)�
.�(%#�	�$%(%�0����5%��)���#%&�%66%�)�3%�-=�

•� �..�*%�6��(!��%�$!&��(*��3%&�5�)�$!&�-%)�)��!))!���%9�%��%�)�
#)!�&!�&#=�

•� %�#����8�)$%�%�0%�%��%#�&%�)��%*�%#%�)!)�3%#����)$%�;�!�&�0!#�(�#)�
�(*��)!�)�)��)$%��9%��)�3%=��

•� �..��%(��!�&�(�!�&���)���%#�#)!)%�)$!)�!���;�!�&��%(5%�#�0����#)!�&�
&�0��!)�)$%�)$��&��2��!�&�!��%0�;�!�&�5%�%#)!5��#$%&=�

•� �)��#���)%�&%&�)$!)�)$%�*���%##�6���!**���)(%�)��6���&%*%�&%�)��%(5%�#�
5%��$!�8%&�6��(�*�%3���#���)%�3�%0�5!#%&�!��!�8%(%�)#=�

•� !&3��%�6��(�
���#%�����6��(%&�)$!)��%(��!�&�(�!�&���)���%#��6��..�
���6%�#�*�0%�#����)$%�
������:#��9%��)�3%=���)�0!#�)$%��������&%&�)$!)�
!**���)(%�)#�6��(%��-�(!&%�)$���8$�2%�%�!��1��*�#%#�
�((�))%%�
0%�%�������%�)=���$�#�$!&�)��5%��%�)�6�%&=�

�

Page 11



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

���

��3%�3�%0�!�&�	���)��-�
�((�))%%����#�&%�%&�)$%�3�%0#�!�&���((%�)#�(!&%�
5-� 
����������  �&�)$� 2!�&��%�� ��� *�%#%�)��8� )$%� �!��'���� )$%� ��6��(!)���� !�&�
!�#0%�#� *��3�&%&� 5-�  !�"�%� �&���-%�� ��)%��(� 
��*��!)%� ���%�)��� 6���
�%3%��*(%�)� !�&� �%�%0!��� �#!5%��!� 4�%%(!��� �##�#)!�)� 
$�%6� �9%��)�3%��
7%8!��	%�3��%#��!�&�
�����������!5��!�/$!���
!5��%)��%(5%��6���.��#��8�����
�%#*��#%�)��
����������2!�&��%�D#��##�%#=��
�
�$%�
�((�))%%:#�&�#��##�����6�)$%��!��'���5���8$)�6��0!�&�)$%�6����0��8�3�%0#?�
�

•� )$%�)�(%#�!�%#�6���)$%�&%��#����0%�%�#$��)��6!����8�+�#)�5%6��%�!��!)���!��
$���&!-��0�)$�����%!��0��"��8�&!-#�5%��8�!3!��!5�%�6���!&$%���8�)��
�%8��!)����)�(%#�!�%#=�

•� !�"%-�&%��#����$!&�5%%��������%�)�-�*���%##%&�)$���8$�)$%�&%��#����
(!"��8�*���%&��%#=��$%�
$!���%9*�%##%&�$%������%���)$!)�)$�#�
���)�!3%�%&�)$%�
������D#����#)�)�)���=�

•� )$%�
�((�))%%���)%&�)$%�����)����8��66��%�D#�#)!)%(%�)�)$!)�)$%�
2%�%�!��1��*�#%#�
�((�))%%�8��&!��%��%�%�)��8�5�!�&��!5��)�
�%(5%�#�0!#�������%�)��!�&�0!#����-�&�#��3%�%&�!6)%�����#��)��8�

���#%��!5��)�)$%��9%��)�3%�*���%##=��$%�
�((�))%%�0!#�3%�-�
����%��%&�!5��)�)$�#�!�&��%B�%#)%&�)$!)�)$%�����)����8��66��%����0�
�$%�"�0$%)$%���)$%��!**���)(%�)#�5-�2%�%�!��1��*�#%#�
�((�))%%�
(�8$)�5%�!66%�)%&=���$%�
$!���!�#���%B�%#)%&�)$!)�)$%�����)����8��66��%��
�%*��)�5!�"�)$!)�)$�#�$!&�5%%��&��%=�

•� )$!)�)$%�*���%##�)$!)�$!&�5%%����&%�)!"%��)��!(%�&�)$%��%(��!�&�(�
!�&���)���%#�#$���&�5%���!��6�%&=�

•� &%��#���#�0%�%�)!"%��0�)$��)�!&%B�!)%�-�!&3�#��8�;�!�&��%(5%�#�!�&�
)$!)�)$�#�0���&�$!3%�!�&%#)!5���#��8�%66%�)�����..=��;�!�&��%(5%�#�
$!&�!#"%&�)$%�0%%"�5%6��%�0$!)�0!#�$!**%���8�5�)�$!&���)��%�%�3%&�
!�-���6��(!)���=�

•� )$%�*���%##���&%�)!"%��)���%�%0�)$%�;�!�&�$!&���)�5%%��)�!�#*!�%�)=�
�$%�
�((�))%%�!8�%%&�)$!)����%#�6����%0�(%(5%�#�(�#)�5%�#%%��)��5%�
��5�#)����6�)��%�!�&�)$!)���&%*%�&%�)��%(5%�#�5���8$)�%9*%�)�#%�!�&�
��((�)(%�)��!�&�$!&�*%�6��(%&�!�"%-����%����)$%��7��D#�#���%##�
)$�#�6!�=��$%�&%��#����)��%9���&%�)$%(�0!#���)�%9*�!��%&=�

•� 8�3%��)$%�!5�3%��)$%�
�((�))%%�!8�%%&�)$!)�)$%�&%��#����5%��%6%��%&�
5!�"�)��)$%��!-���0�)$�!��%B�%#)�)$!)�!�*��*%��)�!�#�)����*���%##�6���)$%�
;�!�&�5%�*�)����*�!�%�%#)!5��#$��8�6��(!����)%��(�!��!�8%(%�)#=��

•� �)�0!#���)%&�)$!)��%#�&%�)��%*�%#%�)!)�3%#�$!&�5%%��"%*)����&����8�
)$%���)%��(=���#�)$%�
�((�))%%�6%�)�)$!)�)$�#�$!&�5%%��6!���!�&��*%��)$�#�
#$���&�!�#��5%�)$%��!#%�6�����&%*%�&%�)��%(5%�#��6�)$%�;�!�&=�

�
4����0��8� &�#��##����� )$%� �3%�3�%0� !�&� 	���)��-� 
�((�))%%� %�&��#%&� )$%�
�%!#��#� 6��� )$%� �!��'��� !�&� !�)%��!)�3%� !�)���� *��*�#%&� !#� #�5(�))%&� 5-� )$%�
�!��'����%(5%�#�!#�#%)���)�!5�3%=�������&��8�-�)$%�&%��#����0!#��%6%��%&�5!�"�
)��)$%��!-���6���6��)$%�����#�&%�!)���=�
�
���������
�
�=� �$!)�)$%�
!��'���5%�%�&��#%&�5-��3%�3�%0�!�&�	���)��-�
�((�))%%�

Page 12



�����������	
����
��
����������
�����������

	�
���
��
����
��	���
�����

�

���

�
�=� �$!)� )$%� �!-��D#� �9%��)�3%� �%��#���� �!��%&'��� H.��#��8� 	)��"�

�*)���#� �**�!�#!�I� ��!-��:#� �%��#���� 7�8� 
�=� ��A��� 5%� �%6%��%&�
5!�"� )�� )$%� �!-��� 6��� 6��)$%�� ���#�&%�!)���� ��� )$%� ���)%9)� �6� )$%�
3�%0#�5���8$)�6��0!�&�5-�)$%�
�((�))%%=���

�
�

���� �A������������
��������������������
�
�$%�
$!����)4!,�!�&��)�0!#?�'�
�
��������(��
�
�$!)����!����&!��%�0�)$�)$%�*��3�#���#��6�	%�)����������6�)$%�7��!��
2�3%��(%�)���)��>L���!#�!(%�&%&�5-�)$%�7��!��2�3%��(%�)�����%##�)��
��6��(!)�������)��>GC��)$%�*�%##�!�&�*�5����5%�%9���&%&�6��(�)$%��%(!��&%���6�
)$%�(%%)��8�6���)$%����#�&%�!)�����6�)$%�	%�)�����0��5�#��%##����)$%�8����&#�
)$!)��)����)!��%&���6��(!)����&%6��%&�!#�%9%(*)�������6�&%�)�!�����1!�)����6�
	�$%&��%�����)��)$%�7��!��2�3%��(%�)����)��>L�=�
�
�

���� �A����B�����������������������
�
�$%#%�0%�%����#�&%�%&�!�&�!**��3%&�������#%&�#%##���=�
�
�

���� ������
������������
��=����������>�����������
����
���
����
������������	�����
�

����)%(#=�
�
�
�

�
�

�$%�(%%)��8�%�&%&�!)�>=���*=(=��
�
�
�
�


$!����
�������������� !�"#���
�3%�3�%0���	���)��-�
�((�))%%�

�

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

 

Committee: 

 
OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY 
 

Date: 

 
7th February 2012 
 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda Item 
No. 

 

 

Report of: 
 
Service Head, Democratic Services 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services 

Title:  
 
Cabinet Decision Called-in: 
 
Corporate and Commercial Events in 
Parks (CAB 061/112) 
 
Wards: All 

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The attached report of the Corporate Director (Communities Localities & Culture) 

was considered by the Cabinet on 11th January 2012 and has been “Called-In” by 
Councillors Peter Golds, Gloria Thienel, Zara Davis, Craig Aston, David Snowdon 
and Emma Jones. in accordance with the provisions of Part Four Sections 16 and 17 
of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee consider the contents of the Cabinet attached report, review the 

provisional decisions arising and  
 
2.2 decide whether to accept them or refer the matter back to Cabinet with proposals, 

together with reasons. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder and address 
where open to inspection 

Cabinet Report CAB 061/112 – 
11 January 2012 

Antonella Burgio 
 
0207 364 4881 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 15



 

 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 The request to call-in the Cabinet’s decision dated 13th January 2012 was 

submitted under Overview and Scrutiny (O and S) Procedure Rules Sections 16 
and 17.  It was considered by the Assistant Chief Executive, Legal Services who 
has responsibility under the constitution for calling in Cabinet decisions in 
accordance with agreed criteria.   

 
3.2 The call-in request fulfilled the required criteria and the decision is referred to 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee in order to consider whether or not to refer the 
item back to the Cabinet, at its meeting on 8th February 2012, for further 
consideration.  Implementation of the Cabinet decision is suspended whilst the call-
in is considered. 

 
 
4. THE CABINET’S PROVISIONAL DECISION 

 
4.1 The Cabinet after considering the report attached, at Appendix 1, provisionally 

decided the following:- 

 
1. agreed that income generating opportunities in all suitable parks 

continue to be pursued where these do not impact unduly on the local 
community and planned sporting arrangements; and 

 
2. agreed that Decision 1. above applies to Sir John McDougal Gardens, 

Millwall Park and Island Gardens. 
 

4.2 Reasons for Decisions 
 
These were detailed in paragraph 3.1 of the report (CAB 061/112) and stated 
that  
 

“On 21 September Council resolved that three parks should remain 
“solely for the use of residents and community groups for the purpose 
of recreation, leisure and sports”.  This resolution, however, has 
potential financial impact and therefore needs to be considered by 
Cabinet and a decision taken as to whether these parks are to be 
excluded from consideration for any suitable income-generating 
events.” 

 
4.3 Alternative Options Considered 

 
This was detailed in paragraph 4 of the report (CAB 061/112); and stated that: 
 

“Cabinet may decide to exclude these sites; however the implication is 
that further lists of sites are likely to be brought forward for exclusion 
which will impact on the Council’s ability to meet income targets and 
fund community events which are met from income generated from 
parks.  A proportion of the income generated is re-invested in parks 

Page 16



 

 

and implementing this resolution would also impact upon this 
investment.” 

 
 

5. REASONS / ALTERNATIVE COURSE OF ACTION PROPOSED FOR THE 
‘CALL IN’ 
 

5.1 The Call-in requisition signed by the Councillors identified at Section 1 of this 
report gives the following reason for the Call-in: 

 
“This report allows parks to be used for commercial and corporate events 
even if it is to inconvenience and detriment of the local community.  It allows 
council officers the freedom to allow parks to be used for such events even if 
there are pre-scheduled sporting events or if the event is so private (such as a 
wedding) it would not be open to members of the public and local community. 
 

• In section 6.2 if the report it is stated that “other parks are also able to 
accommodate smaller corporate commercial events and private social 
events such as weddings”.  Then a little further on it says “No park will 
be used exclusively for commercial use, there will be public access at 
all times”  These two statements are contradictory as if a private, social 
or corporate event is taking place, it will not be open to the public as it 
is exclusively private. 

• Also in section 6.2 if the report, it is stated that “Furthermore regular 
sports bookings will be taken into account when considering events”.  
This statement does not state that regular sport bookings will be 
avoided, just that they will be taken into account when making 
decisions.  Therefore this means there will be freedom and the ability to 
book commercial events over sports bookings.  This would seem to go 
contrary of the Councils Open Space Strategy.  This states “The 
Council is the principal provider for formal field based sports in Tower 
Hamlets… and Local demand for outdoor sports and recreational use 
of parks is known to be high, given the young population”.  As the 
Council has acknowledged it is the main provider of field based sports, 
which mostly take place in parks, and there is a high demand for these 
spaces; by allowing the freedom to allow commercial events to come 
before sporting activities the Council, would appear to be contradicting 
their Open Space Strategy. 

• The reports states that events in parks, whether free or commercial; 
provide similar opportunities fir communities it come together.  This is 
unlikely to be true  as commercial; events such as product launches 
which will probably have an invitation only guest list and this would 
mean it would be unlikely be for local residents to attend,  Therefore 
they do not provide an opportunity for communities to come together -  
in fact they do the complete opposite.  They actively prevent 
communities form coming together, since they prevent the communal 
use of the local park. 

• In 6.1 of the report, it is said “A proportion if all income generated in 
parks (other than Victoria Park which has a separate target of 
£100,000) will go to help the upkeep and improve facilities”.  Although 

Page 17



 

 

a good idea to reinvest some of the income raised from commercial 
events in parks back into them.  10% of income from commercial 
events is a very low amount to be reinvested back into parks.  The 
point is that if residents have to put with all the disruption from 
commercial events, it is insulting that only 10% of the income will get 
reinvested into those parks.  They will therefore see virtually no benefit 
for all the disruption, inconvenience and loss of amenity thqt they will 
have to bear. 

 
 
5.2 The requisition also proposed the following alternative course of action: 

 
“We call upon the Mayor and Cabinet to review the decisions in the report and 
follow the motion passed in Council on 21 September 2011 that states: 
 
‘Sir John McDougal Gardens, Millwall Park and Island Gardens will remain 
solely for the use of residents and community groups for the purpose of 
recreation, leisure and sports.’ 
 
To do more than to take into consideration regular sports bookings and to 
protect these sports bookings when considering commercial events to take 
place in parks. 
 
To significantly increase the percentage of income raised from commercial 
events that is going to be reinvested back into parks to take account of the 
disruption, inconvenience and loss of amenity that local residents will have to 
tolerate when these events are taking place.   
 

 
6. CONSIDERATION OF THE “CALL IN” 

 
6.1 Having fulfilled the call-in request criteria, the matter is referred to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee in order to determine the call-in and decide 
whether or not to refer the item back to the Mayor and Cabinet for further 
consideration.   

 
6.2 The following procedure is to be followed for consideration of the “Call In”: 

 
(a) Presentation of the “Call In” by one of the “Call In” Members followed 

by questions. 
 
(b) Response from the Cabinet Member and / or officers followed by 

questions. 
 
(c) General debate followed by decision. 

 
N.B. – In accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Protocols and Guidance adopted by the Committee at its meeting on 5 
June, 2007, any Member who presents the “Call In” is not eligible to 
participate in the general debate. 

Page 18



 

 

 
6.3 It is open to the Committee to either  

 

• resolve to take no action which would have the effect of endorsing the 
original Cabinet decision(s), or  

 

• the Committee could refer the matter back to the Cabinet for further 
consideration setting out the nature of its concerns and possibly 
recommending an alternative course of action. 

 
 
7. APPENDIX 
 

Attached, as an appendix, is the Cabinet Report (CAB 061/112) Corporate 
and Commercial Events in Parks 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
12 January 
2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 

CAB 061/112 

Report of:  

 
Corporate Director Communities, Localities 
and Culture 

 
Originating officer(s) Heather Bonfield 
Interim Service Head, Culture, Learning and 
Leisure 
 

Title:  
Corporate and Commercial Events in Parks 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Cllr Rania Khan  

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Great Place to Live 

Strategic Priority 
 

2.2 Strengthen and Connect Communities 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report relates to corporate, private and commercial events in three 

specific parks.  When the report on Commercial Events in Parks was agreed 
by Cabinet on 6 April 2011, Cabinet agreed: “income generating opportunities 
in other suitable parks continue to be pursued where these do not impact 
unduly on the local community and planned sporting arrangements”.  
Subsequently Council, on 21 September 2011, passed the following motion: 
 
“Sir John McDougal Gardens, Millwall Park and Island Gardens will remain 
solely for the use of residents and community groups for the purpose of 
recreation, leisure and sports” 
 

1.3 As this motion has a potential financial impact (loss of income) the matter is 
referred back for consideration by Cabinet. 

  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Agree that income generating opportunities in all suitable parks continue to be 

pursued where these do not impact unduly on the local community and 
planned sporting arrangements. 

 
2.2 Agree that this decision applies to Sir John McDougal Gardens, Millwall Park 

and Island Gardens 
 
 

Page 21



  

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 On 21 September Council resolved that three parks should remain “solely for 

the use of residents and community groups for the purpose of recreation, 
leisure and sports”.  This resolution, however, has potential financial impact 
and therefore needs to be considered by Cabinet and a decision taken as to 
whether these parks are to be excluded from consideration for any suitable 
income-generating events.   

 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 

4.1 Cabinet may decide to exclude these sites; however the implication is that 
further lists of sites are likely to be brought forward for exclusion which will 
impact on the Council’s ability to meet income targets and fund community 
events which are met from income generated from parks.  A proportion of 
the income generated is re-invested in parks and implementing this 
resolution would also impact upon this investment. 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1 Cabinet 6 April 2011 agreed future arrangements with regard to large 
commercial events in Victoria Park, but also considered the opportunity to 
raise income through smaller events, including corporate events and 
weddings.  Cabinet was advised that Officers already progressed these 
types of event where suitable; Cabinet endorsed this approach and agreed 
that income generating opportunities in other suitable parks continue to be 
pursued where these do not impact unduly on the local community and 
planned sporting arrangements.  On 21 September however, Council 
resolved to exclude three parks on the Isle of Dogs from this consideration 
and it is this matter which is now before Cabinet. 

 
5.2 Officers from the Council’s Arts and Events team are drawing up plans to 

actively market specific parks and open spaces in the borough to 
commercial organisations, along with guidelines on types of use and 
potential numbers of bookings per year. 

 
6. BODY OF REPORT 
 
6.1 Commercial activity in our parks is not new and each year a number of 

income generating events already take place.  To date the Council has been 
reactive to approaches from companies/individuals to use parks and open 
spaces.  It is now looking to actively market specific spaces to increase the 
level of commercial activity and increase income generation.  A proportion of 
this income will be reinvested in parks; from 2011 10% of all income 
generated in parks (other than Victoria park which has a separate target of 
£100,000) will go direct to parks to help with their upkeep and improve 
facilities. 

 
6.2 The aim is to spread commercial activity across more parks to ensure that 

there is no undue impact on specific parks.  Victoria Park is the most suitable 

Page 22



  

for major events, but other parks are also able to accommodate smaller 
corporate commercial events and private social events such as weddings.  
Each park/open space will be assessed for the type of event that will be 
suitable, as well as the maximum number of events that would be accepted.  
For some this will mean that no events will be sought.  No park will be used 
exclusively for commercial use, there will be public access at all times.  
Furthermore regular sports bookings will be taken into account when 
considering events.  It is therefore anticipated that each suitable park will 
have only a small number of commercial bookings in any one year.  All 
events taking place will be managed to a high standard by the Arts and 
Events team who have extensive experience in this.  

 
6.3 The need for the Council to become more efficient at generating income is 

clear and the current economic challenges to all Local Authorities will not 
change in the near future.  Whilst fully appreciating the sensitivities and 
concerns of park users around the use of these spaces by commercial 
organisations and private users, the reality is that levels of activity will be low 
and subsequently impact will be fairly minimal in parks across the borough, 
including those on the Isle of Dogs.  All commercial activity will be monitored 
closely. 

 
6.4 It is therefore recommended that the Cabinet re-affirms its decision to enable 

corporate events in all suitable parks, including those on the Isle of Dogs and 
enable the marketing of specific parks within clear detailed guidelines for 
each space. 

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 A Council decision with financial consequences requires Cabinet 

consideration.  
 
7.2 The savings targets included in the 2011/12 budget include an additional 

£200k to be achieved through increased income from events in parks. 
 

7.3 Paragraph 4.2 refers to the Council resolution not to pursue commercial 
opportunities in the Isle of Dogs Parks, which will impact on the ability to 
achieve the savings target. This report is proposing that these parks are 
reinstated. 

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1. Under section 145 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has 

authority to make arrangements for the provision and doing of (or contribute 
to the expenses toward) an entertainment of any nature. This includes 
providing facilities in improving the development, practice, and 
understanding of the arts and the Council may set apart an area in any park 
or pleasure ground belonging to the Council or under its control as a venue 
for these purposes (section 145(2)(a) the Local Government Act 1972). 

 

Page 23



  

8.2. Under section 145(2) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council is able 
to authorise another person using a public park for these purposes on such 
terms and payment as the Council sees fit and may authorise others to make 
charges for admission. The Council also issue admission charges itself, and 
can further issue charges for refreshments and programmes supplied in 
connection with the event. 

 
8.3. It is important to note that the above provisions only apply to parks and open 

spaces that either belong to the Council, or are under the Council’s control. 
Therefore consideration must be had to the ownership of each individual 
park in the Borough before any such events are authorised. 

 
8.4. By virtue of section 19(1)(f) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976, the Council has the authority to provide any 
recreational facilities as the authority considers fit and appropriate to provide. 
Section 19(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
further authorises the Council to make any such recreational facilities 
available for use with or without charge as the Council sees fit. 

 
8.5. The Council is empowered under section 2 of the Local Government Act 

2000 to do anything which it considers likely to promote the social, economic 
or environmental well being of Tower Hamlets, provided the action is not 
otherwise prohibited by statute.  This power includes the ability to incur 
expenditure or to give financial assistance to or enter into arrangements or 
agreements with any other person.  The power may be exercised in relation 
to, or for the benefit of: (a) the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets; or (b) all 
or any persons resident in Tower Hamlets.  In exercising the power, regard 
must be had to the Community Plan and there should be evidence to support 
any conclusion about likely benefits.  Efficiency is a cross-cutting theme in 
the Tower Hamlets Community Plan. 

 
8.6. The Council has a duty under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 to 

make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which 
its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  This includes an obligation to make best use of 
the assets that it has at its disposal. 

 
8.7. Having regard to section 13 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local 

Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, the 
functions referred to in paragraphs 8.1 to 8.6 above are executive functions. 

 
8.8. Any authorised events must comply with the relevant legislation in ensuring 

that any events are properly regulated.  Such legislation may include (but is 
not limited to): 

 

• Licensing Act 2003 

• Environmental Protection Act 1990 and all associated regulations. 

• Environment Act 1995 and all associated regulations. 

• Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and all associated regulations.  

• Equality Act 2010. 

Page 24



  

• Food Safety Act 1990 and all associated regulations. 

• Construction (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1996 and all 
associated regulations. 

• Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations (COSHH) 
2002 Highly Flammable Liquids and LPG Regulations 1972  

 
8.9. Before agreeing to pursue income generating opportunities in parks, the 

Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct 
under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and 
the need to foster good relations between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who don’t.  Material relevant to this consideration is 
contained within the report. 

 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Events in parks, whether free or commercial, provide similar opportunities for 

communities to come together and commercial income is required to fund 
free events such as fireworks which are widely enjoyed by our community. 

 
9.2 The particular impacts of events, including any equality impacts, will be 

considered on a case by case basis prior to the Council agreeing that an 
event may proceed. 

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 As indicated below, those who hire the facilities will be expected to conform 

to Council sustainability policies, e.g. by recycling waste. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 The proposals in this report with regard to income generating events provide 

the least risk to future income generation.   
 
11.2 Promoters of all events in parks are required to provide bonds which ensure 

that any damage arising from the event is re-instated.  They are advised of 
council’s policies on sustainability and required to adhere to them 

 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 Whilst events could have the potential to generate anti-social behaviour they 

are planned in full consultation with the Police and all plans are approved by 
the Safety Advisory Group which has Police and other emergency services 
representation 

 

13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

13.1 Opportunities for income generation from corporate and private events and 
commercial events in other venues will be marketed in 2011. 

 
14. APPENDICES 

Page 25



  

 
Nil 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 
 

 

Page 26



 
 

 

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet / Overview and 
Scrutiny 
 

Date: 

 
February 2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  

 
Corporate Director Development and 
Renewal 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Nick Smales - Service Head Economic 
Development and Olympic Legacy 

 

Title:  

 
Enterprise Strategy 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Cllr. Shafiqul Haque - Lead Member Employment  

Community Plan Theme 
 

Prosperous Communities 

Strategic Priority 
 

Supporting more people into work and improving employment 
skills; and 
 
Fostering enterprise and entrepreneurship 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The draft Strategy was widely circulated for comment to internal and external 

stakeholders during late April and throughout May 2011.   

1.2 Comments from the consultation exercise have been considered and taken 
into account and a final (post consultation) draft is attached for adoption by 
Cabinet. 

  
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Note the extensive consultation process undertaken for the draft Enterprise 
Strategy and the amendments made to the document   

 
2.2 Agree to the Strategy and the proposed action plan going forward to Full 

Council for approval. 
 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Local Economic Assessment, completed during 2010, concluded that 

Tower Hamlets was a place like no other facing “both challenges and 
opportunities like no other local authority.” The economic transformation of the 
Borough in the past two decades has made the Borough’s economy 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 27



 
 

 

significant in a global context and yet the Borough has the second lowest 
employment rate in London despite there being three jobs for every two 
residents in the Borough.  

3.2 The Employment Strategy adopted by Cabinet in May 2011 seeks to focus 
activity on supporting residents into the labour market, essentially responding 
to labour market supply. It is also necessary to consider the demand side of 
the labour market i.e. the ability of the enterprise economy to grow and create 
jobs and opportunities for local Tower Hamlets residents. The Enterprise 
Strategy therefore provides a focus for the Council and its partners concerned 
with the growth and relevance of the demand side of economic development 
in the Borough. 

 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The principal focus for the Council and its partners is clearly to respond to 

the worklessness challenge, supporting more residents into work which is a 
function of the recently adopted Employment Strategy and thus the option of 
continuing economic development activity guided solely by the Employment 
Strategy was considered. 

 
4.2 However given the significant evidence base generated from the LEA and 

the aim of ensuring greater employment and enterprise opportunities for 
local residents via a greater understanding and development of interventions 
on the demand side development of the first Enterprise Strategy was 
considered the most appropriate option.      

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The strategy considers the structure of the Tower Hamlets economy 

including its transformation from a de-industrialising, traditional economy to a 
predominantly knowledge based, higher skilled, service economy. 

 
5.2 Transformation has been driven by the emergence of the financial and 

business services cluster and this sector is forecast to continue to grow 
further over the next decade. However, whilst the Tower Hamlets economy 
has been hugely successful in the past decade its benefits and relevance to 
Tower Hamlets residents is not comprehensive and there remains the need 
to maintain a broad based, diverse economic structure which supports the 
start up, development and growth of businesses in the Borough in growth 
sectors in addition to financial and business services.   

 
5.3 The Council and its partners have the ability to shape and influence the 

enterprise environment and the Enterprise Strategy has been developed to 
respond to the objective of supporting enterprise and entrepreneurial activity 
for the benefit of local people. 

 
 

Page 28



 
 

 

6. BODY OF REPORT 
 

6.1 The Tower Hamlets economy has transformed over the past three decades 
and is now worth around £6 billion annually. In the decade to 2008 
employment grew in the Borough by around 60% so that there are now 
around 1.4 jobs accommodated in the Borough for every working age 
resident. 

6.2 The growth has been characterised by the emergence of the Financial 
Services Sector and Business Services sector clustered around Canary Wharf 
and the City Fringe. These sectors account for over half of all jobs in the 
Borough. There is however evidence that there is a ripple effect emerging 
across the Borough with reference to auxiliary services serving the principal 
clusters.   

 
6.3 Traditional industries have declined as the economy transitions from a 

traditional industrial economy into a knowledge based / service sector 
economy and manufacturing now accounts for around 5% of employment in 
the Borough which drops to 2% if the classification of newspaper publishing is 
discounted from the wider manufacturing category. 

 
6.4 There is a healthy rate of business births in the Borough and there is evidence 

of SME growth above England averages. The greatest number of businesses 
exist in the Wholesale and Retail and Business Activities sectors.  

 
6.5 Issues within the enterprise economy include the need to close the gap 

between the skills increasingly demanded by the knowledge economy and the 
skills levels of local residents; the limited supply and affordability of space for 
small businesses; access to financing for start up and small businesses and a 
fragmented business advice network.   

 
6.6 Overall the Enterprise Strategy seeks to provide the context for the 

maintenance of a vibrant and growing economy which benefits the local 
population. Accordingly the draft Strategy establishes the overall aim of the 
Strategy as to encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity 
to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

 
6.7 The Strategy includes: 

• an overview of the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy (chapter 2, What 
is happening in the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy) 

• information about key stakeholders (chapter 3, Who’s who in relation to 
Enterprise) 

• a summary of the key issues facing the enterprise economy in the 
borough (chapter 4, Challenges) 

6.8 The key conclusions of each of these sections are summarised below: 

6.9 What is happening in the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy 

Page 29



 
 

 

6.9.1 Enterprise is strong in Tower Hamlets and the economic picture is 
broadly positive. There has been a major and long-term shift towards 
financial services. Financial services help to fuel a cluster of other 
businesses, buying in services and supplies and spending money 
locally, including through their employees. This in turn creates 
opportunities for a broad range of business services. Functionally, 
Tower Hamlets is now part of the central London economy. 

6.9.2 These changes bring some tensions, as traditional sectors continue to 
decline, but new opportunities exist. Besides financial and business 
services, tourism, creative industries and knowledge-based industries 
are growth sectors which are not directly part of the financial and 
business services cluster and offer greater diversity. Tower Hamlets 
has a higher than average level of business starts, indicating that there 
are enterprising local people. 

6.10 Who’s who in relation to Enterprise 

6.10.1 There are different types of business in the borough, which have 
different characteristics and therefore require different responses from 
an enterprise strategy. Four key types of business are outlined. Within 
Tower Hamlets there are also services which exist to support 
enterprise, for instance through providing finance and advice, and this 
includes a particular role for the Council. Generally speaking, the 
borough and partners have a greater role to play in supporting 
enterprises which are more locally focused in terms of the markets they 
serve and/or the people they employ. 

6.11 Challenges  

6.11.1 The skills gap - residents and borough businesses A high proportion of 
local residents lack basic skills, and there is a predominance of job 
opportunities that are either at entry level or require a very high level of 
skills – with relatively little in between. Tackling both these issues will 
have benefits for both businesses and residents. The Employment 
Strategy suggests how the Council and its partners can improve 
residents’ access to jobs by raising their skills levels. The challenge for 
the Enterprise Strategy is to support enterprise, encourage growth and 
support a diverse, sustainable business base that generates 
employment within the borough and that local people can access. 

6.11.2 Relatively low rate of self-employment Overall, self-employment 
appears to be underperforming in Tower Hamlets, in terms of its 
contribution to the borough’s enterprise economy and specifically in its 
contribution to employment. However, there has been a significant 
increase in self-employment rates in the borough in recent years, 
particularly among women, and female self-employment rates are 
relatively strong. The Council and its partners need a fuller and more 
detailed understanding of the issues relating to self-employment in 
Tower Hamlets, in order to inform business support provision so as to 

Page 30



 
 

 

maximise the contribution self-employment can make to tackling 
unemployment. 

6.11.3 Limited resources for business Business support provision is under 
increasing threat, owing to funding reductions and uncertainty about 
future funding. The existing services have finite resources and are 
probably not sufficient to fully meet local needs. There are also signs 
that the sources of finance for enterprise in Tower Hamlets may be 
limited, and constraining business operation and expansion. The 
Enterprise Strategy should provide a framework for coordinating 
provision in order to maximise the impact of scarce resources. 

6.11.4 Underperforming town centres Improving the performance of the 
borough’s town centres has the potential to retain more spending 
locally, support a more diverse economy in Tower Hamlets, and 
increase the number and range of jobs available to residents. The 
Enterprise Strategy can support the delivery of the Town Centre Spatial 
Strategy by ensuring that business support provision meets the needs 
of existing town centre businesses, and encouraging a wider range of 
businesses, particularly SMEs, to locate in the borough’s town centres. 

6.11.5 Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses There is a shortage of 
workspace for SMEs in Tower Hamlets, which risks pushing business 
start-ups and growing businesses out of the borough. These 
enterprises are vital for the strength of the local enterprise economy 
and could provide substantial employment opportunities to local people. 
Improving the supply of flexible workspace would support small and 
growing businesses and, if located in parts of Tower Hamlets other 
than Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, could support the commercial 
viability of town centres in the borough. The Enterprise Strategy can 
help to address this issue by promoting the development of appropriate 
workspace, particularly in town centres. 

6.12 Having reviewed the evidence base and identified the key challenges, the 
Strategy proposes a series of strategic and intermediate objectives for the 
Council and its partners in meeting the identified challenges and supporting 
the borough’s enterprise economy. These are set out in the next section. 

  
 

Page 31



 
 

 

7. STRATEGY AIMS and OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 It has always been the intention to express the overall purpose or aim of the 

strategy as straightforwardly as possible to provide coalescence around a 
clear purpose and thus the strategic aim for the Strategy has been developed 
as to encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to 
increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets  

   
7.6 In order to define how progress can be made against the overall aim and 

reflecting comments made in the consultation process, three Strategic 
Objectives have been developed. The table overleaf provides the read 
through from the strategy aim to the strategic objectives and then to the 
intermediate objectives which in turn provide the context for the development 
and delivery of activity. 

 

Table: Aim and Objectives Read Through 

AIM STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE INTERMEDIATE OBJECTIVE 

1.1Co-ordinate and strengthen enterprise 
support services and access to finance 

1.2 Work with large organisations and 
business to harness their resources for 
the benefit of SMEs 

1. Support the 
establishment, growth 
and development of 
SMEs. 

 

1.3 Support social enterprise 

2.1 Secure premises to support business 
growth 

2.2 Ensure that the physical 
environment, including town centres, is 
suitable for a range of businesses 

2. Provide an environment 
that supports a thriving 
and diverse economic 
base 

 

2.3 Encouraging an entrepreneurial spirit 
and a culture of innovation 

3.1 Develop Tower Hamlets enterprise 
voice 

3.2 Influence the policy context to 
maintain a diverse and sustainable 
economy 

To encourage and 
support enterprise and 
entrepreneurial 
activity to increase 
opportunity, 
prosperity and 
mobility in Tower 
Hamlets 

3. Support the borough’s 
enterprise economy by 
communicating local 
needs and wishes to 
influence a variety of 
audiences 

 

3.3 Promote Tower Hamlets as a location 
for investment and enterprise, and a 
destination for visitors 

 

Page 32



 
 

 

8. CONSULTATION   

8.1 As referenced above throughout late April and most of May the draft strategy 
(considered by MAB in April) was subject to consultation and a number of 
comments were received and the Strategy revised accordingly.  

8.2 Generally the consultation draft Strategy was well received by external 
agencies including some strongly positive feedback e.g. 

• “The Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy…….is a very comprehensive 
document, and we at the centre welcome support for enterprise”  

(East London Small Business Centre) 

• “The Executive Summary and Context sections show thorough research 
and set the scene well.” 

• “Overall, a good strategy that has the potential to deliver change and 
results”  

(East London Business Place) 

8.3 With reference to comments concerned with areas for strengthening / 
attention these fell into two principal areas, the role of the voluntary / third 
sector in supporting social enterprise and how the Strategy could help 
residents obtain jobs in the local enterprise economy. 

8.4 As a result of the consultation process and responding to internal comment 
the structure of the strategy has changes to provide a greater focus on why it 
is necessary in a Borough such as Tower Hamlets for the Council to develop 
an Enterprise Strategy and the purpose behind the proposed interventions in 
the enterprise economy.  

8.5 A report on the detail of the consultation and the strategy response is 
attached at Appendix 3. 

  

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
9.1 This report asks Cabinet to approve the Enterprise Strategy following the 

stakeholder consultation that has recently taken place. 
 
9.2 As is the case with the closely related Employment Strategy, the objectives 

contained within the Enterprise Strategy set out a range of activities and 
priorities for the Council and key partners providing a clear focus for 
ensuring that available resources are targeted to and in line with these 
priorities. 

 
9.3 Whilst there are no specific financial consequences arising from the 

recommendations in the report, delivery of the strategy will be extremely 

Page 33



 
 

 

challenging in the current economic climate, and will require a co-ordinated 
approach and aligning of funding from all major partners. It will also require 
that best value for money is obtained from limited sources of external 
funding, given that the Council’s mainstream resources to support the 
Enterprise Strategy are extremely limited.     

 
 
10. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
10.1. There is no statutory requirement for the Council to adopt an enterprise 

strategy.  It is understood that the strategy is being brought forward to further 
the Council’s sustainable community strategy, as expressed in the Community 
Plan.  This may be underpinned by the Council’s well-being power, set out in 
section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000.  

 
10.2. The Council is empowered under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 

to do anything which it considers likely to promote the social, economic or 
environmental well being of Tower Hamlets, provided the action is not 
otherwise prohibited by statute.  The power may be exercised in relation to, or 
for the benefit of: (a) the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets; or (b) all or any 
persons resident in Tower Hamlets.  In exercising the power, regard must be 
had to the Community Plan.  The Council should be satisfied that there is 
appropriate evidence to suggest that the strategy will relevantly promote well-
being. 

 
10.3. In the absence of any statutory obligation to consult, it is still good practice for 

consultation to be undertaken at a time when proposals are still at a formative 
stage, to include sufficient information to allow those consulted to give 
intelligent consideration and response and to allow adequate time for this 
purpose.  A report on the consultation conducted is provided with the report. 

 
10.4. The enterprise strategy plays a companion role to the Council’s employment 

strategy and will assist the Council to realise the priorities of the Community 
Plan insofar as the strategy will be a document informing Development Plan 
Documents including the Development Management DPD and Site and 
Place-Making DPD. 

 
10.5. The enterprise strategy is not proposed to eventually be adopted as a Local 

Development Framework (LDF) planning document, rather it is an overarching 
strategy that will inform the LDF, and therefore will not attract the same 
weighting in terms of the Council’s local planning policy.  Such approval raises 
no immediate legal implications. 

 
10.6. Before making the proposed order, the Council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  An 
equality impact assessment has been prepared and this may assist the 
Council to meet its statutory equality duty. 

Page 34



 
 

 

 
11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
11.1 The overall aim of the strategy is to Strategy is to increase opportunity, 

prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets consistent with the Vision and 
Priorities expressed in the Tower Hamlets Community Plan. 

 
11.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the 

strategy development process.  The Equalities Impact Assessment has 
concluded that the approach taken in developing the strategy will have a 
positive impact on equality of opportunity in the borough, as intended.  It 
recognises and acknowledges the diversity of the Tower Hamlets population 
and business base by ensuring that initiatives will be implemented and 
monitored to ensure substantial benefit for these diverse groups and to 
provide support for any group which, in terms of business support and 
involvement is disadvantaged compared with the others. 

 
11.3 Following the impact assessment it is not anticipated that the Strategy will 

lead to any discrimination or other behaviour that has been prohibited by the 
Equality Act 2010. 

 

 
12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
12.1 The strategy sets objectives around creating opportunity within the local 

supply chains which if realised will lessen the carbon footprint whilst 
capturing business activity and wealth within the Borough.     

 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 The principal risk for the Enterprise Strategy is around execution and the full 

engagement of key partners which are fundamental to the aims of the 
strategy. For example the need for better coordination of a fragmented 
business and enterprise support network in the Borough requires the 
engagement and commitment of business agencies operating in the 
Borough and thus without their participation and support the ability to join up 
/ coordinate services better will be more difficult. 

 
14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The aim of the strategy is to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in 

the Borough through supporting an enterprise economy that creates jobs 
and wealth for local residents. Increasing available employment 
opportunities to match the refreshed Employment Strategy aim of increasing 
the number of residents in work will make a positive contribution to the 
reduction of crime and disorder.   

 
 
15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

Page 35



 
 

 

15.1 The Enterprise Strategy has been developed from within the context of a 
changed policy environment and therefore a number of efficiencies can be 
identified from delivery of objectives and from the development of a strategic 
approach. 

 
15.2 Having a robust, partnership agreed strategy can reduce inefficiencies within 

the enterprise, business support network and support bidding for and 
leverage of national / regional and local resources are targeted against 
Tower Hamlets priorities. Given the changed policy context in which the 
public sector can only bid for Regional Growth Fund with the private sector 
having clearly articulated aims and objectives which are agreed with and by 
partners will support Tower Hamlets voice in attracting funds and within new 
governance structures such as the pan London Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP).    

 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Enterprise Strategy 
Appendix 2 – Indicative Action Plan 
Appendix 3 – Consultation Response document 
Appendix 4 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Tower Hamlets Local Economic 
Assessment (December 2010, vols 1-4) 

Nick Smales 
Service Head  
x 4628 

 
 
 

Page 36



 

 

Tower Hamlets 

Enterprise Strategy 
January 2012 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

 2 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

Contents 

 

Executive Summary .................................................................................................. 3 

1. Introduction ........................................................................................................ 5 

1.1 Strategic Context ......................................................................................... 5 

1.2 Why Enterprise is Important......................................................................... 5 

1.3 The Cost of Not Taking Action ..................................................................... 6 

1.4 Principles..................................................................................................... 7 

1.5 Contents of This Strategy ............................................................................ 7 

2. What is happening in the Tower Hamlets enterprise economy ........................... 8 

2.1 The Rate of Change .................................................................................... 8 

2.2 A Central London Economy......................................................................... 9 

2.3 Growth of Financial Services, Decline of traditional Sectors ...................... 10 

2.4 Financial Business Service Clustering ....................................................... 12 

2.5 Other Sectors of Growth ............................................................................ 14 

2.6 An Enterprising Economy .......................................................................... 15 

3. Who’s who in relation to Enterprise .................................................................. 17 

3.1 Stakeholders and Contributors to the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy17 

3.2 Types of enterprise.................................................................................... 17 

3.3 Creating an environment for enterprise to prosper..................................... 21 

3.4 The role of the council ............................................................................... 23 

4. Challenges ....................................................................................................... 25 

4.1 The Skills Gap – Residents and Borough Businesses ............................... 25 

4.2 Relatively Low Rate of Self-employment.................................................... 27 

4.3 Limited Resources for Business ................................................................ 29 

4.4 Underperforming Town Centres................................................................. 31 

4.5 Lack of Suitable Workspace for Small Businesses .................................... 33 

5. Objectives ........................................................................................................ 36 

 

Glossary.................................................................................................................. 45 

 

Page 38



 

 3 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

Executive Summary 

Enterprise benefits Tower Hamlets in many ways. It offers employment and brings 
wealth into the borough, some of which is spent locally, supporting retail and 
recreational areas, and making public spaces more vibrant. 

However, it is vital that residents can make the most of the opportunities enterprise 
brings and, in a borough where deprivation is still pronounced, it is right that the 
Council and partners work together to make this potential for further improvements to 
everyone’s quality of life a reality. When these elements work together, the virtuous 
cycle established benefits both residents and businesses. 

As such, the Enterprise Strategy fits closely with the aims of the Core Strategy and 
Prosperous Communities. The aim of the Enterprise Strategy is to encourage and 
support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase opportunity, prosperity and 
mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

Tower Hamlets has a strong base on which to build, including its strategic location 
and a positive economic outlook. It has experienced very rapid employment growth 
and is functionally part of the central London economy. The profound shift to financial 
services creates additional jobs in associated sectors and this business cluster will 
continue to be vital to the development of the borough. Residents in Tower Hamlets 
are enterprising and it is a dynamic environment for new and existing businesses. 

Alongside growth, there is also transition. Traditional sectors are in decline, whilst 
others such as tourism, creative and knowledge-based industries offer exciting 
possibilities for renewed growth and diversification. As a result, some types of 
business and enterprise sectors therefore deserve particular encouragement and 
support so that the advantages of enterprise increasingly complement the wellbeing 
of the borough’s population. It should also be noted that some businesses, including 
social enterprises, tend to have a local focus in terms of the markets they serve and 
the people they employ. The Strategy seeks to identify some of the differences 
between businesses as well as the partners and support services, most notably 
advice and finance, that all have a stake in success. 

Tower Hamlets faces a number of challenges with regards to strengthening its 
economy to provide a fertile ground for enterprise from which residents can benefit. 
These can be grouped as: 

Economy and employment issues – despite the many jobs which exist in 
Tower Hamlets, residents struggle to access them and employers report skills 
gaps. Without qualifications and training, combined with work experience, 
businesses and residents alike lose out. There is also a lower rate of male 
self-employment in Tower Hamlets than elsewhere. Addressing these issues 
stands to increase the opportunities for local people to access local jobs. This 
supports the Employment Strategy’s aim of increasing employment. 

Resource issues – despite the hard work of support agencies within and 
beyond the borough, high demand for these services results in gaps in 
provision. It is also unclear whether the right kinds of funding are available to 
businesses when they need them, which is a particular issue for smaller 
businesses and start ups. Efficiently co-ordinating and resourcing the 
agencies which can help with training, capacity building, access to suppliers 
(particularly in Canary Wharf and the City Fringe) and finance will support 

Page 39



 

 4 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

further growth and diversity in the economy where local people can play a 
greater role as entrepreneurs and employers. 

Spatial issues – the supply of smaller office premises is low and Tower 
Hamlets has many minor town centres which could be made more attractive 
to community facing and other local enterprises. The Council can influence 
this through its planning and development powers. Improving the physical 
infrastructure and providing more B1 units, better retail environments, and 
clearer town centres, connected by even better transport, will foster business 
growth. This can bring further jobs into the reach of residents at the same 
time as providing goods and services which people want in town centres 
which are more welcoming. 

Ongoing success is not guaranteed and will not come without effort from all 
stakeholders in the local economy. Based on the aim and in response to the 
challenges, three objectives are proposed. These are to: 

1. Support the establishment, growth and development of SMEs. This 
includes working with large business and the public sector in terms of 
procurement and corporate social responsibility for SMEs and social 
enterprise. Support services and access to finance are also areas to 
strengthen here. 

2. Provide an environment that supports a thriving and diverse economic 
base. This is physical – relating to business premises and better town centres 
– but is also about encouraging innovation and an entrepreneurial spirit, so 
that businesses continue to thrive, with Tower Hamlets’ residents in strong 
positions. 

3. Support the borough’s enterprise economy by communicating local 
needs and wishes to influence a variety of audiences. By making it easier for 
Tower Hamlets’ enterprises to voice their strengths and concerns, the Council 
and partners can both influence policy and promote the borough as a 
destination and location for enterprise. 

Active work on all of these fronts will indeed encourage and support enterprise and 
entrepreneurial activity to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower 
Hamlets. This Strategy, its objectives, and the first accompanying action plan – which 
will be updated annually – set the stage for accomplishing this. The Council looks 
forward to working with partners, including the businesses themselves as well as 
support agencies and the people of Tower Hamlets, to fulfil the aim. 

Page 40



 

 5 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

1. Introduction 

1.1 Strategic Context 

The Enterprise Strategy fits within the context of the vision for “Prosperous 
Communities”, as set out in the Council’s Community Plan: 

“We aim to create a Tower Hamlets in which everyone, regardless of their 
background and circumstances, has the aspiration and opportunity to achieve 
their full potential. At the heart of this theme is a focus on combating social 
exclusion, reducing poverty and improving the life chances of all residents.” 

The Community Plan has a fundamental influence on all Council strategies which can 
affect the chance for residents to have “the aspiration and opportunity to achieve 
their full potential”. 

This Enterprise Strategy has been written to complement other Council strategies. 
Specifically, it sits as a companion to the borough Employment Strategy, in 
recognition of the synergy and overlap between workforce and economy. 

The aim of the Enterprise Strategy is to: 

encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase 
opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets 

The Enterprise Strategy provides the basis for intervention and the proposed 
direction for achieving the chosen objectives. This will require work on the part of the 
Council by, with and for local enterprises, in conjunction with other stakeholders in 
the borough. 

1.2 Why Enterprise is Important 

Enterprise is important to Tower Hamlets in a number of respects: 

• Enterprise creates opportunities for employment – enterprises provide 
jobs which local residents can apply for (although it should be noted that less 
than a third (31%) of working residents work in the borough, with the rest 
working outside it).1 The degree to which job opportunities are available and 
open to local residents contributes to the well being of residents and 
communities, as well as the achievement of other borough goals, including 
reducing child poverty. This Enterprise Strategy concentrates on the demand 
side of employment for local residents. 

• Enterprise is a means for residents to create wealth – many Tower 
Hamlets residents earn a living by owning a business or being self-employed. 
The borough is an entrepreneurial place, and generations of residents have 
relied on their entrepreneurial activity as a means of social mobility. 

• Enterprise fuels local economic activity – the local economy is composed 
of individual enterprises, which can to a greater or lesser extent support other 
local enterprises and local communities. Such support can be through normal 
commercial activity, or through specific initiatives, such as Corporate Social 
Responsibility policies and social enterprise. The Strategy suggests how such 
support can best be focused. 

                                                
1
  Source: Annual Population Survey 2008 

Page 41



 

 6 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

• Enterprise improves the local environment – businesses animate and 
invest in spaces for offices and retail, supporting the creation of sustainable 
neighbourhoods which people want to live near and visit. 

The key question this Strategy seeks to address is what the Council and its partners 
can effectively do to support the local enterprise economy to both achieve its growth 
potential and foster new opportunities through business for borough residents. While 
growth forecasts for the borough have generally been positive, they are not inevitable 
and the Council wishes to ensure that the potential opportunity that growth 
represents is turned into real improvements for the borough’s businesses and 
residents. 

This is partly a matter of how initiatives can make a difference, and partly about how 
the transformation can be accomplished when resources are very limited. The 
objectives and the action plan proposed are designed to show how this can be done. 

1.3 The Cost of Not Taking Action 

While the Tower Hamlets economy has experienced some of the highest 
employment growth in Europe in the last decade, it remains a deprived borough, with 
the second lowest working age employment rate in London at 59.4%2 (roughly 10 
percentage points behind the London average of 70.2%). With low employment 
comes economic exclusion. Whilst the 2010 Indices of Deprivation (IMD) show that 
Tower Hamlets has moved up from being the second most deprived borough in the 
country, its rank of seventh in 2010 (the third most deprived borough in London) 
shows that there is a long way to go. While more than a tenth of working residents 
earn over £100k p.a., compared to 2% for London as a whole, some 47% of 
residents are on benefits. This is a dramatic demonstration of the contrasts evident in 
one of the world’s most diverse urban environments. 

These challenges cannot be solved by any one strategy. But by ensuring a fertile 
ground for enterprises within the borough, new employment opportunities will arise 
which borough residents may be able to capitalise on, benefitting the individuals but 
also their families and communities. In particular many of the groups most excluded 
from the workplace, such as those with families or disabilities, are those which would 
most benefit from local employment. Removing barriers to new business starts in 
particular is likely to be of real benefit to borough residents in the future. This 
Enterprise Strategy therefore seeks to encourage a diverse, sustainable local 
enterprise economy, where borough residents can gain employment and take part in 
entrepreneurial activity, whether through self employment or by setting up a 
business. 

                                                
2
 97,800 residents - Annual Population Survey, ONS. Nov 2010 

Page 42



 

 7 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

 

1.4 Principles 

Both the Strategy itself and individual initiatives stemming from it are underpinned by 
the following four principles.  

1. Partnership Working and Stakeholder Participation – the Council will work 
with strategic and delivery partners to achieve its aim, as well as providing 
ample opportunities for those affected by the Strategy and action plans to 
help shape them. 

2. Data and Evidence – as the basis for ensuring that actions have a strong 
likelihood of having a positive impact through enterprise on borough residents 
and businesses. 

3. Equalities and Diversity – in recognition of the diversity of Tower Hamlets’ 
population and business base. This includes ensuring substantial benefit for 
the diverse groups which make up Tower Hamlets’ population and supporting 
any group which, in terms of business support or involvement in the wider 
business community, is disadvantaged compared with the others. 

4. Sustainable Development – policies and programmes will seek to support 
economic, social and environmental goals simultaneously taking into account 
the needs of current and future generations. 

 

These are applied in the Enterprise Strategy specifically to the establishment and/or 
growth of local enterprises. 

1.5 Contents of This Strategy 

This Strategy examines the main features of the borough’s enterprise economy and 
how it is changing. This is followed by an analysis of the different types of businesses 
and enterprise stakeholders in Tower Hamlets. The shortcomings of the present 
enterprise economy from the point of view of local residents are presented, as is 
what the Council and partners can do to improve the situation. 

Lastly, strategic objectives and proposed outcomes are set out showing what the 
Council and its partners will do to promote a positive enterprise environment and 
economy for the benefit of both resident and businesses. 

 

Key messages 

Enterprise has the potential to benefit the borough in a variety of ways, including 
creating employment, creating wealth and revenue within the borough, and 
making the physical environment more attractive. This strategy is about how the 
Council and partners can encourage further enterprise growth, particularly in 
sectors of the borough economy that will more directly benefit borough residents. 
As such, it fits with the borough’s aspirations as expressed in the Core Strategy 
and the work on Prosperous Communities. 

Page 43



 

 8 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

2. What is happening in the Tower Hamlets enterprise economy 

Tower Hamlets has a thriving economy worth some £6bn per annum that provides 
almost 1.4 jobs for every working-age resident of the borough. The enterprise 
economy is in many ways the borough’s most significant strength and its growth has 
brought rapid and permanent change to the face of the borough, physically, 
economically and socially. Since the decline of the docks, Tower Hamlets has come 
to occupy a strategic location as development in London shifts eastwards. The Tower 
Hamlets Local Economic Assessment (LEA), produced last year, contained a full 
analysis of the enterprise economy, and forms the basis of this description of current 
trends. 

2.1 The Rate of Change 

Tower Hamlets has experienced phenomenal economic growth in recent decades. In 
the decade to 2008 employment in the borough grew by around 75,000 jobs, or 
almost 60%, some four times the rate for the wider London region. Although the 
borough’s population has also grown, by 45,000 since 2001, employment growth has 
far outpaced that of the population as a whole.  

With over 200,000 jobs within the borough, Tower Hamlets is now home to 5% of 
London’s employment. There are almost three jobs for every two residents of working 
age in the borough: if all residents of working age were to be employed in Tower 
Hamlets, there would still be 60,000 jobs to fill, giving Tower Hamlets the fifth highest 
job density in London. 

 

Figure 2.1 – Total Employment Change, 1998-2008 

 

Page 44



 

 9 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

As can be seen above, the borough’s employment growth in recent years has far 
outpaced that of the Five Host Boroughs, the capital average, and that of the UK as a 
whole. This growth has been driven by the two dominant sectors in the borough's 
economy: financial services employment has more than trebled over the decade and 
real estate and business services have more than doubled. That employment within 
the borough is projected to grow by another 25-50% in the coming decades is also 
largely down to the continued success of these sectors. 

2.2 A Central London Economy 

Tower Hamlets sits physically and economically on the boundary between the City of 
London and the rest of East London. Like the City and the rest of the Central London 
Business District, the borough’s economy has come to be dominated by financial and 
business services. These sectors provide around half of borough employment, in line 
with other Central London boroughs. This is in marked contrast to the rest of East 
London, including the other host boroughs, which are compared in the figure below. 

Figure 2.2 - Central, East and Host Borough Comparisons of Employment 

Structure, 2008 

 

 (Source: ABI / NLP Analysis) 

Strikingly, Tower Hamlets has over 200,000 jobs compared to approximately 337,000 
for all of the other host boroughs combined. Furthermore, the composition of jobs is 

Page 45



 

 10 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

markedly different. Financial intermediation, followed by real estate, renting and 
business activities, dominates.  

Employment within the borough is characterised by a high degree of in- and out- 
commuting, with 70% of working residents travelling outside of the borough to work, 
and 85% of jobs in the borough filled by those living elsewhere. This high level of 
commuting exchange is typical of other Central London boroughs and stands in 
marked contrast to the rest of East London. 

Although much has been made in recent years of Tower Hamlets’ place within the 
five Host Boroughs and wider East London, economically the borough is functionally 
part of the Central London Business District, as the above characteristics 
demonstrate. New developments, such as the expansion of Canary Wharf to Wood 
Wharf and the two Crossrail stations being built in the borough, will only serve to 
increase this distinction. 

These changes are undoubtedly good for the borough economy but are moderated 
by the risk that borough residents will be ill-placed to make the most of this 
opportunity. With only 15% of working age residents currently working in the 
borough, there is much work to be done to help residents capitalise on the growth 
and prosperity on their doorsteps. 

2.3 Growth of Financial Services, Decline of traditional Sectors  

Two geographical areas dominate enterprise in the borough, together providing 60% 
of employment – Canary Wharf and the Tower Hamlets City Fringe. The rise of 
Canary Wharf since the 1980s has acted as the prime engine of employment growth, 
providing a current total of 80,000 jobs, two-fifths of the borough’s employment. 
Alongside this, there has been a significant development and intensification in the 
Tower Hamlets City Fringe, especially in Spitalfields and Aldgate: this area now 
provides some 15% of the borough’s jobs. In both these areas this growth has largely 
been dominated by Financial and Business Services which, as the chart below 
indicates, now dominate employment in the borough. 

Figure 2.3 – Enterprise Sectors in Tower Hamlets by no. of Employees 

Manufacturing

Construction

Wholesale and Retail

Hotels and Restaurants

Transport, Storage and Comms

Financial Intermediation

Real Estate, Renting and Business Activities

Public Administration

Education

Health and Social Work

Community, Social and Personal Service
Activities  

Page 46



 

 11 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

Financial services and business services together amount to 55% of Tower Hamlets’ 
employment. This can be compared with an equivalent figure of 45% for Central 
London and around 20% for the other Host Boroughs and the rest of East London. 
Figure 2.3 shows the growth and contraction of job numbers in each sector over the 
period 1998-2008. Blue bars indicate a rate of change above the London average, 
whereas yellow bars mean below average change. 

Figure 2.4 - Tower Hamlets Sector Employment Growth, 1998-2008 

 

While the growth of financial services, real estate and other business services can be 
largely attributed to the transformation at Docklands, the significant growth in other 
sectors shows the underlying strength of the borough economy, with most sectors 
not only growing in the period, but growing faster than the London average. More 
‘traditional’ sectors of the economy, such as manufacturing, wholesaling and land 
transport have experienced significant decline, although the 40+% decline in land 
transport employment is less than that experienced by London as a whole. The shifts 
from industries requiring significant warehouse and factory space towards 
knowledge-based economic activity also have physical implications, as changes in 
employment patterns are reflected in land use. 

Page 47



 

 12 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

 

Figure 2.5 – Tower Hamlets Employment Space Change, 1998-2008 

 

As the figure above shows, employment space change within the borough has been 
far more dramatic than in London as a whole, with significant decline in the number 
of warehouses and factories and a marked increase in office floor space. It is no 
exaggeration to say that the face of the borough has been transformed by the 
clearance of industrial space and the rise of office towers in the last 20 years. 

 

2.4 Financial Business Service Clustering 

Although financial services and related firms are by far the biggest employers within 
Tower Hamlets, they should not be considered as isolated islands of employment: 
there is significant evidence that the concentration of financial services firms within 
the borough attracts other forms of employment. This “cluster affect” is indicated by 
the diagram below. 

Page 48



 

 13 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

 

Figure 2.6 – Composition of London Financial Service Cluster and 

Supporting Industries 

Fund and Asset 

Management

Management 

Consultancy

Legal Services Accountancy

Market 

Research

Insurance

Banks and 

Investment 

Banks

Government 

and Regulation

Media and 

Creative

Real Estate

ICT and 

Technology

Ancillary and 

Back Office

Retail and 

Leisure

C
o
re

 C
lu

s
te

r

L
in

ke
d
 C

lu
ste

rs

Fund and Asset 

Management

Management 

Consultancy

Legal Services Accountancy

Market 

Research

Insurance

Banks and 

Investment 

Banks

Government 

and Regulation

Media and 

Creative

Real Estate

ICT and 

Technology

Ancillary and 

Back Office

Retail and 

Leisure

C
o
re

 C
lu

s
te

r

L
in

ke
d
 C

lu
ste

rs

 

Source: NLP adapted from PMSU (2004) 

Each bank or insurance firm is linked to and supported by firms providing auxiliary 
financial, accountancy, legal and management services, with these firms in turn 
supported by others which enable them to function, including real estate, IT, media 
and creative firms. All these firms together can be linked less formally to the wider 
economy, directly or indirectly, through businesses and their employees spending 
money on goods and services such as shops, cafés, restaurants, bars, cleaning 
firms, catering, and other suppliers. Analysis from the LEA suggests that each job in 
a ‘tier 1’ bank or insurance firm directly supports almost one additional job in the 
immediate tiers below, and more in the wider economy. 

It is this cluster effect that is the strongest argument for continuing to encourage the 
attraction of high-level financial institutions to the borough, as each bank or insurance 
institution acts as a multiplier for support businesses. Thanks to this effect, the 
financial services sector is driving a transformation of the borough in three distinct 
areas: 

• in economy, with the exceptional GDP growth experienced by the borough 
being largely attributable to the sector; 

• in the physical environment, with increased development and marked 
changes to the volume and types of commercial space available in the 
borough; and 

• in jobs, with 40,000 banking and insurance jobs supporting 20,000 jobs in tier 
2 and 15,000 in tier 3. 

 

The importance of these large firms spending money locally should not be 
underestimated. Every pound spent within the borough is an opportunity for local 
enterprise and entrepreneurialism, which in turn supports a myriad of small and 

Page 49



 

 14 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

medium enterprises, fuelled by both employee and corporate spending. It is this 
breadth and diversity which has the greatest potential to benefit borough residents. 

2.5 Other Sectors of Growth 

The dominance of financial services in Canary Wharf powers the borough economy 
but can also skew perceptions of other sectors. Proportionally, the borough is under-
represented in sectors that typically make up the Central and East London 
economies, such as retail, tourism and ‘other’ services. Two key emerging sectors in 
the borough are tourism and leisure and creative services, both of which have 
significant potential for future growth. Taken together, they represent more evidence 
of the transition to a knowledge-based economy, which should prove more 
sustainable in the long term. It is also hoped that this more diverse economy will 
provide greater opportunities for local people through access to a variety of jobs at a 
range of skill levels. 

Tourism, retail and Leisure 

London is a global destination for tourists and the visitor economy was worth £14.2bn 
in 2007, accounting for 5.8% of London’s economy. Tower Hamlets has a world-class 
tourism destination in the Tower of London, and the borough plays a reasonably 
significant role within the capital, with the 7th largest tourism economy within London 
– worth £454m per annum3. While the proportion of tourism-related activities (which 
includes parts of the service sector) in Tower Hamlets (4.6%) is lower than the Host 
Borough average (6.3%), the sector employs some 7,300 people. 

Developing the tourism, retail and leisure sector involves a number of considerations, 
but it is clear that many core components are present, and simply require stitching 
together as part of a more coherent and communicable offer. There are real 
strengths in terms of: 

• Heritage – Whitechapel Art Gallery, the Ragged School Museum in Mile End, 
the V&A Museum of Childhood in Bethnal Green, and the Museum of 
Docklands 

• Shopping – high street and luxury brands at Canary Wharf, boutiques at 
Whitechapel and Brick Lane, and popular markets including Spitalfields, 
Columbia Road and Petticoat Lane 

• Cuisine and culture – Curry Capital 2012 is one current initiative, capitalising 
on the distinctiveness and city-wide reputation of Brick Lane as a culinary 
destination 

Focused marketing to sell the borough’s attractions and uniqueness could help foster 
significant growth in this sector.  

Creative industries 

The designation ‘cultural and creative industries’ cuts across usual sectors to include 
many businesses which trade in intellectual property, such as advertising, 
architecture, arts, crafts, design, media, music, performing arts, publishing and 
software. The creative industries sector now accounts for about 25,000 jobs in the 
borough and represent a second plank in the transition of Tower Hamlets towards a 
modern knowledge-based, high-skilled economy. 

                                                
3
 (according to 2006 GLA figures) 

Page 50



 

 15 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

Even excluding the design, craft, arts and antiques sub-sectors, the creative 
industries sector accounted for approximately 13.7% of local jobs in 2002, meaning 
that they contributed more to local employment than the education, health & social 
care sectors combined. Creative industries in Tower Hamlets have grown rapidly in 
the last few years and at a faster rate than average for London. 

Social Enterprises  

Another growing category of business with significant potential in Tower Hamlets is 
social enterprise. Social enterprises are businesses that specifically aim to solve 
social and environmental problems; they tend to be focused on areas the market has 
avoided and to employ local people and distribute profits locally. 

Available information – mainly anecdotal – suggests a substantial social enterprise 
presence in Tower Hamlets. There are significant examples of social enterprises in 
Tower Hamlets, some of which have a national profile. For instance, Tower Hamlets 
is home to the School for Social Entrepreneurs (SSE), itself a social enterprise, which 
offers training to those who are seeking to develop businesses with social benefit. 
Beyond the Barn, an initiative of the Bromley by Bow Centre, has incubated and 
launched 28 successful social enterprises since 2005, creating over 200 new jobs. 
While social enterprise may not be a large sector in terms of the number of 
enterprises, it is strategically important because of the opportunities it can create for 
local people. Socially focused businesses are more likely to be aligned to the needs 
of their communities and therefore have great potential to help achieve the aims of 
this Strategy. This mechanism is particularly timely for meeting social and economic 
objectives simultaneously, at a time when resources are limited and the economy is 
struggling. 

The shift in focus towards social enterprise is a national trend. Since Tower Hamlets 
already has some strengths in this area, it makes sense for the borough and partners 
to look for ways to support this growth and development. Finance will help local 
social enterprises grow and scale, and access to it is as vital as for any business. 
The local context of financial and business support in Tower Hamlets gives the 
borough a competitive edge in this area. For instance, current work by East London 
Small Business Centre with community development finance institutions could be 
complemented by collaboration with larger financial partners. The banks have 
already made some positive steps in this regard, with the support of JP Morgan for 
Big Society Capital being notable. The potential is to do more with less, for the 
benefit of enterprise and residents. 

2.6 An Enterprising Economy 

People in Tower Hamlets start businesses. The borough has the seventh highest 
number of business births within London and the tenth highest number of business 
deaths, consistently in line with Inner London averages. Despite a national downward 
trend from 2004 to 2008, Tower Hamlets is more enterprising in 2008 than it was in 
2004. While business deaths in the borough in 2009 increased faster than in London 
as a whole (by 45% compared to 35%), the rate of business births remained higher 
than the London average. These figures suggest that, even in challenging times, the 
borough economy is vibrant and enterprising. 

Levels of business starts within the borough are particularly high among the Black, 
Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities. The 2009 National Employer Skills 
Survey (NESS) shows that at least half the owners of, or partners in, Tower Hamlets 
businesses are BAME.  

Page 51



 

 16 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

On a more cautionary note, self-employment figures for the borough are lower than 
the London average, and this is especially true for men, where the gap is 3.1 
percentage points. For every percentage point that Tower Hamlets moves closer to 
the London average, this would represent approximately 800 jobs. However, it should 
be noted that while nationally self-employment tends to be low skilled, within Tower 
Hamlets it is people with higher levels of skills and incomes that take this route. 

Overall, then, Tower Hamlets residents start businesses, and those businesses 
operate across a full range of sectors, sizes and turnovers. While the number of self-
employed people within the borough may be below the national average, the income 
and skill levels of those who are self-employed is far higher than average, meaning 
that self-employed residents are much more likely to be working in business services 
than lower skilled occupations. BAME enterprises are a particular source of vitality 
and the population is young4 and increasingly well educated in the borough. There is 
clear potential in Tower Hamlets and harnessing all of these factors will support a 
competitive local economy and stimulate economic and employment growth. 

 

 

 

                                                

4 64.5% of borough residents are aged from 16-49, compared to the London average of 
54.8%, or the national figure of 47% (ONS, Resident Population Estimates by Broad Age 
Band for the period June 2009) 

Key conclusions 

Enterprise is strong in Tower Hamlets and the economic picture is broadly 
positive. There has been a major and long-term shift towards financial services. 
Financial services help to fuel a cluster of other businesses, buying in services 
and supplies and spending money locally, including through their employees. This 
in turn creates opportunities for a broad range of business services. Functionally, 
Tower Hamlets is now part of the central London economy. 

These changes bring some tensions, as traditional sectors continue to decline, but 
new opportunities exist. Besides financial and business services, tourism, creative 
industries and knowledge-based industries are growth sectors which are not 
directly part of the financial and business services cluster and offer greater 
diversity. Tower Hamlets has a higher than average level of business starts, 
indicating that there are enterprising local people. 

Page 52



 

 17 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

3. Who’s who in relation to Enterprise 

3.1 Stakeholders and Contributors to the Tower Hamlets Enterprise 

Economy 

Enterprise within Tower Hamlets is not homogenous. Although the economic context 
of Tower Hamlets is shared by all organisations in the borough, how it affects them 
can be very different. The businesses that work within the borough cover a broad 
spread of sectors, range in size from sole traders to large multinationals and require 
different means of support and accommodation by the borough in order to thrive. 
Understanding the differences between types of enterprises can help the Council and 
partners to shape appropriate responses. 

Similarly, there are a variety of other organisations that are stakeholders in the Tower 
Hamlets enterprise economy, from banks and enterprise support agencies to higher 
educational institutions and the third sector. All of these bodies have a stake in a 
successful Tower Hamlets and a role to play in supporting borough businesses. This 
section is intended as a framework for understanding the diversity of the current 
enterprise economy; it describes the roles and activities of enterprises, support 
organisations and of the Council with regards to the borough enterprise economy. 

3.2 Types of enterprise 

The table below suggests four main types of enterprise which are found in the 
borough, which are grouped together by characteristics such as size and market to 
help analysis, including the Council’s relationship with them. It should be noted that 
these categories are imperfect generalisations, designed primarily to help shape 
appropriate policies, and that there is some overlap between them. Categories 
attempt to combine the markets served, the perception of Tower Hamlets, and 
engagement needs by the Council and support agencies. 

 

Page 53



 

 18 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

 

Table 3.1: Categories of business in the Tower Hamlets economy 

Categories of 
businesses 

Market served Why enterprises are located 
within Tower Hamlets 

Global financial 
services: big banks and 
other global financial 
services 

Worldwide Suitable locations in Canary Wharf 
and the City Fringe – these types of 
business require central locations in 
major world cities 

Business services 
enterprises: businesses 
which tend to cluster with 
the financial businesses – 
for example legal firms, 
data processing 
businesses, and 
businesses whose 
profitability largely 
depends on a central 
London location – for 
example, accountants, 
branding agencies and 
architects 

Enterprises 
across London 
and the UK, but 
especially those 
in Canary Wharf 
and the City 
Fringe 

Within easy reach of clients in the 
City, the City Fringe and Canary 
Wharf, Tower Hamlets is seen as a 
central London location, and 
commercial rent levels are 
somewhat lower than other parts of 
central London 

Local community-facing 
enterprises: businesses 
which directly provide 
goods and/or services to 
Tower Hamlets residents 

Local residents To be accessible to residents and 
communities within the borough – 
mostly located in town centres.  
Also includes many social 
enterprises. 

Traditional sectors: 
surviving businesses 
from prominent sectors 
of traditional importance 
in the Tower Hamlets 
enterprise economy 

Local, regional 
and sometimes 
international 
markets 

Often surviving businesses from 
old enterprise clusters in Tower 
Hamlets: for example 
clothing/fashion and storage; or 
sectors such as construction, 
attracted by continual 
development in the borough.  

 

Each of these four business categories will now be considered in turn: 

Global financial services 

Thanks to the development of Canary Wharf, Tower Hamlets acts as a significant 
extension to the financial hub of the City of London, and has consequently attracted a 
high number of multinational financial institutions. These businesses have worldwide 
markets and often highly specialised requirements, drawing staff from all over the 
world. In terms of advocacy and support, it is highly unlikely that the Council could 
provide effective support in safeguarding the competitive position of these 
businesses. Nonetheless, the Council’s role as regulator is important, at least as far 
as planning is concerned. Here the principle should be to “do no harm”, and, within 

Page 54



 

 19 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

the planning strategic framework, to support the continued presence of banking and 
finance in Tower Hamlets. 

Considering the vital role that banks and financial institutions play in the borough’s 
enterprise economy, with the important clustering effect described in chapter 2, there 
is an important role the Council can play in representing the interests of these 
institutions to national Government. The views of the management of these 
businesses, along with all other local business views, should be sought to ensure 
that the Council is acting effectively as representative of the local enterprise economy 
in policy formation at different levels, with the London Mayor’s economic 
development policies being particularly significant. 

This Enterprise Strategy is concerned with the kind of benefit which local enterprises 
can provide, as much as the benefit which they can receive. Global financial 
businesses have a vital role as a potential supporter of local businesses. Their 
buying power for goods and services is comparable only to the Council and other 
large public agencies, and indeed this is one reason why business service 
enterprises are increasingly located in Tower Hamlets. Through Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) programmes, these large businesses can also take part in 
community-support activities such as encouraging their employees to act as business 
mentors. In this sense, it is hoped that global financial businesses can collaborate 
with the Council to provide effective support to the local enterprise economy. 

Another significant role that these enterprises can play in the borough economy is as 
employers of local residents. Although global financial businesses draw their 
workforce from a large area, the sheer number of employment opportunities provided 
by these businesses means that every effort should be made by the Council to 
encourage them to take on local people, and for the Council to support local 
residents in becoming ready to take on such employment. This is primarily dealt with 
in the Employment Strategy. 

Business services enterprises 

The business services sector is a highly significant part of the Tower Hamlets 
economy, with by far the largest number of enterprises and the second highest 
number of jobs in the borough. Although the category is a somewhat all-
encompassing designation, there are several common characteristics of many of 
these businesses, which are useful to draw out here. 

Within Tower Hamlets there are a range of business services enterprises that are 
attracted to the borough, either as part of the ‘cluster effect’ around the banks and 
financial intermediation businesses, or due to the borough’s location as part of the 
Central London Business District, or both. They provide a wide variety of different 
business activities: professional services, accountancy, advertising, recruitment, ICT, 
real estate, graphic design, and data businesses, to name but a few. These are 
businesses that have significant London-wide scope, but are drawn to the borough in 
part by the proximity of potential clients in Canary Wharf, the City Fringe and the City 
itself. Businesses in this category vary in size, but are much more likely to be Small- 
to Medium- sized Enterprises (SMEs) than those in the previous category. 

Thanks to the diverse nature of these businesses, growth within this category will 
lead to employment opportunities for local people that are much wider in scope than 
those provided by global businesses alone. Understanding and representing these 
sectors is therefore of particular importance given their increasing presence in Tower 

Page 55



 

 20 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

Hamlets and the benefits which they can provide for local residents. Specifically, the 
Council can take a supporting role for businesses in these sectors by: 

• encouraging the increased development of a local procurement network in 
which businesses can engage as both purchasers and suppliers; 

• working to ensure a sufficient supply of flexible workspace for new and 
growing small businesses; 

• supporting the Government’s Tech City proposals as a way of developing a 
concentration of new businesses and networks in Tower Hamlets; and 

• coordinating business advice and support services. 

Local community-facing enterprises 

Although a significant body of businesses relate primarily to finance and business 
services, there remains a substantial proportion of enterprises that are based within 
Tower Hamlets because they provide services specifically to borough residents. This 
category consists primarily of retail firms, but will also include professions which 
support these businesses, such as small accountancy and legal firms, as well as 
services for residents, for example, mechanics and residential estate agents. 

Of all the categories used here, this one is in some ways of most direct use to local 
residents, providing a wide range of entry-level jobs along with necessities for 
purchase. Mostly SMEs, these businesses can benefit significantly from good 
business support services, and, since many are located in high streets, they benefit 
from Council policies specifically targeted at town centres. Successful support for 
such businesses will in turn support economically successful town centres, and 
therefore help achieve Town Centre Spatial Strategy objectives. 

Certain businesses in this category – the restaurants in Brick Lane, the shops in 
Bethnal Green Road and the Columbia Road flower market, for example – now draw 
people from all over London and are gaining a reputation as destinations for tourists. 
It is hoped that the Olympic and Paralympic Games will bring an increased focus on 
the East End which these businesses will be able to capitalise on. 

Businesses in traditional sectors 

Historically Tower Hamlets has been a largely industrial region, with the docks, 
warehouses and factories along the Thames and River Lea acting as the borough’s 
most significant employer. While there has been a pronounced transition away from 
these heavier industries within the last 50 years, there are still significant employers 
within the borough from these more traditional sectors. Storage, wholesale and 
distribution businesses were particularly prominent at a time when the docks 
operated in the borough, and the borough has also had a long association with 
clothing manufacture and fashion, linked to cloth import from the docks, and the 
exclusion of certain preparation processes from the City of London in past centuries. 

The defining characteristics of these businesses are a combination of historical 
location and, often, a requirement for a large footprint. Most of these enterprises do 
not specifically serve borough residents and businesses although some, like 
construction firms, sit within this category and are attracted by the continued high 
levels of development within the borough. 

Businesses within this category provide somewhere in the region of 10% of 
employment within the borough, and are therefore significant to the future of the 
borough economy. However, the dense nature of Tower Hamlets, combined with a 
shift to higher value economic activities, means that land values are high and set to 

Page 56



 

 21 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

increase, which suggests that many of these firms will find it increasingly hard to 
remain competitive within the borough. 

While the Council values and desires to support all employers within the borough, 
there is a recognition that many traditional sectors are experiencing significant 
transition, which may include a need to relocate to areas with less financial pressure. 
The Council and its partners need to strike a balance between supporting significant 
local businesses and recognising that a prosperous future for the borough needs to 
recognise long-term changes in the nature of the economy and land use.  

3.3 Creating an environment for enterprise to prosper 

This Strategy is shaped by an understanding that some agencies including the public 
and third sectors have an important role to play in supporting enterprise and 
reinforcing its benefits for local people. The following types of organisation all have a 
role to play in creating a supportive environment for businesses within the borough. 
(Note: the words in italics in the diagram are examples of organisations in each 
category.) 

Fig 3.1 – The Business Support Environment 

 

Enterprise Support Agencies 

Enterprise support agencies operate at a variety of levels, including national, regional 
and local bodies. They are a valuable to enterprises at various stages of the business 
cycle, providing information, guidance, networking and sometimes avenues to 
financing. 

At the sub-regional level, there are two main enterprise support agencies operating 
within East London. These are:  

• The East London Small Business Centre (ELBSC): based in Brick Lane, this is 
the oldest surviving business support agency in the UK. It facilitates 300 new 
businesses starts, trains 1,000 people, and lends £2 million in funds to 
entrepreneurs each year across five east London boroughs: Tower Hamlets, 
Newham, Havering, Redbridge, and Barking and Dagenham. 

Page 57



 

 22 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

 

• East London Business Place (ELBP) is a supply chain development 
programme allied to a contract brokerage service led by Canary Wharf Group plc 
and supported by the East London Business Alliance (ELBA). It provides a free 
matching and sourcing service, connecting buyers and suppliers to maximise 
local business benefit from new developments and commercial precincts in east 
London. In particular, ELBP has, since 2008, helped Tower Hamlets based SMEs 
secure almost £38m of business and has helped more than 350 Tower Hamlets 
SMEs reach ‘Fit-to-Supply’ status through flexible 1-2-1 and one-to-many support 
activities. 

 

ELBA, which operates across the sub-region, also runs a number of projects that are 
relevant to the local enterprise economy – notably in providing networking 
opportunities for local businesses and in facilitating a transfer of skills to social 
enterprises. 

There are also capable support services based within the borough. Non-statutory 
provision locally comprises small and medium sized third sector business support 
agencies, such as Account 3, the Bromley by Bow Centre (particularly for social 
enterprises), the Spitalfields Small Business Association and the Cultural Industries 
Development Agency, and the Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development Agency, to 
name but a few. These bodies have a significant role to play within the borough, 
although some are vulnerable to reductions funding.  

Business Networking Groups 

Business Networking Groups help the borough to put forward a strong enterprise 
voice and contribute to a better understanding of the support needs of businesses in 
different stages of the enterprise lifecycle. Some have a tighter local focus, such as 
Brick Lane Business Association or Docklands Business Club, whereas others like 
Business Junction cross borough boundaries. Linking businesses together provides 
opportunities for learning and collaboration, and cross-sector groups can help 
develop the borough internal market and even foster new areas of business. 

The Third Sector 

The third sector in Tower Hamlets is well established and has particular advantages 
in the delivery of certain types of services, including those which seek to promote 
enterprise among hard to reach groups. Many third sector organisations are 
committed to encouraging enterprise starts among residents as a means of 
overcoming poverty and deprivation. And many third sector organisations themselves 
are interested in adopting social enterprise models to help their service users and 
diversify their incomes. Some of these could be in a position to offer services to 
businesses and public sector agencies in Tower Hamlets. While it is acknowledged 
that there can be an element of caution in interactions between the private and third 
sectors, there are many significant opportunities for cooperation which would benefit 
the aims of both. 

Higher Education Institutions 

The borough’s higher education institutions have a critical role to play in driving a 
knowledge and innovation based enterprise economy in Tower Hamlets, through the 
generation of ideas and the provision of a skilled, highly-qualified workforce. There 
are two universities in Tower Hamlets: the whole of Queen Mary, University of 

Page 58



 

 23 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

London, and part of London Metropolitan University. Both universities have seen a 
significant increase in research grants and private contracts in recent years, with 
research at Queen Mary now worth over £60m a year. 

In terms of enterprise development, knowledge transfer and innovations hubs, the 
Higher Education institutions have a very important role to play in fostering innovation 
among businesses and in the commercialisation of research. Among other business 
related activities, Queen Mary has three main initiatives which seek to engage with 
business in support of the knowledge economy. These are: 

• Queen Mary Innovation – provides a range of support to businesses 
including research collaborations, technology licensing, graduate placements 
and spin-out activities. 

• QUEDOS: Enterprise and Development Opportunities – offers 
professional development courses and opportunities for networking and 
engagement with likeminded individuals and businesses 

• ImpactQM – a knowledge transfer project aimed at creating a new generation 
of science and technology graduates, who are as at home in the world of 
business and enterprise as they are in science and technology 
 

While much of Queen Mary Innovation work over the next few years will be focused 
on biotechnology applications, a growing body of knowledge and innovation is in the 
interests of the whole borough economy, and links between borough businesses and 
higher education institutions should be encouraged. 

Banks 

Aside from being businesses in their own right, banks are vital to the functioning of 
business, as the basis for transactions and a source of finance. Banks provide local 
businesses with a useful source of enterprise advice, and may offer additional 
services to support businesses, as a means of helping their customers grow. As a 
home to many significant multinational financial institutions, Tower Hamlets has the 
opportunity to attract significant inward investment from the financial sector. Models 
of finance with social and community aspects should also be encouraged. 

3.4 The role of the council 

While the vast majority of businesses within Tower Hamlets operate largely 
independently of the Council, there are a number of functions the Council provide 
that influence the local enterprise economy. Some of these are more or less specific 
to the Council as a public, democratically accountable body with statutory 
responsibilities, whereas others are shared with other agencies. In all cases, the 
Council can discharge all these functions in a way which supports, or discourages, 
business activity. 

The Council’s main functions with regard to enterprise are: 

1. Representational: representing the local enterprise economy in public policy 

formation 

2. Procurement: ensuring that the Council as customer of goods and services 

acts in a way supportive of local enterprise and sets an example which other 

organisations are encouraged to emulate. 

3. Regulatory: using its regulatory responsibilities in a way which supports the 

local enterprise economy. Especially important is the Council’s role as 

Page 59



 

 24 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

planner and building regulator. The Council’s planning strategies are of 

fundamental importance to how the enterprise economy develops. 

4. Information provider: providing information that is of use to local 

entrepreneurs and businesses, and to businesses which may relocate to the 

borough. Through its Enterprise Team, the Council is also in a good position 

to collect information about potential means of support for local enterprises, 

and to decide how this information is used and publicised for the benefit of 

Tower Hamlets enterprises. 

5. Partnership work: facilitating joint working between agencies to provide 

practical support to local enterprise, and ensuring that joint working leads to 

effective results. 

6. Asset provider and manager: using physical assets such as office 

accommodation to support local business development. Letting out surplus 

office space or arranging for office facilities for start up businesses is one way 

to provide a good setting for business. 

Overall, therefore, the Council can bring significant additional resources to bear in 
order to implement the Strategy. This includes negotiations with developers in order 
for them to provide flexible workspaces for SMEs; ensuring the Council’s 
procurement strategy maximises opportunities for local businesses; or enhancing the 
quality of the borough’s town centres and markets.  

 

 

 

Key messages 

There are different types of business which have different characteristics and 
therefore require different responses from an enterprise strategy. Four types of 
business are outlined. Within Tower Hamlets there are also services which exist to 
support enterprise, for instance through providing finance and advice, and this 
includes a particular role for the Council. Generally speaking, the borough and 
partners have a greater role to play in supporting enterprises which are more locally 
focused in terms of the markets they serve and/or the people they employ. 

Page 60



 

 25 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4. Challenges 

Whilst there is much vitality in Tower Hamlets’ economy, there are significant 
challenges to its ongoing success and diversity, and residents’ involvement in it. This 
section sets out five problems facing the borough’s enterprise economy which also 
affect residents and need to be addressed by this strategy. These five, considered in 
turn below, are: 

1. The skills gap between residents and borough businesses 
2. Relatively low rate of self employment 
3. Limited resources for business 
4. Underperforming town centres 
5. Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses 

The Council and partners need to understand and respond to these issues for the 
benefit of borough businesses, both new and established, as well as local residents. 

4.1 The Skills Gap – Residents and Borough Businesses 

As noted above, Tower Hamlets has the fifth highest job density in London but the 
majority of jobs are filled by people from outside the borough. Although this large net 
inflow of workers is unsurprising given the scale of economic development in the 
borough, it is of concern that many residents remain excluded from the benefits of 
economic change and growth. 

Skills, qualifications and the struggle to compete 

This local employment gap reflects a mismatch between residents’ skills and the jobs 
available in the borough5. Although barriers to work tend to be multiple and complex, 
skills are a key predictor. A quarter of borough residents – twice the London average 
– have no qualifications and over 40% of these are not in work. In contrast, a third of 
residents are qualified to degree level or above, which is consistent with the London 
average. With fewer residents at intermediate skill levels than is typical for London, 
there is thus a polarisation of skill levels within the borough. Borough residents at 
lower skills levels are significantly less likely to be in employment than the London 
average. 

A similar polarisation exists in the borough’s jobs market. There are high numbers of 
entry-level jobs and a relatively high number of extremely well paid jobs, but 
opportunities for progression between these are limited. The borough’s Employment 
Strategy explicitly aims to increase the employment rate in Tower Hamlets so that it 
converges with the London average. Plans are in place to help with the supply side of 
labour, but the demand side of enterprise can also be part of the solution. 

Business needs a broad spectrum of skills 

The borough’s low skills level also impacts businesses. Residents’ exclusion from the 
labour market limits their spending power, which in turn reduces further the potential 
for growth and employment of those businesses that serve a local market. 

                                                
5
 The Employment Strategy provides a much fuller treatment of this point. 

Page 61



 

 26 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

More broadly, businesses require a diverse range of skills to meet positions at 
different levels. This varies depending on the sector, but it is clear that a lack of basic 
skills in the local labour market is limiting the capacity of smaller businesses, in 
particular, to access the skills they require. In a survey conducted as part of the LEA, 
about a fifth of businesses reported recruitment difficulties, with the common barriers 
being identified including language, a lack of basic skills, and shortage of higher-
skilled workers. Whilst, by extension, many businesses do not struggle to recruit, 
there are nonetheless clear indications that the skills gap impairs the business 
environment and disadvantages residents. 

These findings are reinforced by the 2009 National Employer Skills Survey for 
England. This reported that, where employers in Tower Hamlets do have difficulties 
filling vacancies, nearly all (95%) state that this is because of skill shortages rather 
than other reasons. This compares with the London average of 86% and 76% across 
England. Again, the principal issues identified were language barriers, a lack of basic 
skills, and a shortage of higher-qualified workers. This suggests that in addition to the 
difficulties of firms in attracting individuals with very specific skills, there is a more 
fundamental issue in the middle of the labour market, where jobs which would 
typically be filled by local residents are not being filled, due to the lack of basic and 
intermediate skills among the resident population. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

The evidence above presents two related issues: 

• the borough’s skills gap, with a high proportion of local residents lacking 
even basic skills 

• the predominance of job opportunities that are either at entry level or 
require a very high level of skills – with relatively little in between. 

Tackling both these issues will have benefits for both businesses and residents. 
The Employment strategy suggests how the Council and its partners can improve 
residents’ access to jobs by raising their skills levels. The challenge for this 
Strategy is to support enterprise, encourage growth and support a diverse, 
sustainable business base that generates employment within the borough and 
that local people can access. 

Page 62



 

 27 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.2 Relatively Low Rate of Self-employment 

Self-employment should be treated with some caution as an indicator of 
entrepreneurialism. The LEA makes a distinction between “enterprising individuals” 
who start self-employed and grow a company, and the many people who become 
self-employed simply because it is their best option when they fail to find a 
conventional job. The former category may go on to generate jobs and wealth and 
therefore create a wider economic benefit. The latter, the LEA argues, may add 
relatively little in terms of wealth creation to the wider economy, but in ceasing to 
receive benefits and starting to pay taxes, there is a clear social value and cost 
savings for the state. This is of particular relevance for Tower Hamlets, where 
unemployment rates are relatively high. 

Self-employment in Tower Hamlets: strengths and weaknesses 

Currently, self-employment rates in Tower Hamlets are lower than the London 
average. In 2010 9% of the working age population in the borough, or 16,400 people, 
were self-employed, compared with 10.6% across London6. But as figure 3.1 shows, 
this represents a significant increase in the borough over the last five years – the 
equivalent figure for Tower Hamlets in 2006 was 5.5% – in a period when the London 
rate has remained stable. 

Figure 4.1 – Percentage of working-age population who are self 

employed 

Tower Hamlets 

London 

 

 

A much larger gap exists between the male self-employment rate for the borough 
and that for London as a whole. In 2010 11.5% of men aged 16-64 were self-
employed in the borough (10,900 people), as against 14.6% across London. The 
male self-employment rate has also risen more slowly than the whole borough 
working age population: between 2006 and 2010, while the borough rate grew by 
nearly two thirds the increase in the male rate was only 40%. 

By contrast the female self-employment rate in the borough was in 2010 almost the 
same as for London (6.4% in Tower Hamlets against 6.5% in London). The rate has 

                                                
6
 All self employment data from ONS Annual Population Survey, for 2010 unless specified.  

Page 63



 

 28 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

increased rapidly over the last five years, more than doubling from 2.7% in 2006. 
Interestingly, the figures for women in employment who are self-employed (as distinct 
from a percentage of the wider 16-64 population) are rather higher in Tower Hamlets, 
at 13.4%, than the London-wide figure of 11.2%. 

The picture painted by the evidence is therefore mixed. On the one hand, self-
employment appears to be underperforming in Tower Hamlets, in terms of its 
contribution to the borough’s enterprise economy and specifically in its contribution to 
employment. For example, the above data suggests that had the 2010 self-
employment rate in Tower Hamlets matched the London-wide level, an additional 
2,900 people would have been self-employed. On the other, there has been a 
significant increase in self-employment rates in the borough in recent years, 
particularly among women, and female self-employment rates are relatively strong.  

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

The evidence suggests some clear strengths and weaknesses in relation to self-
employment in the Tower Hamlets. The challenge is for the Council and business 
support agencies to target provision in a way that tackles the identified 
weaknesses while building on the strengths. This should aim to maximise the 
contribution in tackling unemployment, but also to ensure support for 
entrepreneurs to make the transition from self-employed sole trader to a larger 
business. This will require some more detailed analysis in order to build a fuller 
picture of the factors underlying this data– as well as variations between different 
groups, for example by gender and ethnicity. 

Page 64



 

 29 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.3 Limited Resources for Business 

Businesses can benefit from a wide range of support and resources at different 
points in their lifetime. This can include start-up, working and development capital, 
expert advice and mentoring, premises to operate from, legal and accountancy 
services, access to different supply chains, protection for their ideas and 
opportunities to scale up the scope of their activities. Advice and guidance are also 
important, especially in terms of regulations, accessing new markets and 
employment issues. These needs are of particular relevance to entrepreneurs, start-
ups, SMEs and businesses seeking investment.  

Enterprise support services are available at national, regional and local level. 
Although the quality of enterprise services is sometimes very good, the coverage of 
services available is patchy, and the situation is getting worse. 

Reducing enterprise support 

The national and London-wide picture is one of a general retrenchment of publicly-
funded business support at a time of financial stringency. The Department of 
Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) is in the process of streamlining the provision of 
Enterprise and Business Support services. Business Link is moving to a web- and 
telephone- based resource, at a time when support agencies in the borough have 
stressed the importance of face-to-face contact. 

As with national provision, recent funding cuts have also adversely affected ELSBC 
and ELBP, forcing them to re-examine their roles and functions. Furthermore, despite 
the presence of capable support services based in the borough7, many from the third 
sector, have come under strain as a result of public sector cuts and increased 
competition for funding.  

Restricted finance for business 

A significant barrier to new business opportunities within the borough continues to be 
the perceived restriction on business finance, especially for small businesses.  

In principle, a large range of institutions could provide finance of different sorts for 
enterprise in Tower Hamlets. Commercial banks are one source, but in spite of 
pressure on banks from the government and the Bank of England, credit is still 
reported as being a major challenge for smaller businesses and start-ups. Other 
lenders include community development finance institutions (CDFIs) such as credit 
unions and microfinance, and equity investors. 

There have also been sources of community funding within the borough, including a 
social venture capital fund and microfinance arrangement implemented by Planet 
Finance in 2008. More recently, the East London Small Business Centre and the 
GLA-funded Gateway to Finance project have made £500k available in loans to 
Tower Hamlets businesses. Whilst these are positive initiatives, they are not likely to 
be sufficient to meet demand from local business. 

Tower Hamlets residents can also face particular difficulties in accessing start-up 
finance. High levels of economic exclusion mean that residents have low levels of 
income and assets, and can struggle to access debt finance through traditional 

                                                
7
 such as Account 3, the Bromley by Bow Centre (particularly for social enterprises), the 

Spitalfields Small Business Association and the Cultural Industries Development Agency 

Page 65



 

 30 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

means. Informal sources, primarily friends and family, may provide an alternative 
means of finance and it has been suggested that this is particularly prevalent among 
the Black and Minority Ethnic communities. But this option will not be available to 
everyone. Making finance available in sufficient quantity on suitable terms, combined 
with advice to help entrepreneurs deploy it well, could significantly improve the 
environment for new and existing businesses. Conversely, the absence or weakness 
of these factors is a significant source of concern. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

Business support provision is under increasing threat, owing to funding reductions 
and uncertainty about future funding. It cannot be assumed that comprehensive, 
publicly funded business support services will continue to be available at a 
national or London-wide level. And while sub-regionally there are clearly valuable 
initiatives and critical partners, these services have finite resources and are 
probably not sufficient to fully meet local needs. 

In addition, there are signs that the sources of finance for enterprise in Tower 
Hamlets may be limited, and constraining business operation and expansion. 
Work needs to be done to fully understand the current picture and plan 
accordingly. 

Consequently, it is more important than ever to ensure that the scale and nature 
of business requirements – in terms of both support and access to finance – are 
clearly understood, so that scarce resources can be targeted in the most efficient 
way to fill gaps in provision and avoid duplication. This Strategy can help to 
provide a framework for the coordination between the Council and local and sub-
regional providers that such an approach will require. 

Page 66



 

 31 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.4 Underperforming Town Centres 

Tower Hamlets’ town centres have a significant contribution to make to the borough’s 
economic development and regeneration. Typical town centre uses, particularly in 
the retail sector, can be more resilient to economic downturns, and generate flexible 
local jobs that are appropriate for a range of skills levels. Town centres could also 
provide smaller office space, which is in short supply in the borough. 

Achieving critical mass? 

Historically, rapid industrialisation in East London led to the absorption of the small 
hamlets to the east of the City, explaining why there is a distinct lack of definable 
quality town centres in the borough. This history, combined with the post-war slum 
clearances and construction of social housing estates, has meant that the borough 
has remained fragmented, with few town centres achieving critical mass.  

As a consequence, the borough has a very limited provision of retail and smaller 
office space. This, in turn, makes Tower Hamlets a less attractive location for new, 
growing or relocating enterprises. It also means that spending in the local economy 
generated by increased population levels is not being capitalised upon and job 
creation is not optimised. 

Figure 4.2 – Town Centre Employment by Service Sector  

 

Source: IDBR, 2009 / NLP analysis 

This point is borne out by evidence in the LEA, which demonstrates the variation in 
economic performance between the borough’s town centres (see fig 4.2 above). Jobs 
in the borough are highly concentrated in just two locations, with around 75,000 jobs 
located in Canary Wharf major centre and 27,000 in the City Fringe. By contrast, the 
borough’s nine district centres combined provide about 21,000 jobs – less than a 
third of the number in Canary Wharf. Of those, almost 70% are in two district centres 

Page 67



 

 32 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

in the west of the borough, Whitechapel and Brick Lane. Whitechapel in particular 
has potential for regeneration, and with the recent opening of the East London Line 
and Crossrail to come, it is likely to experience an increased flow of people. The 
opportunity this creates is significant, especially combined with the move of the Royal 
London to the new hospital and the ensuing opportunity for regeneration in the area. 
Ensuring that development is appropriate to the needs of smaller business, residents 
and in-commuters, as well as larger enterprises is fundamental to the area 
succeeding as a town centre. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

Town centres are vital in making opportunities in the local enterprise economy 
accessible to local people. But while Canary Wharf is home to the UK’s second 
largest business district, as well as a major shopping centre, other local town 
centres face particular challenges. Improving the performance of the borough’s 
town centres has the potential to retain more spending locally, support a more 
diverse economy in Tower Hamlets, and increase the number and range of jobs 
available to residents. 

The Town Centre Spatial Strategy sets out a vision for the development of the 
borough’s town centres over the next 15 years. There are two key ways in which 
the Enterprise Strategy can support the delivery of this vision, and help bring 
about the revitalisation of the borough’s town centres – and in turn support a 
healthier and more diverse enterprise economy in Tower Hamlets. 

The first, as part of the Council’s role in coordinating business support services, is 
to ensure that provision meets the needs of existing town centre businesses – 
particularly in sectors such as retail, which provide a range of jobs for local 
people. The second is in encouraging a wider range of businesses, particularly 
SMEs, to locate in the borough’s town centres and thereby to reinforce local town 
centre economies. This is partly about promoting the development of smaller 
office space in these locations, which is discussed in the next section. 

Page 68



 

 33 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.5 Lack of Suitable Workspace for Small Businesses 

Tower Hamlets, at only 8 square miles, is a small, densely populated area that 
experiences significant demand for space use, and consequently high land values. 
These pressures have resulted in significant high-density development and 
competition between uses for available land. The pattern of high-density 
development within the borough, characterised by residential and commercial towers, 
leaves little appropriate or affordable space for smaller businesses. 

Changing employment spaces 

With an 80% growth in office floorspace and a marked reduction in factories and 
warehouses within the borough (see section on “What’s happening”, above), the 
demand from higher value uses is likely to see this pattern of land use change 
continue for the foreseeable future. 

Figure 4.3 (below) shows that different types of commercial floorspace are spatially 
concentrated. Retail and commercial is dominant around Canary Wharf and the City 
Fringe, with what factory and warehouse space remains being clustered at the 
Eastern edge of the borough.  

Figure 4.3 – Spatial Distribution of Commercial Floorspace, by Ward 

 

Source: Valuation Office Agency/NLP analysis 

 

This concentration of retail and office space in relatively few parts of the borough 
limits the distribution of SMEs and start-ups and may mean that the borough is failing 
to maximise its local employment potential. At the same time, the decline of factory 
and warehouse space is likely to free up spaces for alternative uses and the borough 
needs to factor in the demand for commercial space, rather than focusing solely on 
housing and large floorplate offices. 

Page 69



 

 34 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

Demand for flexible premises 

Both the quality and quantity of premises for small firms and start-ups within the 
borough is low. Canary Wharf and the City Fringe are amongst London’s major office 
markets, where the available premises meet the requirement of larger firms. The rest 
of the borough does not pick up this slack and the provision of appropriate smaller 
office spaces is highly limited.  

The business survey undertaken for the LEA identified premises, along with good 
public transport links and proximity to customers, as the most important factors for 
doing business within Tower Hamlets. Current sites and premises were generally 
viewed as “fit for purpose”, although more affordable business premises were 
identified as one of two factors that would enhance business prospects in the 
borough. Most demand was indicated in the survey for premises up to 1,000m2. 

In terms of smaller spaces, the LEA shows that although there is strong demand for 
B18 units under 100m2, they currently form under 2% of supply. The majority of 
available office space under 100m2 appears to be located in the City Fringe, which 
attracts smaller businesses, followed by the Isle of Dogs, with a lack of provision in 
the rest of the borough. Suitable flexible and affordable workspace is therefore 
required in all parts of the borough, including the Central Area. 

A significant minority (20%) of future growth in the borough is anticipated to be in 
micro or small enterprises (with small enterprises employing up to 49 people). If 
future supply of employment spaces continues recent trends, there will be a 
significant over-focus on large floorplate office developments, with limited provision of 
suitable workspace for micro and small enterprises. Meanwhile, trend data9 shows 
that SMEs’ requirements for space will be higher in 2020 than in 2010. This includes 
growth linked to the financial and business services cluster10 and reflects the 
increasing importance of smaller businesses in the Tower Hamlets enterprise 
economy. Tower Hamlets SMEs have a propensity to higher year-on-year growth 
(source: NOMIS) than equivalent enterprises in London as a whole, emphasising the 
need for flexibility in the provision of business space.  

In the absence of intervention small businesses in growth sectors may be forced out 
of Tower Hamlets to seek more suitable premises elsewhere. There is thus a need to 
safeguard and provide appropriate premises for SMEs through the planning system.  

 

                                                
8
 B1 classification includes non-financial service offices, light industrial and R&D functions, for 

spaces up to 235m
2
. 

9
 Five Host Boroughs Strategic Regeneration Framework – Economic Model: Baseline Report 

(Oxford Economics, March 2010) – “Baseline Report” 

10
 The additional employees in these two sectors employed in micro and small businesses will 

require almost 23% of additional office space in future years. 

Page 70



 

 35 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

There is a shortage of supply of workspace for SMEs in Tower Hamlets, which 
risks pushing business start-ups and growing businesses out of the borough. 
These enterprises are vital for the strength of the local enterprise economy and 
could provide substantial employment opportunities to local people. Overcoming 
problems in the supply and availability of workspace suitable for small businesses 
is a crucial point for this Strategy. 

Not only would a supply of flexible workspace support small and growing 
businesses, but, as discussed above, if such workspaces were to be situated in 
parts of Tower Hamlets other than Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, they could 
support the commercial viability of town centres in the borough. This Strategy can 
help to address this issue by promoting the development of appropriate 
workspace, particularly in town centres. 

Page 71



 

 36 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

5. Objectives 

Summary 

This section sets out detailed priorities for intervention to address the issues identified in 
the Problems section. Each of the strategic objectives here is based on the analysis 
shown in the previous chapters and are focused on meeting the overall aim of this 
Enterprise Strategy, which is to: 

Encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase 
opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

Meeting this aim is a priority for both the Council and its partners, and will be achieved 
through the following three objectives: 

1 Support the establishment, growth and development of SMEs 
2 Provide an environment that supports a thriving and diverse economic base 
3 Support the borough’s enterprise economy by communicating local needs and wishes 

to influence a variety of audiences 
 

Intermediate objectives have been developed for each objective to show how each 
objective is to be achieved, as shown in the diagram below. These are explained in the 
following sections. 

Figure 5.1 – Outline of Aim and Objectives 

 

Actions will be assigned to each objective as part of the annual Enterprise Action Plan, 
which is provided as a separate document. 

Page 72



 

 37 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Objective 1: Support the establishment, growth and development of Small 

and Medium Enterprises 

The success of the Tower Hamlets economy is rooted in the success of individual borough 
businesses. This strategic objective will help ensure that Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs) can capitalise on the opportunities provided by the wider economy. Providing 
access to information and finance for borough entrepreneurs, especially those whose work 
has a clear social benefit, will also strengthen new and existing enterprises, which in turn 
add to the diversity of businesses in Tower Hamlets. Their growth prospects will be further 
enhanced by encouraging local procurement (as well as local labour on the part of 
developers) and recognising and encouraging the Corporate Social Responsibility 
activities of larger businesses. 

 

Problems met • Limited resources for business, including support services 
and funding 

• Low levels of self employment 
 

Role of the Council • Procure locally, including through the Supply Tower 
Hamlets programme and its broader procurement policies 

• Support local enterprises’ access to private and public 
supply chains 

• Provide and promote information to business owners 
who potentially wish to open or relocate a business in 
Tower Hamlets 

• Ensure that regulatory services are helpful 

• Facilitate joint working between agencies to provide 
practical support 

• Broker relationships with business support services 
 

Principal benefits • Supported SMEs and social enterprises have better 
growth prospects. This will make the local economy more 
resilient and sustainable. 

• Local businesses are more likely to employ local labour 
and, where local sub contractors are appointed, they 
spend more in the local economy.  

• The amount of travel involved within the borough is 
reduced, increasing the overall sustainability of operations 
and physical development. Appointing suitable local sub-
contractors can provide organisations with operational 
advantages, as well as contributing to the objectives of 
the Community Plan. 

• A range of support services can help firms to establish 
themselves in the borough, grow and innovate, which in 
turn will create jobs.  
 

 

Page 73



 

 38 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

Intermediate objectives: 

 

1.1 Co-ordinate and strengthen enterprise support services and access to finance 
It is critical that businesses have information about and access to the right mix of 
support services. This requires attention to: 

• Build supply chain capacity so that local businesses can supply through 

procurement processes.  

• Develop and maintain an effective network of business support agencies to 

strengthen and co-ordinate provision – this may include mapping out the range of 

services on offer and signposting new or existing businesses to support agencies. 

This will not only help businesses access the services they need more efficiently, it 

will also help to shine a light on gaps or overlaps in the provision of key enterprise 

support services. 

• Improve access to advice on debt, equity and new forms of finance, particularly for 

groups who may be excluded from traditional forms of finance– the current 

economic climate is challenging, but there are still options available which will help 

new and existing businesses to grow and develop. 

The contribution of local support services11 will be critical to the achieving this strategic 
objective. Establishing a pilot network group to provide peer support for start-ups will be an 
early task within this strategic objective. 

 
1.2 Work with large organisations and business to harness their resources for the 

benefit of SMEs 

Large organisations in the private and public sectors are in an influential position when it 
comes to awarding contracts, so encouraging them to procure locally, including from social 
enterprises, is a valuable means of recycling money within the local economy. With an 
increasing global focus on sustainable development and local sourcing of goods and 
services where economical, as well as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policies, 
there is a good opportunity to enhance links between the borough’s many large firms, the 
Council and other public sector agencies, with the plethora of smaller enterprises. Under 
this intermediate objective, the actions are to: 

• Establish relations with major corporate bodies to identify and develop 

opportunities for mentoring, collaboration and partnership working with the 

borough’s large businesses. 

• Ensure that the Council procures locally within the regulatory framework. The 

Council’s Procurement Strategy refers to the need to ensure that the Council’s 

social objectives – including support for local businesses - are promoted through its 

procurement, and states that 36% of the Council’s annual expenditure on goods 

                                                
11

 Including the East London Small Business Centre, the East London Business Alliance, East 
London Business Place, Account3, Spitalfields Small Business Association, CIDA, the Bromley-by-
Bow Centre and Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development Agency 

Page 74



 

 39 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

and services is contracted with businesses located in Tower Hamlets12. The 

Council wants to build on this strong base. 

• Ensure that developers in Tower Hamlets commit to procuring locally. For all major 

developments, the Council will seek to secure 20% of the total value of contracts 

for goods and services during the construction phase to be procured from firms 

located within the Borough. This should be achieved within competition law, and in 

cooperation with Council nominated organisations such as Construction Line and 

ELBP. 

• Maximise supply chain and contracting opportunities for Tower Hamlets SMEs 

arising from the large public and private sector organisations in the borough. 

 
1.3  Support social enterprise 

As local businesses which tend to distribute their profits locally and reinvest them to 
achieve social objectives, social enterprises are particularly important. Under this 
measure, the Enterprise Team will: 

 

• Map funding sources beyond the mainstream, including microfinance, CDFIs, and 

Big Society Capital. In future, this may include exploring the potential for links with 

Canary Wharf and the City Fringe. 

• Ensure that business support services meet the specific needs of social 

enterprises, including legal structures and transparency, with particular reference  

to social enterprises which support the employment and entrepreneurial aspirations 

of residents in hard-to-reach groups 

• Target social enterprises for procurement support activity 

The Council also wishes to encourage existing initiatives, such as the work of the East 
London Small Business Centre in conjunction with the Community Development Finance 
Association, identifying capital to underpin local business loans. 

 

                                                
12

 Corporate Procurement Strategy 2009 – 2011 

Page 75



 

 40 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

OBJECTIVE 2: Provide an environment that supports a thriving and 

diverse economic base 

Suitable premises – particularly for smaller business – in desirable locations, which 
includes Tower Hamlets’ town centres, are crucial to making the physical environment 
attractive to businesses. In addition, since businesses want capable people, fostering an 
entrepreneurial culture will help local residents achieve increasing success in making a 
living through employment, regardless of whether they set up their own business. And 
innovation, particularly through Tower Hamlets’ universities, creates an environment 
where new possibilities offer potential commercial returns. The combination of these 
factors will make for a diverse and thriving business context, connected to the boroughs 
students and long-term residents. 
 

Problems met • Underperforming town centres 

• Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses 

• Skills gap between residents and borough businesses 

• Relatively low rate of self-employment 
 

Role of the Council • Provide information relevant for local businesses - 
Collecting feedback from local enterprises can help 
develop services which businesses themselves see as a 
priority. 

• Utilise regulatory services – especially licensing, food 
safety and environmental health – in a helpful manner to 
small businesses and start-ups. 

• Use physical assets (eg office accommodation) to support 
local enterprises, especially where they starting out 

• Work through planning policy to foster appropriate 
spaces and places for businesses 
 

Principal benefits • Providing suitable premises for the significant minority of 
enterprises with less than 50 employees will ensure that 
they are attracted to and remain in the borough. 

• An improved enterprise infrastructure strengthens local 
economic activity, which in turn creates more vibrant and 
attractive places, to the benefit of local residents 

• Residents of Tower Hamlets will be more likely to start 
businesses and will learn transferable skills from their 
exposure to enterprise 
 

 

 

Page 76



 

 41 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Intermediate objectives: 

 

2.1 Secure premises to support business growth  

While much recent growth in enterprises has concentrated on large companies with very 
large floorplate requirements, 20% of future growth is anticipated to be in micro or small 
enterprises (up to 49 people). Enterprises which would otherwise be located in Tower 
Hamlets will be forced to move from the borough if suitable workplaces are not available. 
Accordingly, the Council will use the planning process to secure the provision of flexible 
workspace within commercial developments, to mitigate the loss of such space through 
the development process, and to support new and existing SMEs in the borough 

 

2.2 Ensure the physical environment, including town centres, is suitable for a range 
of businesses 

Many of Tower Hamlets’ town centres lack the scale and vitality to perform their role 
adequately for the communities and enterprises they support. This risks significant local 
spend being diverted from the local economy. The Council will: 

• Ensure that enterprise considerations are at the heart of town centre regeneration, 

including at Whitechapel. It has an excellent transport infrastructure and could 

develop as an even stronger district centre with a diverse local economy 

• Help to implement the Town Centre Spatial Strategy by encouraging initiatives 
which will develop the local enterprise economy. There may also be potential to 
use the Street Markets Strategy to improve the quality of the borough’s markets, 
thus contributing to the vitality of town centre environments. 

• work to better coordinate investment in town centres and to support the 
development of town centres with a balanced mix of uses; 

 

2.3 Encourage an entrepreneurial spirit and a culture of innovation 

Developing a culture of innovation is a key goal for this Strategy.  

• Work with schools to encourage understanding and experience of 

entrepreneurship among young people. This could involve support for Your 

Enterprise initiatives. 

• Work with higher education institutions to identify commercial opportunities linked 

to their academic expertise. This could lead to knowledge transfer, the 

establishment of new networks and support for spin-out companies. 

There is also an important role for partner agencies and business groups here, as well as 

charities such as the Prince’s Trust. 

Page 77



 

 42 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Objective 3: Supporting the borough’s enterprise economy by 

communicating local needs and wishes to influence a variety of audiences 

Tower Hamlets is a great location for enterprise, as evidenced by the rapid development of 
Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, but it is one location in a competitive national and 
international context. A combination of active promotion of the borough’s benefits, rigorous 
campaigning to ensure that these are maintained and improved, and active listening to 
stay abreast of the opinions of local businesses will ensure that the borough remains an 
attractive and competitive enterprise destination for generations to come.  

 

Problems met • Limited resources for business, including support services 
and funding 
 

Role of the Council • Represent the enterprise interests of the borough 

• Compete aggressively for available public sector 
investment 

• Influence policies which affect enterprise at a London 
wide and national level 

• Facilitate an entrepreneurial culture across sectors – 
sharing experience of involvement in enterprise activity, 
however small in scale, can help people become more 
effective employees and citizens as well as business 
owners 
 

Principal benefits • Success in achieving these aims will demonstrate that 
Tower Hamlets is an excellent place for business in 
London.  

• Links between borough businesses will help develop a 
vibrant and inter-dependent local economy.   

• A coordinated ‘voice’ for the borough increases the 
likelihood of attracting funding, capital projects and 
positive legislative changes.  
 

 

Page 78



 

 43 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Intermediate objectives 

3.1 Develop Tower Hamlets’ enterprise voice 

A key step in representing the interests of enterprise will be to develop the clarity of the 
borough’s local enterprise ‘voice’. The borough’s business successes need to be 
championed and requirements articulated. The Council will: 

• Set up a pan Tower Hamlets business forum to represent the views of SMEs 

• Ensure that the voice of local business is heard by government at local, regional 

and national levels 

• Ensure that the Council’s planning and regulatory functions take into account the 

needs of local enterprises 

 

3.2 Influence the policy context to support and maintain a diverse and sustainable 
economy 

The Council and its partners have an important role to play in promoting the borough, 
protecting its interests, influencing nationally and regionally and in ensuring that the policy 
framework supports borough business and enterprise. The Council will work closely with 
businesses, business groups, and with sub-regional partners to achieve the maximum 
positive impact of national policy changes. Actions and work streams will cover: 

• Research into the ownership of local enterprises and patterns of self employment 

across the equalities strands, including issues identified within the Strategy such as 

variations in levels of self-employment between men and women. Research should 

examine their relative degrees of success, income and trends of growth or 

contraction 

• Position Tower Hamlets to take advantage of policy changes, working with its 
partners to enhance the borough’s lobbying capability and promote the borough’s 
interests to ensure that Tower Hamlets has a strong voice in new and emerging 
structures and initiatives such as the pan-London Enterprise Partnership, the Host 
Boroughs’ Strategic Regeneration Framework driving the convergence agenda, 
and the Government’s proposed Tech City initiative in east London. 

• Compete aggressively for available public sector investment - competition for 

public investment is likely to be fierce in coming years and the Council will need to 

work with partners to target funding and aggressively make the case for investment 

in the borough at regional national and European levels. 

The Council and its partners have an important role to play in bringing partners together to 

maximise investment in enterprise support services in the borough. 

 

3.3 Promote Tower Hamlets as a location for investment and enterprise 

It is important that opportunities for marketing and destination branding, including the 
established Curry Capital 2012 brand, are maintained and built upon, in order to support 
existing SMEs, maintain the borough’s existing strengths as a location of choice for 

Page 79



 

 44 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

financial and business services, and encourage diversification through investment from 
growth sectors such as creative and knowledge-based industries. Promoting Tower 
Hamlets as a location for inward investment, tourism and leisure, particularly in the run-up 
to the Olympics, will involve work with businesses and partners to provide a more focused 
approach to destination marketing. Initially, the Council will: 

• Develop a marketing plan to promote the borough in line with the intermediate 

objective, highlighting its enterprise successes and its suitability for growth sectors 

 
 

 

Page 80



 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Glossary  
 

Glossary 

CDFIs Community Development Finance Institutions 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

ELBA East London Business Alliance 

ELBP East London Business Place 

ELSBC East London Small Business Centre 

JSA Jobseekers’ Allowance 

LDA London Development Agency 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

SMEs Small and Medium Enterprises 

TCSS Town Centre Spatial Strategy 

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

T
o

w
e

r
 H

a
m

le
ts

 E
n

te
r

p
r

is
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 

In
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
 S

h
o

r
t 

T
e

r
m

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 

         

Page 83



 

2
 

 E
n

te
r

p
ri

s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 I
n

d
ic

a
ti

v
e

 S
h

o
r

t 
T

e
r

m
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 T
h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 s

it
s
 a

s
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 t
o
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
im

e
n
t,
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 

d
e
c
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 d
u
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 [

lim
it
e
d
] 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n
 n

o
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 S
M

E
 G

ro
w

th
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

 
 G

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
fo

r 
m

a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 t
w

o
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 d

o
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
a
m

-l
in

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

, 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

in
 t
u
rn

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 u
n
d
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
re

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 

 
A

IM
/S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 O

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

A
M

L
E

T
S

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

: 
T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
: 

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
, 
p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
: 

 
1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 
2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 
3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u

d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

  

Page 84



 

3
 

  S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 

 T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
s
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
d
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

tr
a
c
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

: 
 

1
. 

S
e
lf

-e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

2
. 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 m

o
re

 s
ta

ff
 –

 m
a
in

ta
in

 p
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

3
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

ir
th

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

 m
a
in

ta
in

 p
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 m

e
d
ia

n
. 

Page 85



 

4
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
. 

A
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 
F

in
a
ll
y
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
, 
c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
a
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 f

it
-f

o
r-

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 

 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d

o
n
. 
T

h
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
re

 
fr

a
g
m

e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 
is

 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
s
c
a
rc

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
a

y
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 2

 
a
n
d
 6

 
1
.1

 C
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
n

d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 t
o
 S

M
E

s
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

 
S

M
E

s
 (

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 

s
m

a
lle

r/
m

ic
ro

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
) 

s
u
ff

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n

e
q
u

it
y
 

a
n
d
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

a
g
e
s
 w

ill
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 s

u
c
h
 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
y
. 

W
e
b
-b

a
s
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

m
e
n
u
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

   

Page 86



 

5
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
n

d
 b

a
n
k
in

g
 

s
e
c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u

c
ts

 
a
im

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a

l 
a
n
d
 l
o
a

n
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
s
 a

n
d
 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
s
. 

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
in

g
 

c
ri
s
is

 a
n
d
 p

u
rs

u
a
n
t 

c
re

d
it
 c

ru
n
c
h
, 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 
to

 f
in

a
n
c
e

 f
o
r 

S
M

E
s
 

a
re

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 (

a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
) 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 
p
re

v
a

le
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t

h
u
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 
b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
S

M
E

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 a
n

d
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fo
r 

S
M

E
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
a

n
d
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

B
ri
n

g
 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

k
e

y
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
,2

 a
n
d
 3

. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n
 a

n
d

 c
o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

e
b
-b

a
s
e

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 m

e
n
u
 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

w
e
b
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 o

n
lin

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

. 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.2
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

e
b
t,
 

e
q
u

it
y
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 f

o
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
o

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
. 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
a
p
 o

u
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
b
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

Page 87



 

6
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.3
  

B
u
ild

 s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a
in

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
ly

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 E

a
s
t 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

c
e

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 S
M

E
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

is
h
o

p
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
ro

je
c
t 

P
ro

m
o
te

 C
o
m

p
e
te

 4
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

, 
E

a
s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
c
e
 

£
2
.3

m
 i
n
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o
n
  

b
y
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
P

ro
je

c
t 
c
a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 

z
o

n
e
 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 

Page 88



 

7
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 e
x
e
rt

e
d

 b
y
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 

a
n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

lly
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 F

ri
n

g
e
, 

C
a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

, 
a
n
d
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 Z
o

n
e
 t

o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 s

u
p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 

a
n
d
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
s
. 
  

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 i
n
 a

 
u
n
iq

u
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
, 
e

n
jo

y
in

g
 

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

lly
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
, 
C

a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

 a
n
d
 S

tr
a

tf
o
rd

 
C

it
y
/O

ly
m

p
ic

 Z
o
n

e
. 

C
a
p
it
a
lis

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

(a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

in
g
) 

S
M

E
s
 c

a
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

s
 

F
ir
s
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

S
M

E
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
p

ly
in

g
 t
o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 

U
p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

1
.2

 W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 h

a
rn

e
s
s
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

c
u
re

s
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

 

E
x
p
lo

re
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
n

e
fi
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 

s
c
o
re

d
 i
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 

D
ra

ft
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

Page 89



 

8
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

P
u
rs

u
e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

D
P

D
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 2

0
%

 
lo

c
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.
 

D
&

R
 

D
P

D
 a

d
o

p
te

d
, 
J
a
n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 l
o
c
a

l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 

a
p
p

lie
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

. 

D
&

R
 

1
0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 p

o
lic

y
, 

o
n

g
o

in
g

. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 i
n
 T

H
 

c
o
m

m
it
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
ri
n

g
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 

 

C
re

a
te

 p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

’ 
to

o
lk

it
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a

n
d
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 
s
e
c
to

r-
b
a
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
u
p
p
lie

r 
lis

ts
. 

D
&

R
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l,
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
6
 a

n
d
 1

1
  
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.3
 

M
a
x
im

is
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

T
H

 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
tu

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

u
p
p

lie
rs

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
o
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 T

e
a
m

 
P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 o

n
lin

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

Page 90



 

9
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 (

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

C
re

a
te

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f

o
r 

lin
k
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 w

it
h
 

S
M

E
s
. 

V
ia

 M
a

y
o
r’

s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

. 
P

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.4
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
c
o

lla
b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
S

M
E

s
. 

M
a
tc

h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 S
M

E
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

V
ia

 M
a

y
o
r’

s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

. 
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

n
d
 S

M
E

s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 

Page 91



 

1
0
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
. 

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 h

a
s
 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

ro
le

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d
 d

y
n

a
m

ic
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ro
u
te

s
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

In
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1

 
a
n
d
 2

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.1
  

M
a
p
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 t
h

e
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ic

ro
fi
n
a
n
c
e
, 
C

D
F

Is
, 

a
n
d
 B

ig
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 C

a
p

it
a

l 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 m

a
p
 o

u
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g

a
c
y
 

d
iv

is
io

n
, 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

w
e
b
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

1
.3

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

le
g

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
, 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a

l 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 h

a
rd

-t
o
-

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g

a
c
y
 

d
iv

is
io

n
, 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
6
 a

n
d
 1

0
 

Page 92



 

1
1
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.3
  

T
a
rg

e
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 

b
u
ild

 s
u

p
p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n

 1
.1

.3
 

D
&

R
, 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 

k
n
o
w

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 i
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

 

Page 93



 

1
2
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

M
a
p
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

a
n
d
 t

a
lk

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
s
u
p

p
ly

 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
/d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
/d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 

o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
  

  
T

h
e
 L

E
A

 a
n
d

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 r

is
k
s
 

p
u
n

is
h
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
ta

rt
 u

p
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 v

it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 
lo

c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

s
p
a
c
e
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

    R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 8

, 
1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
 

2
.1

 S
e
c
u
re

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

g
ro

w
th

 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.1

.1
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 s
e
c
u
re

 t
h
e

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

w
it
h

in
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
to

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 s

p
a
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 n
e

w
 a

n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

S
c
o
p
in

g
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 
te

a
m

s
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 94



 

1
3
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

S
p
a
ti
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e

 
lo

c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 

v
it
a
l 
in

 m
a
k
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o

p
le

. 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 t
o

w
n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
s
 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 r
e
ta

in
 

m
o
re

 s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a

lly
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 m

o
re

 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
. 
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
s
te

p
s
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

e
.g

. 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e

l 
b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 7

 
a
n
d
 1

0
 

2
.2

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
is

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.2

.1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
t 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

 

E
n
g

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
e

a
m

 
to

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

o
f 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

fa
c
to

ri
n
g
 i
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

D
&

R
 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 95



 

1
4
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 H

ig
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 I

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 p

la
y
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
ro

le
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

 
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 H

E
Is

 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ro

le
 t

o
 p

la
y
 i
n
 

d
ri
v
in

g
 a

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
- 

a
n
d
 i
n
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n
- 

b
a
s
e
d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 i
n
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
t.
 

K
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 

in
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

re
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 

In
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.3

.1
  

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

 a
m

o
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
 

E
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o
 

C
M

T
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4

 
a
n
d
 6

 

2
.3

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 
s
p
ir

it
 

a
n
d
 a

 c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

in
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.3

.2
  

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h

e
ir
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
-t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 a
n
d
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4

 
a
n
d
 6

 

 

Page 96



 

1
5
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

fo
ru

m
 t
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
  

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

in
g
le

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 v

o
ic

e
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

, 
ra

th
e
r 

a
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
a
d
e
rs

’ 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

lu
b
s
 –

 
n
o
n
e

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
 

v
o

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
is

 a
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

 m
o
re

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

e
ff

e
c
te

d
. 
 

F
o
ru

m
 e

v
e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 h

e
ld

 
in

 2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 
a
n
d
 5

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.1

.1
  

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

fo
ru

m
 t
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 

 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
M

E
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o

 s
c
o
p
e
 r

o
le

 
a
n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 f

o
ru

m
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
O

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
S

M
E

 f
o
ru

m
, 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5

 

3
.1

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
v
o

ic
e
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.1

.2
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
lo

c
a
l,
 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
le

v
e
ls

 

 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 

fo
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 v

ie
w

s
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 f

o
ru

m
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 

fo
ru

m
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

te
a
m

 

M
e
c
h
a
n

is
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

  

 

Page 97



 

1
6
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

D
F

) 
a
n
d
 

p
u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
s
te

p
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

  
 

- 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

- 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
, 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

 

 
T

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 u
p
o
n
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
m

a
y
 w

e
ll 

b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 
g
ro

w
th

. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

 

In
te

rn
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
  

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 
a
n
d
 9

 
3
.2

 I
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
o
lic

y
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
to

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

 

E
x
a
m

in
e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
g

im
e
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
a

n
d
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

 
P

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
fo

rm
 w

ill
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
is

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 
m

u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 i
f 

it
 i
s
 t
o

 
m

a
x
im

is
e
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e
s
. 
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f,
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
, 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 
re

fo
rm

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

. 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

Page 98



 

1
7
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.1
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 
e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 s

tr
a

n
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
e
lf
-

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 m

e
n
 a

n
d
 

w
o
m

e
n
. 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
g
re

e
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
, 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
re

n
d
s
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 o
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 T

e
a
m

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

In
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

 
a
n
d
 6

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 

to
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

. 

D
&

R
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
, 
o

n
g
o

in
g
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 5

 
a
n
d
 9

 

Page 99



 

1
8
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 a

 
s
tr

o
n
g
 v

o
ic

e
 i
n

 n
e

w
 a

n
d
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 p

a
n
-L

o
n
d

o
n
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
th

e
 H

o
s
t 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
’ 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o
n

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
d
ri
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

v
e
rg

e
n
c
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 

T
e
c
h
 C

it
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

a
s
t 
L

o
n
d
o

n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h

ip
s
 

a
n
d
 l
o
b

b
y
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

D
&

R
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5

 
a
n
d
 9

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.4
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
to

 a
n

y
 f

o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
R

e
p
o

n
d
 t

o
 b

id
d

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
t 

ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
 

R
e
c
o
o
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 9

 

 

Page 100



 

1
9
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

n
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 b

ra
n

d
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o

 C
it
y
 S

ta
tu

s
 (

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
b
id

) 

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 

u
n
iq

u
e

ly
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
, 

C
a
n
a
ry

 W
h
a
rf

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 Z
o

n
e
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

it
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 a
s
 

a
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d

e
rd

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 C
it
y
 S

ta
tu

s
 b

id
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1

 
a
n
d
 6

 
3
.3

 P
ro

m
o
te

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 a

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
, 
a

n
d
 a

 
d
e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.3

.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

ra
n
d
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 C

u
rr

y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n

d
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e

e
t 
2

0
1
2
, 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 
s
e
c
to

rs
. 

D
ra

ft
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
a
m

s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

ra
ft

, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

, 
3
, 
5
, 

6
 a

n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy 

Consultation Report 

The draft version of the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy was sent to partners for 

Consultation in April 2011 and was made available online. Responses were submitted to the 

Council during late May 2011 (the deadline for responses was set as 23 May). 

In total, nine written responses were received.  Importantly, written responses were 

received from key partners including the Canary Wharf Group, East London Small Business 

Centre, East London Business Place and the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust, and other 

prominent local organisations. 

This document is intended to summarise the comments raised by stakeholders and, where 

appropriate, to indicate how such feedback will be incorporated into the final draft of the 

Strategy. The Consultation asked five questions and provided space for additional comments 

on the Enterprise Strategy. Summaries of the responses to these questions are given below. 

1. How well do the ‘Introduction’ and ‘Context’ sections (parts 1 

and 2) set out the relevant background for the strategy? Are 

there any substantial omissions?  
 

Respondents broadly agreed with the context and concluding sections of the strategy 

particularly in relation to the diversification of the borough and sectoral analysis.  

Respondents said that the introduction showed thorough research and ‘sets the scene’ well. 

One respondent suggested mentioning support organisations such as East London Business 

Place and East London Business Alliance.  

Some respondents felt that the analysis of residents skills deficit required further detailed 

analysis to highlight the barriers caused by a lack of work based skills as well as educational 

qualifications  

A specific comment was made with regards to the introduction where Whitechapel is 

mentioned but no reference is made to the ‘Whitechapel Art Gallery’.  

One consultation respondent expressed their agreement with the statistics included in the 

strategy on supply of labour and employment statistics.  

They also made the recommendations to include a description of the Tower Hamlets Third 

Sector training and employment organisations and promote the work of these organisations 

in catering for the needs of disadvantaged groups in the local community and the diverse 

population of the borough.  

Page 103



 

2 

 

These points are taken up below. 

 

Response and Actions:  

We are content with the suggestion to include the Whitechapel Gallery as a prime visitor 

location in Whitechapel within the introduction. We also agree and welcome the comments 

made with regards to the residents’ skills; these concerns are addressed within our partner 

Employment Strategy.   

2. Are the ‘Challenges’, ‘Barriers’ and ‘Opportunities’ (parts 3 

and 4) fully set out and do they deal with all relevant 

considerations?  
General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Response/Actions 

Response to parts 3 and 4 of the enterprise 

strategy were broadly positive and 

respondents agreed with the analysis. 

Comments were made with regards to 

improving the job prospects of local 

residents through ensuring that jobs were 

created across the skills spectrum, while also 

highlighting increased opportunities in hotels 

& catering, retail, and the creative industries. 

We are pleased with the overall response 

from consultees on this section of the 

strategy. We welcome the comments 

regarding job opportunities for residents 

across the skills spectrum, and this fits in 

well with the strategic aim to promote a 

diverse and sustainable enterprise 

economy.  Through our partner 

employment strategy we will support 

residents to access jobs and progress across 

the whole skills spectrum.  Creative 

Industries, tourism, retail and leisure are 

identified as potential growth sectors for 

the Tower Hamlets economy.  

One consultee felt that emphasis should be 

made on the expected impact of the new 

Royal London Hospital, in terms of the 

creation of new public space, and availability 

of space that will free up, with the 

suggestion that the development could be 

linked to the Tech City plans.   

This is a useful comment, to be taken up in 

connection with the Tech City proposals. 

Under the opportunities section, there was a 

suggestion to amend the insert on social 

enterprise to reflect the impact they could 

While we welcome the comments here, the 

opportunities section of the strategy is 

concerned with developments in the 

enterprise economy rather than the 

Page 104



 

3 

 

have on the delivery of public services.   delivery of public services.  Nonetheless, we 

recognise the contribution of social 

enterprises in the delivery of public services 

and will seek to support all enterprises in 

gaining opportunities to provide services 

through commissioning processes.  

Information on page 31 about ELBP to be 

amended with the following:  

East London Business Place (ELBP): is a 

supply chain development programme allied 

to a contract brokerage service led by Canary 

Wharf Group plc and supported by East 

London Business Alliance. It provides a free 

matching and sourcing service, connecting 

buyers and suppliers to maximise local 

business benefit from new developments 

and commercial precincts in east London.  In 

particular, ELBP has, since 2008, helped 

Tower Hamlets (TH) based SMEs secure 

almost £38m of business and has helped 

more than 350 TH SMEs reach ‘Fit-to-Supply’ 

status through flexible 1-2-1 and one-to-

many support activities. 

 

 

  

We will amend the information on ELBP 

with the information provided.  

Respondents felt that although higher 

education institutions do provide significant 

opportunities for enterprise and innovation, 

these institutions do not play an important 

role in the development of a skilled 

workforce and that this view is supported 

through work conducted by the Young 

Foundation.  

 

This is a point which can be taken up most 

usefully in work under the Employment 

Strategy 

Respondents felt that the opportunities 

section of the strategy where specific 

reference was made to the travel, retail, 

tourism and the creative industries sectors 

should have its own Cultural Strategy which 

would provide a way of co-ordinating these 

elements and brining the focus onto the 

assets in the borough and help contribute to 

The Enterprise Team will be glad to 

contribute to any future Cultural Strategy 

developed by the Council 

Page 105



 

4 

 

strategic the strategic objectives of 

‘positioning’ and ‘place’.   

 

Under the section on sources of funding and 

finance, it was mentioned that ELSBC  have 

been heavily involved in the Community 

Development Finance Association (CDFA) 

and their successful bid to the Regional 

Growth Fund for capital towards loans to 

businesses, an through the CDFA are 

developing links with the Big Society Bank.  

 

We have noted this.  

Respondents were pleased with the 

narrative contained in the strategy on social 

investment and enterprise.  They suggested 

that in addition to what was already 

included, there should be specific focus on 

the role of social enterprise in relation to 

providing care and support services that are 

generally provided by health and social care 

organisations, and to actively endorse this 

activity through the strategy. 

 

We agree that social enterprises have been 

operating successfully in the area of health 

and social care and that in recent years 

there has been cross party support for 

social enterprises to be increasingly more 

involved in the role and provision of health 

and social care. Proposals for targeting 

social enterprises for procurement support 

activity are mentioned under Intermediate 

Objective 1.3. 

 

One respondent expressed their disapproval 

with a reference under the Enterprise 

Support section in the strategy. They 

strongly felt that there are more 

organisations offering enterprise support 

then the three ‘main’ providers mentioned.  

 

The reference in the strategy relates to 

enterprise support providers operating 

across the East London Sub region rather 

than Tower Hamlets itself. We are fully 

aware of the enormous support offered by 

Account3 and other support providers in 

Tower Hamlets; we regularly refer clients 

seeking support to Account3 through our 

online Business Enquires Service. The 

council’s “Business Matters” brochure guide 

contains details of Account3 and a number 

of other business support agencies.  We 

have ensured that Account3 and other 

support providers are referred to in the 

revised draft.  

 

Page 106



 

5 

 

The strategy should state a commitment to 

encouraging workless adults to claim 

benefits and sign on to entitle them to DWP 

funded training and support. 

Reference to this issue is made in the 

employment strategy, in the section 

discussing the complexities of the benefits 

system and the tailored approaches to 

tackling worklessness.   

 

The strategy inaccurately stated three main 

business support agencies in the borough. 

References are then made to the fact that 

third sector provision is more competent 

and that the third sector assist more SME 

start-ups each year then the cited 

organisations in the strategy.  

 

We agree that in the inclusion of the term 

‘main’ should be removed, however this 

reference referred to three providers 

operating across the East London sub-

region, and not in Tower Hamlets. We do 

not have evidence to prove or disprove the 

claim that third sector organisations are 

more competent then the three agencies 

named, however we will cite the third 

sector enterprise support agencies 

mentioned: Spitalfields Small Business 

Association, Account3, and the Cultural 

Industries Development Agency, and the 

Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development 

Agency.     

 

3. Can the intermediate objectives set out under each strategic 

objective in part 5 be improved, amended or added to? 
The intermediate objectives were well received; although some stakeholders were 

concerned they were too short-term. The Council points out that the indicative action 

plan only covers the first year of the strategy and will be updated annually. Stakeholders 

are invited to participate in this process, which is outlined in the final chapter of the 

Employment Strategy. 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

A greater emphasis on skills was desired.  This is achieved through the partner 

Employment Strategy.  

Revision to Objective SO1: to include making 

full use of the s106 facility to fund support 

mechanisms for local business growth 

Use of resources made available through 

s106 is outside the scope of this Strategy.  

Nonetheless, this comment is noted. 

Page 107



 

6 

 

Revision to Objective SO5: to emphasis 

developing links further between university 

students and SMEs to create solutions to 

business problems through R&D and 

innovation.  

The Strategy recognises the role of local 

higher education institutions in helping to 

promote innovation in the enterprise 

economy, and students in such institutions 

would certainly be a vital part of this 

process. 

More emphasis was needed on considering 

the affect of regulatory work on promoting 

activities. For example work done in 

environmental health and street market 

management. Activities such as these are 

business facing and can reflect the Council’s 

attitude to business. Maximum importance 

should be given to objectives relating to local 

employment, supply chains, and 

sustainability.  

We welcome the comments regarding 

regulatory work. Work proposed under 

Intermediate Objective 3.1 seeks to ensure 

that the Council’s planning and regulatory 

functions take into account the needs of 

local enterprises. 

 

 

4. Do you agree with the delivery arrangements as they are set 

out in part 5.1? 
 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

Broadly respondents were satisfied with the 

delivery arrangement set out in part 5.1. 

One respondent suggested that under the 

‘influencing’ bullet point a requirement that 

the Council should exert its influence by 

introducing business support organisations 

such as ELBP to developers at a sufficiently 

early stage to encourage them to use local 

suppliers wherever possible.   

We welcome these comments.  With regard 

to the specific comment made, we propose 

an amendment to ensure that ELBP can 

take part in joint working arrangements 

designed to increase the amount of 

business done by local enterprises.  

A comment was made towards the provision 

of premises and the development of a more 

flexible approach through policies related to 

‘change of use’ for available vacant premises 

The Enterprise Team is regularly involved in 

consultations regarding planning regulation 

and policy and we will continue to do so. 

We will be commenting on the forthcoming 

consultation on the relaxation of planning 

Page 108



 

7 

 

was welcomed.  rules.  

The suggestion of an expanded Enterprise 

Group was proposed, and a note to ensure 

engagement of SMEs through dedicated 

consultation events is required.  

The main role for the Enterprise Task Group 

in the Strategy is a coordination one.  The 

Group will be advised by local enterprises 

and there will be a variety of consultation 

processes to ensure that the Strategy is 

delivered in a way which will provide 

demonstrable benefits to the local 

enterprise communities.  

The strategy should include an objective 

associated with the development of work 

based learning and skills.  

This is primarily an item to be tackled in the 

Employment Strategy 

Consultees felt that the strategy needed 

more emphasis on young people developing 

youth enterprise, outlining organisations 

that can support young people, such as the 

Prince’s Trust to develop their ideas or 

consider the self employment route.  

 

We will mention the potential role of the 

Prince’s Trust in encouraging an 

entrepreneurial spirit and culture of 

innovation, particularly in relation to work 

with young people. 

Some respondents felt that the Enterprise 

Strategy should address the informal 

economy operating in the borough and the 

impact this has for residents in terms of 

accessing jobs.  

 

Research suggests that key reasons for the 

existence of the informal economy relates 

to individuals who have low skills and 

language barriers which make it difficult for 

them to access jobs in the labour market 

and therefore seek work in the informal 

economy accepting lower wages and cash in 

hand.  We will address these barriers 

through our strategies; responding to the 

skills needs of residents including provision 

of ESOL are priorities within the 

Employment Strategy.  

The strategy should state interventions 

required to enhance the skills of residents 

which enable them to access employment 

and emphasise that the most effective 

support is via frontline services within the 

community.  

 

We welcome these comments.  There are 

prominent references in the Employment 

Strategy on increasing delivery by the third 

sector, working with the third sector to 

secure partnering and co-commissioning 

opportunities with prime contractors, and 

engaging with the third sector in Tower 

Hamlets to ensure residents from 

disadvantaged groups have access to 

Page 109



 

8 

 

information and support. These references 

are not repeated in the Enterprise Strategy, 

which is concerned more with the demand 

side of the economy. 

The strategy should state a commitment to 

the council ensuring all relevant contracts 

include local labour clauses. 

 

The council has made this commitment; 

targets are outlined for both local 

employment and local procurement within 

the council’s procurement, employment, 

draft Planning Obligations SPD and the 

borough enterprise strategy. The 

Employment and Enterprise team will 

continue to work closely with planning and 

corporate procurement to maximise the 

benefits for borough residents. 

The strategy should state a clear 

commitment to encourage and support local 

residents to establish their own social 

enterprise or co-operative.  

The importance of social enterprise is 

emphasised in the Strategy, and support for 

residents who wish to establish an 

enterprise is one of the main strategic 

themes. 

Refocus planning priorities to encourage the 

development of more workshop, small office 

and business starter units of 500 – 1000 

square feet.  

 

The Enterprise Team is working with 

Strategic Planning and Development 

Implementation teams to develop an 

approach to securing flexible, affordable 

business space provision for small, start up 

businesses. The strategy does highlight the 

need for this type of provision in the 

‘Challenges’ section, and measures to bring 

about such provision are contained in the 

strategic objectives. 

To conduct research on the impact of new 

businesses on the local economy and local 

employment opportunities; this should 

include information on the survival rates, 

turnover and employee numbers.  

 

We welcome the suggestion.  The council 

produces annual updates on the business 

environment.  Each of the Employment and 

Enterprise Strategies has been produced in 

association with the borough’s Local 

Economic Analysis (LEA), which forms the 

evidence base for the strategies. 

Intermediate objective 3.2 commits to 

further research on similar issues, with a 

focus on equalities and diversity.    

Page 110



 

9 

 

 

 

5. What are your comments on the action plan attached to the 

strategy? 
 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

While the Action Plan was largely embraced 

by respondents, one respondent felt that 

more recognition was needed for 

organisations such as ELBP as a useful 

partner in local procurement and supply 

chain development.  

We welcome these comments, and the 

Action Plan has been amended to give more 

responsibilities to ELBP for procurement/ 

supply chain work. 

Another comment was that the plan seemed 

to have gaps in terms of tasks for the coming 

year particularly where the 2012 Olympics 

are concerned.   

A key action under Intermediate Objective 

3.1, promoting Tower Hamlets as a location 

for investment and enterprise, and a 

destination for visitors, is to develop a 

communications plan to promote the 

borough, highlighting established brands 

such as Curry Capital and High Street 2012, 

enterprise successes, and the borough’s 

suitability for growth sectors. This is 

intended to take advantage of the 

opportunities presented by the Olympics 

over the coming year. 

One respondent strongly asserted that the 

action plan needed significant development 

in order for it to give credibility to the 

strategy. 

We agree with these comments.  A new 

Action Plan has been drawn up to 

implement the Strategy and to take account 

of the comments received. 

Although leadership is mentioned through 

the Enterprise Task Group, there is no 

representation from the Learning and Skills 

Council, schools or training providers. It was 

put forward that arrangement for delivery of 

the strategy should include representatives 

from all key work based learning and skilled 

This is more a matter for the Employment 

Strategy.  Both the Enterprise and 

Employment Strategies will be delivered in 

the context of Tower Hamlets partnership 

arrangements, which will include training 

providers.  

Page 111



 

10 

 

players and schools.  

  

6. Additional comments 
The consultation gave space for respondents to make general comments on the 

strategy, its emphasis, omissions etc.  

Respondents took the opportunity to comment on the overall Strategy and stated that it 

has the potential to deliver change and results, and that partners are keen to participate 

in the process.  

One respondent added in this section that Sir Michael Marmot’s review of health 

inequalities proposes a healthy living wage, building on the London Living Wage. It was 

felt that supporting this through the strategy would maximise gains from enterprise 

growth if this concept is developed and encouraged.  

An additional comment was made regarding the Government Business Link service 

which comes to a close in November 2011. The respondent felt that as the revised 

Business Link service would be web based support, it was important to point out that 

industry clients need one to one business support whether they are start up or existing 

businesses.   This is a point which will certainly be taken up in the implementation of the 

Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



1
 

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

A
M

L
E

T
S

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

F
U

L
L

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S

 I
M

P
A

C
T

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

 –
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
  1

a
) 

N
a

m
e
 o

f 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

P
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

: 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 1
b

) 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
: 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a

l 
 1

c
) 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
: 

N
ic

k
 S

m
a

le
s
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
 1

d
) 

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r/
s

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

s
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

in
g

 t
h

e
 E

Q
IA

: 
M

e
la

n
ie

 A
u

s
t,

 I
n

d
e

p
e
n
d

e
n

t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

 a
d

v
is

o
r 

in
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

A
n

d
y
 S

c
o

tt
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
H

u
w

 M
o

rg
a

n
-T

h
o
m

a
s
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
, 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 1
e

) 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
: 

T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
 i
n

tr
in

s
ic

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 P
ro

s
p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

h
e

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 (

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 E

Q
IA

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

in
g
 i
t)

. 
T

h
is

 t
h
e

m
e

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

‘F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 b

y
: 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 b
o

th
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

 
•
 

M
a

x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 k
e
y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 
G

a
m

e
s
. 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

, 
w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

m
p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 a

n
d

 
P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s
’.
 

Page 113



2
 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

s
e

e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

le
 3

 –
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

‘I
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
y
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
, 

in
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
r 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

is
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 o
th

e
rs

’.
  
T

h
is

 E
Q

IA
 

w
ill

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

is
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

p
p

lie
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 i
n
 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 
 T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

u
ilt

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 ‘
s
u
p

p
ly

’ 
(p

e
o
p

le
) 

a
n
d

 ‘
d

e
m

a
n

d
’ 
(j
o

b
s
) 

s
id

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 f
it
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

lin
e

 o
f 

s
it
e

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
s
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
  

 T
h

is
 E

Q
IA

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
ra

ft
in

g
 s

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

  
 

 T
h

is
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

g
e

s
 a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 
 

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

  
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
  

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

/M
a

rc
h

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
e

e
d

in
g
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

a
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

‘d
e

m
a

n
d

’ 
s
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
) 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 2
1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
to

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 2
1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
to

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 

 T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
. 

 N
in

e
 l
a

rg
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 b
ro

a
d
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
t 

w
a

s
 

n
o

te
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
e

ll 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
e

d
. 

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

io
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 
th

e
 r

e
d

ra
ft

e
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
is

 E
Q

IA
. 

  

Page 114



3
 

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
 –

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 P
o

li
c

y
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 
  2

a
) 

P
le

a
s
e

 e
x

p
la

in
 t

h
e

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

p
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
fu

n
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 
 W

H
A

T
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

?
 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

fo
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 s
u

it
e

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

, 
a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 i
s
 t

h
e
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

. 
 

T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 
re

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

h
e
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

P
la

n
: 

 ‘T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

h
o

s
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
–

 r
e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 a

 m
o

re
 p

ro
s
p
e

ro
u

s
 p

la
c
e
. 

 B
u

t 
p

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

 i
s
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

a
b
o

u
t 

w
e

a
lt
h
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
b

o
u

t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e
 t

h
e

 
b

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 J
o

b
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 f
u

lf
ilm

e
n
t,

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
o

 e
n

jo
y
 l
if
e
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
in

g
 t
h

is
 a

 
re

a
lit

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
to

 w
o

rk
, 

g
iv

in
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 j
o

b
-r

e
a

d
y
 

a
n

d
 b

y
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 n

e
w

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
’.
 

 T
h
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

  
 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
s
 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
 I

t 
d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 ‘
d

e
m

a
n

d
’ 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 –

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
w

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

  
T

h
e

 ‘
s
u
p

p
ly

’ 
s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 –

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

e
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
s
 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 a
n

d
 i
t’
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 E
Q

IA
. 

 T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
: 

‘e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
, 

p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’ 
 

Page 115



4
 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 3

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 –

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

1
.1

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 
1

.2
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
a

rg
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 h

a
rn

e
s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o
f 

S
M

E
s
  

1
.3

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

  
 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 a

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e

 
2

.1
 S

e
c
u

re
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 

2
.2

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

is
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

2
.3

 E
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 a

n
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n
e

u
ri
a

l 
s
p

ir
it
 a

n
d

 a
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
o
n

. 

 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 –

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 w
is

h
e

s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

s
 

3
.1

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’ 
e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 v

o
ic

e
  

3
.2

 I
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

3
.3

 P
ro

m
o

te
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 a

s
 a

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
a
n

d
 a

 d
e

s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
v
is

it
o

rs
 

 W
H

Y
 I

S
 T

H
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
?

 
T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 ‘
to

 s
e

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

fo
r 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
 s

tr
o

n
g
, 

d
iv

e
rs

if
ie

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

tr
e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 o

n
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fo

c
u

s
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

’.
  

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 t
o

 s
it
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n
. 

S
p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
t 

s
it
s
 a

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
a

n
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

in
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 
o

v
e

rl
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 a
u

th
o
ri
ta

ti
v
e

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t,

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
, 
fo

rm
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t

h
is

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
p

e
c
ts

: 

Page 116



5
 

 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

s
 c

re
a

te
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
–

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 j
o
b

s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r…

. 
•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
s
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 w

e
a

lt
h

 –
 M

a
n

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 e
a

rn
 a

 l
iv

in
g
 b

y
 o

w
n

in
g
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
b

y
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
. 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 f
u

e
ls

 l
o

c
a

l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

s
 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
. 

 T
h
e

 k
e

y
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 d
o
 t

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t
o

 f
o

s
te

r 
n

e
w

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 

p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

lim
it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

  
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 s

tr
o

n
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
ic

tu
re

 i
s
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 

  
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 a

 p
la

c
e

 
w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
t 
h

a
s
 a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
s
 

it
 m

o
v
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

•
 

S
k
ill

s
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 

•
 

R
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
•
 

L
im

it
e
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 f
o

r 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

•
 

U
n

d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

•
 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 w
o

rk
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

 T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
in

 i
ts

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

n
y
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

h
ic

h
 ‘
lie

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

m
b

it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

’ 
a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 i
n

 a
n

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lim
it
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 I
t 
h

a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u

s
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 
o

n
 a

d
d

in
g
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

in
g
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 p
ro

-e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
in

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 W

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
a

 r
o
b

u
s
t 
a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
y
 b

e
h

in
d

 e
n

a
b

lin
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

T
h
e

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 h

o
w

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 j
o

b
s
. 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e
 t
h

a
t 

g
e
n

e
ra

te
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
h

e
s
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

ro
b

u
s
t 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 u

n
d
e

rp
in

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

in
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 b
e

n
e
fi
tt

in
g
 a

re
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

Page 117



6
 

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

. 
  

 T
h

is
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h

ile
 a

c
c
e
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, 

a
im

s
 t
o

 a
d

d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 a
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 i
ts

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
  

 H
O

W
 H

A
S

 T
H

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 B

E
E

N
 R

E
V

IS
E

D
?

 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 –
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 ‘
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

’ 
w

a
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

  
 T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 w
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

u
s
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 a
 s

o
lid

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 –

 w
h

ic
h

 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

a
s
 ‘
w

e
ll 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
e

d
’.
  

It
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t:
 

•
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 i
s
 w

o
rt

h
 o

v
e

r 
£

6
b

n
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 l
a

rg
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

H
o

s
t 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 a

n
d
 b

ig
g
e

r 
th

a
n

 M
o
n

a
c
o

, 
M

a
lt
a

 o
r 

J
e

rs
e

y
 

•
 

T
h
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 2

0
4
,0

0
0

 j
o

b
s
, 

5
%

 o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 t
o
ta

l 
a
n

d
 3

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

jo
b

s
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
L

o
n
d
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 6
0

,0
0

0
 m

o
re

 j
o

b
s
 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 

•
 

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n
 a

 f
if
th

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
re

 t
a
k
e

n
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
; 

th
e

 o
th

e
rs

 a
re

 f
ill

e
d

 b
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
m

u
ti
n

g
 i
n

 

•
 

T
w

o
 t

h
ir
d

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 h
a

lf
 i
n

 C
e
n

tr
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 –
 m

a
in

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 
W

e
s
tm

in
s
te

r.
  

A
 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

o
u

t-
c
o
m

m
u

te
rs

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

A
 t

h
ir
d

 o
f 

a
ll 

jo
b

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
re

 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

fi
ft

h
 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

5
5

%
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p
a

ra
b

le
 w

it
h

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

. 
 I
n

 c
o
n

tr
a

s
t,
 m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 –

 i
f 

n
e
w

s
p

a
p

e
r 

p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 i
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 –

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o
r 

ju
s
t 

2
%

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 

•
 

M
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 a
n

y
w

h
e

re
 e

ls
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
la

rg
e

 f
ir
m

s
 d

o
m

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 –

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
4

5
%

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 i
n
 f

ir
m

s
 w

it
h

 5
0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
7
0

%
 i
n

 C
a
n

a
ry

 W
h
a

rf
 i
ts

e
lf
 

•
 

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
1

3
%

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o

 t
w

ic
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

7
.6

%
. 

 O
n

ly
 7

0
%

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 w
o

rk
 o

r 
lo

o
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
, 
fo

r 
fe

m
a

le
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 6
0

%
. 

 A
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 –

 t
w

ic
e

 t
h
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 –
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 w
o

rk
 

•
 

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
in

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 i
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

s
 i
n
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 H

o
u

s
e

 p
ri
c
e

s
 a

re
 s

ix
 t

im
e

s
 m

e
a
n

 e
a

rn
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e

r 
8

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

la
ts

, 
c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 5
0

%
 

fo
r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 

•
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 t

h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 m
o

s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o
n

. 
 B

u
t 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 a
 t

e
n
th

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 e

a
rn

 o
v
e

r 
£
1

0
0

,0
0

0
, 

c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
%

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 

Page 118



7
 

 

•
 

T
h
e

 l
a

s
t 
d

e
c
a

d
e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 j
o

b
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
6
0

%
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 –
 f

o
u

r 
ti
m

e
s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 f

o
r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

. 
 O

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
e

n
ty

 y
e

a
rs

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5
0

,0
0
0

 –
 f

a
s
te

r 
th

a
n

 i
n
 a

ll 
b

u
t 

o
n

e
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
n

d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
. T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e
 a

n
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 W
h

ile
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 t
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 i
t’
s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
, 

it
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

is
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
c
e

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

lin
e
 o

f 
s
ig

h
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 c

le
a

rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 a

 l
im

it
e

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 i
ts

’ 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

. 
 A

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 
m

a
d
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 l
in

k
a

g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
g
e

n
d

e
r,

 s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

l,
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
, 
s
o

c
io

-e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e

. 
 O

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
2

0
 y

e
a

rs
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
e

d
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

C
a

n
a

ry
 W

h
a

rf
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
 F

ri
n

g
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
n

 e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
.4

 j
o

b
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 8

5
%

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
a

re
 f

ill
e

d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
in

to
 w

o
rk

 e
v
e

ry
 d

a
y
. 

 A
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

a
n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
lo

w
 s

k
ill

e
d

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
tr

e
n

c
h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 T
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
p

p
e
a

rs
 

to
 b

e
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h

 s
k
ill

. 
 T

h
is

 c
re

a
te

s
 a

 s
k
ill

s
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 f

o
r 

a
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 (
3

5
,5

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

w
h

ic
h

 e
q
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 a
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
m

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 w
o

rk
).

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e
n

tr
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
jo

b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

 
re

la
ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
w

e
ll-

p
a

id
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 t

w
o

. 
 9

5
%

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
n

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

 
2

0
0
9

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 f

ill
in

g
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

s
k
ill

 s
h

o
rt

a
g
e

s
. 

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

s
u

b
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 

(a
n

d
th

e
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

) 
in

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 i
ts

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
im

s
. 

 T
h
e

 E
Q

IA
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
. 

 S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

•
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 –
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
te

x
ts

, 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

im
 a

n
d

 6
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

; 

•
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 –

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 a

 u
n

iq
u

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

m
a

p
s
 o

u
t 
th

e
 g

a
p

s
 

Page 119



8
 

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
, 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
m

u
tu

a
l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t,

 w
a

rn
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
fa

ilu
re

, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

s
e

ts
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
; 

•
 

W
h

a
t 

is
 h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
–

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
c
h
a

n
g
e

, 
A

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
/d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
tr

a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
to

rs
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
lu

s
te

ri
n

g
, 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

, 
a

n
 

e
n

te
rp

ri
s
in

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
; 

•
 

W
h

o
’s

 w
h

o
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 –

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

rs
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il;

 

•
 

P
ro

b
le

m
s

 –
  

th
e

 s
k
ill

s
 g

a
p

 –
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 
re

la
ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 r

a
te

 o
f 

s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 l
im

it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

u
n

d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 w
o

rk
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 

 T
h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 b
u

ild
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
ts

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
. 

   S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

P
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 
  W

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

?
 

T
h
e

 b
u

lk
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 f
o

rc
e

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
d

u
ty

 w
ill

 c
o

m
e

 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
1

. 
In

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i
ts

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 m
u

s
t 

g
iv

e
 d

u
e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
: 

•
 

E
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 
h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t,

 v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

n
d
u

c
t 

th
a

t 
is

 p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d

 b
y
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
is

 A
c
t;
 

•
 

A
d

v
a

n
c
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 s
h
a

re
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 d
o
 n

o
t 

s
h

a
re

 i
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
n

s
 

•
 

R
e

m
o

v
in

g
 o

r 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

•
 

T
a

k
in

g
 s

te
p

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

•
 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 l
if
e

 o
r 

in
 o

th
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
  

  
d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

ly
 l
o

w
. 

 

•
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
s
h

a
re

 i
t.

 

Page 120



9
 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
o

n
u

s
 o

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
h

o
w

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
c
k
le

d
. 

 
 T

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a

 k
e

y
 a

im
 t
o

 ‘
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
, 

p
ro

s
p
e

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’.
  
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

lim
it
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
to

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

: 

•
 

T
h
e

 ‘
s
u

p
p

ly
’ 
s
id

e
 –

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 –

 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
o
n

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 –

 b
o
th

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
g
lo

b
a

l 
–

 a
n

d
 i
s
n
o

t 
lo

c
a

lly
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

. 

•
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
s
o

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

a
lly

. 

•
 

T
h
e

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 m
a

in
ly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 h
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 –

 i
n

 a
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
h

e
re

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
o

w
. 

 E
n

s
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
a

t 
s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

b
u

t 
it
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 i
f 

th
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

. 

•
 

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 b

o
th

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 s
c
o
p

e
 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 e

.g
. 

B
a
n

g
la

d
e

s
h

i 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 m

e
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

2
9
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a

 s
o

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
th

a
n

 a
n

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a

c
t.
  

S
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
re

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
u

ld
 o

ff
e

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

, 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
. 

    S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
b

y
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 S

tr
a

n
d

 
 R

A
C

E
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ra
c
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 r

a
c
e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
to

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
ra

c
e
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 n

o
n
-w

h
it
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

4
5
%

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 a

 1
3
%

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
A

s
ia

n
 o

ri
g

in
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
n
d
s
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
s
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
. 

 T
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

S
k
ill

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

N
E

S
S

) 
s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
t 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
a
t:
 

‘H
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 l
o
w

 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 s

tr
u
g
g

le
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 d

e
b
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
a
n
s
. 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 f
ri
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ily
, 

m
a
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

re
v
a
le

n
t 

a
m

o
n
g
 t

h
e
 B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
’.
 

Page 121



1
0

 

 le
a
s
t 

h
a
lf
 t

h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

h
a
lf
 o

w
n
e
d
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 a

 b
la

c
k
, 
a
s
ia

n
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
.  

 

 It
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 w

e
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 –

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 (

e
.g

. 
w

h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 

a
re

 t
h
e
y
 f

ro
m

, 
w

h
a
t 

s
o
rt

 o
f 

s
e
c
to

rs
 a

re
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
).

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 ‘
d
e
m

a
n
d
’ 
s
id

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
w

h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
g

e
n
d
e
r,

 a
g

e
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

fa
it
h
 (

a
n
d
 i
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 L
G

B
T

) 
to

 
e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

  
to

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
p
p
in

g
, 
s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 a
n

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

e
.g

.1
c
, 
2
b
, 
3
a
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 

e
a
rl
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 e

a
rl
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
 g

re
a
te

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

w
n
e
rs

. 
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

: 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 p
a
id

 o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

p
o
o
r 

h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

  
T

h
o
s
e
 o

n
 c

la
im

in
g
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 (

E
S

A
) 

is
 p

a
id

 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
s
e
 i
lln

e
s
s
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 l
im

it
s
 

th
e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
s
 b

o
th

 I
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
(I

B
) 

a
n
d
 

In
c
o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
IS

).
 I

n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
2
,3

7
0
 E

S
A

/I
B

 
c
la

im
a
n
ts

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

; 
7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
. 
 B

y
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
, 
o
f 

2
,6

0
0
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

S
A

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

; 
7
6
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
w

e
re

 
fo

u
n
d
 f

it
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
e
a
le

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

3
7
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
w

e
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
W

e
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

4
5
%

 o
f 

IB
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 i
n
 

P
a
rt

ia
ll

y
:T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
t 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 m
o
s
t 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 m
o
s
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a

t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 o
r 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
 r

e
a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
 N

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
lo

it
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

Page 122



1
1

 

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 a
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
. 
 

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

w
ic

e
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 n
o
t 
to

 h
o
ld

 a
n
y
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

o
ld

 a
 d

e
g
re

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 e

m
p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
. 
 

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 

    G
E

N
D

E
R

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g

e
n
d
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 T

ra
n

s
 

p
e
o
p
le

) 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
g

e
n

d
e
r 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

g
e
n

d
e
r 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 f

a
ll 

o
n
 w

o
m

e
n
. 
L
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
(9

0
%

 o
f 

w
h
o
m

 a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
) 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 h

a
rd

e
s
t 

h
it
 (

T
U

C
 r

e
p
o
rt

 T
h
e
 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 C

u
ts

),
 l
o
s
in

g
 1

8
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 n

e
t 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
  

 
W

o
m

e
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
6
5
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

 h
e
a
v
ie

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
jo

b
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
a
n
 m

e
n
. 
 P

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
jo

b
 

lo
s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

e
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

a
rd

 b
y
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

a
y
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
is

 j
u
s
t 

£
6
.7

8
 a

n
 

h
o
u
r 

(c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 £

9
.3

4
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r)
. 
  
T

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
b
o
u
t 

o
n
e
 s

ix
th

 o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 d

iv
e
rs

if
y
. 

 K
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 w

it
h
in

 
s
e
c
to

rs
 w

h
e
re

 w
o
m

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
lly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 e

.g
. 
re

ta
il,

 t
o
u
ri
s
m

, 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
k
e
y
 s

k
ill

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
g

ro
u
p
s
 –

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

o
m

e
n
 –

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 p
o
o
l 
o
f 

s
k
ill

e
d

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
re

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

B
a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 
a
n
d
 S

o
m

a
li 

w
o
m

e
n
. 
 

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t3

 W
o
m

e
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
a
s
 a

 ‘
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
’.
  
T

h
is

 s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

in
g

 f
ro

m
 w

o
m

e
n

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 f
o
llo

w
 s

h
o
rt

ly
, 

w
it
h
 

Page 123



1
2

 

 

S
o
m

a
li 

a
n
d
 B

a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 f
a
c
e
d
 b

y
 w

o
m

e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
s
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
tr

o
n
g
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 p

la
y
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
p
a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 
 I
t 
a
ls

o
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
o
u
te

 w
a
y
s
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
is

 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 b
o
th

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
s
 m

a
y
 f

lo
w

 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

. 
  

 A
G

E
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl

in
e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
o

li
c
y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti

o
n

 o
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
  

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g

e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

a
g

e
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
W

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t

h
ir
d
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g

e
d
 5

5
-5

9
 c

la
im

in
g
 a

n
 o

u
t-

o
f-

w
o
rk

 
b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
v
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 
c
o
u
n
t 

re
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
tw

ic
e
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
  

N
o

: 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 S

O
5
 ‘
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

 c
u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
in

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
s
p
ir
it
’.
 

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 a
ll 

th
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu

tu
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 w

ill
 

ta
rg

e
t 
m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
. 

 
C

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
: 

O
v
e
r 

6
0
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

re
 c

la
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 l
o
w

-i
n
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

 O
v
e
r 

5
0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

liv
e
 i
n
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 c

la
im

in
g
 k

e
y
 o

u
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
 3

3
%

 o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g

 o
n
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

2
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
 A

ll 
w

a
rd

s
 e

x
h
ib

it
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 U

K
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 T

h
e
 w

a
rd

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 S

t 
D

u
n
s
ta

n
’s

 a
n
d
 S

te
p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
a
rl
y
 7

0
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 B

ro
m

le
y
 b

y
 B

o
w

, 
M

ile
 E

n
d
 E

a
s
t,

 

Y
e
s
: 

 T
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 
c
le

a
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

c
u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 c

le
a
rl
y
 l
in

k
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
is

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t’
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
N

1
 1

1
6
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
. 

Page 124



1
3

 

 E
a
s
t 
In

d
ia

 a
n
d
 L

a
n
s
b
u
ry

, 
B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 S

h
a
d

w
e
ll,

 e
a
c
h
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
w

o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
. 

 L
ik

e
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

e
s
, 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 h

ig
h
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

th
e
 U

K
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
t 
s
h
o
w

 s
tr

o
n
g

 s
p
a
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 B
y
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ri

n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 j
o
b
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
u
rd

e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 E

x
c
h
e
q

u
e
r 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
o
s
ts

. 
 I

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

e
d
ia

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 

is
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 b

o
th

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

b
a
tt
in

g
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 H

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
is

p
o
s
a
b
le

 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
ta

il,
 l
e
is

u
re

, 
to

u
ri
s
m

 
a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
s
p
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 
U

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

: 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
1
6
-1

8
, 
n
o
t 
in

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 i
n
to

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

1
8
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 (
1
7
%

) 
th

a
n
 1

6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 (

4
%

) 
to

 b
e
 N

E
E

T
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 i
s
 g

e
tt

in
g

 w
o
rs

e
 f
o
r 

1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
h
a
s
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g

e
s
t 
jo

b
-s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 –

 4
3
%

 o
f 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 
a
re

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
2
9
. 
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 (

1
1
.2

%
) 

a
n
d
 B

a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 (
9
.4

%
) 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
c
la

im
a
n
t 
ra

te
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

‘Y
o
u
r 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
’ 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

e
s
t 
m

a
rk

e
t 
s
ta

lls
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
a
d
v
o
c
a
ti
n
g

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 S

M
E

’s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 E

L
B

A
.I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o
 j
o
b
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
ta

n
y
 g

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 –

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
  

S
E

X
U

A
L

 O
R

IE
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 g

a
y
, 

le
s
b
ia

n
 (

L
G

B
) 

a
n
d
 b

is
e
x
u
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
L

G
B

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

L
G

B
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  

Page 125



1
4

 

 It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
1
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g

a
y
 o

r 
b
is

e
x
u
a
l 
(L

G
B

),
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 2
3
,9

0
0
 L

G
B

 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 

N
o

: 
 T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

n
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

r 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 i
ts

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

c
le

a
r 

if
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 b
a
rr

ie
r 

in
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
in

 
b
e
in

g
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

w
n
e
r,

 o
r 

if
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
s
h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

L
G

B
T

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 
  

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 b

u
ild

s
 a

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 f
a
c
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

fr
o
m

 L
G

B
T

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 w

h
o
 w

a
n
t 

to
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

s
e
c
to

r.
 

 
R

E
L

IG
IO

N
/B

E
L

IE
F

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
re

lig
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
lie

fs
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
re

li
g

io
n

/b
e
li

e
f 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

R
e
li

g
io

n
/ 

B
e
li

e
f 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
re

lig
io

n
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

f 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
. 

7
8
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
ta

te
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
e
lig

io
u
s
 b

e
lie

f,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
M

u
s
lim

 p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 

a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
; 

a
t 
3
6
.4

%
 a

n
d
 4

0
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

f 
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 

re
s
p
e
c
ts

 i
n
tr

in
s
ic

a
lly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

M
u
s
lim

 w
o
m

e
n
. 
  
 

 

Y
e
s
: 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
Is

la
m

ic
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
s
ta

rt
-u

p
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

th
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 n

e
w

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 It
 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
fa

it
h
s
 m

a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
a
re

e
r 

p
a
th

 e
.g

. 
s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

. 
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

  
S

O
C

IO
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
io

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
s
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

s
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
tr

u
g
g

le
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
jo

b
s
,i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
ra

v
e
l 
o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 8

5
%

 o
f 
jo

b
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 f

ill
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 h

a
s
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
n
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 (

IC
T

 a
n
d
 H

ig
h
 T

e
c
h
, 

Page 126



1
5

 

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

m
u
te

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 e
v
e
ry

 d
a
y
. 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
, 

re
ta

il,
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t

o
u
ri
s
m

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
m

b
a
la

n
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
is

 c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 

is
s
u
e
 a

re
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

s
 a

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
; 
th

a
t 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 d

iv
e
rs

if
y
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 o

v
e
rl
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 m
u
tu

a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
c
o

h
e
s
io

n
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

c
o

h
e
s
io

n
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 l
o
n
g

 b
e
e
n
 a

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 l
iv

e
d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r.

 O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

e
n
ty

 y
e
a
rs

, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
ts

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
d
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
is

 i
n

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

b
o
th

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 F

ri
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 C

a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

 h
a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 b
o
o
m

 i
n
 h

ig
h
-s

k
ill

e
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 o
c
c
u
p
a

ti
o
n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

lo
n
g

s
id

e
 a

 m
a
rk

e
d
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 m

o
re

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
lo

w
e
r-

s
k
ill

e
d
, 

lo
w

e
r-

p
a
id

 s
e
c
to

rs
 (

th
e
 r

is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

a
n
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
).

 P
o
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 t
h
e
 d

o
m

in
a
n
t 
fe

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

, 
w

it
h
 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
s
 e

a
rn

in
g

 £
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r,

 b
u
t 
s
o
m

e
 4

7
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

o
d
a
y
, 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ic

tu
re

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 p

le
n
ty

. 
 

   

Y
e
s
: 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 
m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
n
d
e
m

 i
f 

w
e
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
 I
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
c
u
lt
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 n
e
x
t 

w
a
v
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 –

 ‘
e
n

tr
e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

a
n
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 
p
u
b
lic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

s
tr

iv
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
n
o
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

’.
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
; 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

n
e

w
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

; 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 b

y
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

C
T

/T
e
c
h
 C

it
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 

m
ic

ro
 a

n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 b

ig
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 C

S
R

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 t
h
e
 ‘
d
e
m

a
n
d
’ 
s
id

e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 A

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 2

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 d

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 c

o
n
c
e
rt

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e

 b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 

Page 127



1
6

 

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

g
ro

w
th

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

 c
a
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 A

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 n
a
tu

re
 t

o
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 o

ff
e
rs

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 –

 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 s

m
a
ll-

 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
s
e
 l
in

k
s
 i
s
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 

a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

M
a

y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

. 
  
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 s
p
e
ll 

o
u
t 

e
x
a
c
tl
y
 

h
o
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 g
o
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 l
in

k
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
ro

u
te

 w
a
y
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

is
 t

o
 o

c
c
u
r.

 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
fi
s
c
a
l 
ti
g

h
te

n
in

g
 t
h
a
t 

s
e
e
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
£
4
0
b
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 

w
e

lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

e
e
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 w

o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 t
h
e
 f

is
c
a

l 
ti
g

h
te

n
in

g
 i
s
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
jo

b
s
 (

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

) 
g

o
in

g
. 
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 o

u
t-

s
o
u
rc

in
g
 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 
 V

A
T

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 2

0
%

 
fr

o
m

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
. 

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d

e
b
t 
h
a
s
 l
e
d
 

to
 V

A
T

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

te
e
p
ly

 t
o
 2

0
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

p
e
n

d
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 p

o
w

e
r 

w
ill

 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 o
n
 m

a
n
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 M

a
n
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

a
re

 r
e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
it
h
e
r 

a
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

o
r 

a
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 M
a
n
y
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
  
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

fo
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

im
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 b

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 b

y
 h

e
lp

in
g

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

. 
U

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
d
iv

id
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

h
e
n
o
m

e
n
o
n

 o
f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

c
h
u
rn

, 
b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 a

 c
h
o
ic

e
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 b

e
tt
e
r 

jo
b
s
 a

n
d
 g

re
a
te

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
. 

B
y
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

th
e
y
 c

re
a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
rs

, 
o
ft

e
n
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
o
r 

m
o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 
s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

a
re

e
r 

in
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

–
 a

n
d
 s

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
n
d
s
 t

o
 r

e
-a

s
s
e
rt

 i
ts

e
lf
. 
T

h
is

 
c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 i
n
d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 s

e
e
m

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 b

ir
th

s
, 

d
e

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
rv

iv
a

l 
ra

te
s
. 
  

A
 g

o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
u
rn

 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 

a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 c

h
u
rn

 m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 m
o
re

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
, 

s
k
ill

e
d
 

Page 128



1
7

 

 u
n
u
s
u
a
lly

 r
e
s
is

ta
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 i
n
 f
a
c
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

a
n
d
 p

a
id

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

rr
iv

in
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 I

t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 h

e
lp

fu
l 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
th

is
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
  

 In
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

E
A

, 
it
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
im

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 i
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

     

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 a
n

d
  
d

e
li
v
e
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 It
 i

s
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
a

k
e

n
 i

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
s

it
iv

e
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
in

 t
a

c
k

li
n

g
 t

h
e
 

h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
e

d
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
‘a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lu
e

’ 
o

r 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 ‘
m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

’.
  

It
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
ts

 a
im

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
a

k
e

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
o

 
b

u
ild

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
: 

‘I
n

 r
e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e

, 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

: 
 

•
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
; 

 

•
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 w
id

e
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
s
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

rs
’.
 

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f
o

r 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

Page 129



1
8

 

 to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 ‘
ri
g
h

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
’ 
a

re
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u
p

 s
h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 E

Q
IA

 a
re

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
1

. 
A

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

ro
le

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 M

a
y
o

r’
s
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

, 
g
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

  
2

. 
 A

n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n
a

ly
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

ta
k
e

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o
 a

n
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
. 

3
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

h
a

re
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 –

 (
b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
n
e

c
d

o
ta

l 
a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 b
a

s
e

) 
th

a
t 

th
o

s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 p

la
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 T
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 ‘
R

e
v
ie

w
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
D

F
) 

a
n
d

 p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
s
te

p
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
S

M
E

’s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

: 
 

 

- 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 
- 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
rt

 u
p

, 
g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t’
. 
 

 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
fi
rs

t 
s
te

p
 i
n

 e
n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

re
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 E

Q
IA

. 
 T

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 b
u

ilt
 u

p
o
n

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

  

Page 130



 1 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s use of 

the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“RIPA”). 
 
 
2.  Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider and comment on the 

information contained in Appendix 1. 
 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1. The report to the Standards Committee of 12 January 2012 is set out in Appendix 1 

and is provided in accordance with the standing request of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 
4.1 The report updates Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s use of the 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“RIPA”).  This report went to 
Standards Committee on 12 January. There are no financial implications arising 
from the recommendations in this report. 

 

 

Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny  
  

Date 
 
7 February 
2012 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 
 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 
Services) 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
David Galpin 
Head of Legal Services – Community 

Title:  
 
Covert investigation under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Background papers 

 
None 
 
 
 

Name and telephone number of and address 
where open to inspection 
 
N/A 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

Committee: 

 
Standards 
 

Date: 

 
12 January 2012 

Classification: 

 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No: Agenda Item: 

Report of:  

 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 
Services) 
 
Originating officer(s) David Galpin, 
Head of Legal Services - Community 
 

Title:  

 
Covert investigation under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The codes of practice issued by the Home Office in relation to Part 2 of the 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“RIPA”) recommend that elected 
members have oversight of the Council’s use of these provisions.  The Standards 
Committee's terms of reference enable the committee to receive reports on the 
Council's authorisation of covert investigations under RIPA. 

 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 

Standards Committee is recommended to:- 
 
2.1. Consider and comment upon the information provided in the report. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1. Covert investigation and RIPA 
 
3.2. The Council has broad statutory functions and takes targeted enforcement action 

in relation to those functions, having regard to the Tower Hamlets Community 
Plan, the Council’s Local Development Framework, any external targets or 
requirements imposed under relevant legislation and the Council’s enforcement 
policy.  There may be circumstances in the discharge of its statutory functions in 
which it is necessary for the Council to conduct directed surveillance or use a 
covert human intelligence source for the purpose of preventing crime or disorder. 

 
3.3. RIPA was enacted to provide a framework within which a public authority may 

use covert investigation for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime or of 
preventing disorder.  It is designed to ensure that public authorities do not 
contravene the obligation in section 6(1) of the Human Rights Act 1998 not to act 

Page 133



 2 

in a way which is incompatible with an individual’s rights under the European 
Convention on Human Rights (“ECHR”).  It is particularly concerned to prevent 
contravention of the qualified right in Article 8 of the ECHR to respect for private 
and family life, home and correspondence. 

 
3.4. The Council’s use of RIPA 
 
3.5. The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) ("ACE") is the Senior 

Responsible Officer for ensuring the Council complies with RIPA.  The Head of 
Legal Services (Community) ("HLS") is her deputy. 

 
3.6. The Council has policies on the use of directed surveillance or covert human 

intelligence sources.  The current versions of these policies were approved by 
Cabinet on 8 September 2010, as appendices to the Council’s enforcement 
policy.  The Council also has in place guidance manuals to assist officers in the 
authorisation process.  The policies and guidance are designed to help the 
Council comply with RIPA and the Codes of Practice issued by the Home Office 
in relation to directed surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence 
sources. 

 
3.7. The Council's priorities for using RIPA, as specified in its policies are - 
 

• Anti-social behaviour 

• Fly-tipping 

• Unlawful street vending of DVDs and tobacco 

• Underage sales of knives, tobacco, alcohol and fireworks 

• Fraud, including misuse of disabled parking badges and claims for 
housing benefit 

• Illegal money-lending and related offending 

• Breach of licences. 
 
3.8. In accordance with the Council's policies and manuals, a central record is 

maintained in Legal Services of all authorisations granted to carry out either 
directed surveillance or to use covert human intelligence sources (authorisations 
under Part 2 of RIPA).  To date this year, all applications for authorisation have 
been received from the Council’s Communities Localities and Culture directorate 
(“CLC”).  The Council provides an annual return to the Office of Surveillance 
Commissioners (“OSC”), based on the central record. 

 
3.9. In order to ensure that applications for RIPA authorisation are of an appropriate 

standard, the Council's policies and manuals provide that all applications for 
authorisation to conduct directed surveillance or to use covert human intelligence 
sources should be considered by a gatekeeper before being passed on to the 
authorising officer.  The Council has a single gatekeeper (the Head of 
Enforcement & Support Intervention within the Community Safety Service).  In 
the absence of the Head of Enforcement & Support Intervention, the HLS may 

Page 134



 3 

act as gatekeeper.  The gatekeeper must work with applicant officers to ensure 
an appropriate standard of applications, including that applications use the 
current template, correctly identify known targets and properly address issues of 
necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion. 

 
3.10. The Council has a single authorising officer (Service Head - Community Safety), 

who has responsibility for considering applications to use directed surveillance or 
covert human intelligence sources.  The policies provide that the Head of Internal 
Audit may stand in for the Service Head - Community Safety where the ACE or 
HLS consider it necessary. 

 
3.11. The Council’s policies and manuals require officers who apply for RIPA 

authorisations to expeditiously forward copies of authorisations, reviews and 
cancellations to Legal Services for the central record.  The HLS attends 
fortnightly at CLC's internal deployment meetings to ensure the central record is 
being kept up to date.  Representatives of each service area in CLC attend these 
meetings.  The Council’s authorising officer and gatekeeper attend.  The 
meetings provide an opportunity to check the status of applications and 
authorisations under RIPA and a forum at which officers may present any 
operations plans where covert investigation may be required and seek a steer 
from those at the meeting. 

 
3.12. The Council’s RIPA applications 
 
3.13. Quarter 3 of 2011/2012 
 
3.14. No authorisations were granted in the third quarter. 
 
3.15. Quarter 1 of 2011/2012 
 
3.16. In the report to the Committee of 11 October 2011, reference was made to the 

authorisation granted in respect of CS0001 on 4 July 2011.  At the time of 
preparing that report, the authorisation was still current and so no details were 
provided in the report.  Authorisation CS0001 was cancelled on 30 September 
2011, slightly earlier than expected, and details of the authorisation are now set 
out in Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.17. Quarter 2 of 2011/2012 
 
3.18. At the meeting on 11 October 2011, the Committee requested further information 

concerning the outcome of authorisation number CS0002.  For the sake of 
convenience, the summary provided in respect of CS0002 on 11 October 2011 is 
set out in Appendix 2.  The police charged the alleged perpetrator on 20 October 
2011 with nine counts of criminal damage, based on the incidents recorded by 
the Council on CCTV.  On 23 November 2011, the defendant pleaded not guilty 
at Thames Magistrates’ Court and a trial was fixed to take place (at Stratford 

Page 135



 4 

Magistrates’ Court) on 3 February 2012.  The action taken is considered to be 
consistent with the Council’s objectives in respect of combating anti-social 
behaviour. 

 
3.19. Reduction in covert activities 
 
3.20. On 11 October 2011, the Committee asked officers to comment on the reduction 

in requests for RIPA authorisation in 2011/2012, compared to the previous 
financial year. 

 
3.21. As reported to the Committee on 19 July 2011, there were 21 referrals in 

2010/2011, but only 12 authorisations were granted.  Of the remaining nine 
referrals (42%), two were refused authorisation, four were rejected by the 
gatekeeper and three were withdrawn.  The reduction in referrals in 2011/2012 is 
considered to relate in part to increased scrutiny by managers in order to identify 
cases were covert investigation is appropriate.  This includes giving 
consideration to whether ordinary methods of investigation have been fully 
explored. 

 
3.22. The following table provides a comparison of authorisations in 2011/2012 to date, 

compared with 2010/2011. 
 

Subject matter of investigation: 2010/2011 2011/2012 

Anti-social behaviour 5 1 

Consumer protection and 
counterfeit goods 

2 0 

Illegal money lending 1 0 

Graffiti and fly-posting 1 0 

Touting 2 1 

Fly tipping 1 0 

Total: 12 2 

 
3.23. It should be noted that the London Illegal Money Lending Team ceased to be the 

responsibility of Tower Hamlets in the current financial year. 
 
3.24. The Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers (THEOs) have contributed to the 

reduction in applications.  In the past there was no asset to task to a problem 
location, with the consequence that there was greater resort to the use of covert 
cameras.  Now that there uniformed officers are available, they are tasked to 
attend problem locations as a first option and they gather evidence for use in 
enforcement.  In relation to anti-social behaviour, the work of police, registered 
social landlords and Tower Hamlets Homes Ltd have also had an impact. 

 
3.25. The report to the Committee on 19 July 2011 indicated that not all authorisations 

granted in that year were successful in the sense of obtaining evidence of 
offences that could be used in enforcement action.  By contrast, both 

Page 136



 5 

authorisations granted to date in 2011/2012 have obtained evidence that can be 
used for enforcement.  This may indicate that more sparing use of covert 
investigation is warranted. 

 
3.26. There is no indication that the reduction in use of covert surveillance has led to a 

reduction in the Council’s overall enforcement activity.  As at 31 December 2011, 
the Council had already exceeded the 818 prosecutions conducted for the whole 
of 2010/2011, with 959 having been recorded at the time of preparing this report.  
There has likely been a shift in the types of cases handled and this can be 
analysed further at the end of the financial year.  It is clear that the greatest 
increase in prosecution referrals has come from the Tower Hamlets Enforcement 
Officers, who had contributed 398 (42%) of the prosecution cases recorded to 
the end of December 2011. 

 
 
4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
4.1 This is a report of the Council's use of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 

2000 (“RIPA”) to the Standards Committee. There are no financial implications 
arising from the recommendations in this report. 

 
 
5. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
5.1. Legal implications are addressed in the body of the report. 
 
 
6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1. Enforcement action that complies with the five principles expressed in the 

Council’s enforcement policy should help to achieve the objectives of equality 
and personal responsibility inherent in One Tower Hamlets. 

 
6.2. The enforcement policy should enhance Council efforts to align its enforcement 

action with its overall objectives disclosed in the Community Plan and other key 
documents such as the local area agreement and the Local Development 
Framework.  For example, one of the key Community Plan themes is A Great 
Place to Live.  Within this theme there are objectives such as reducing graffiti 
and litter.  The enforcement policy makes clear the need to target enforcement 
action towards such perceived problems.  At the same time, the enforcement 
policy should discourage enforcement action that is inconsistent with the 
Council's objectives. 

 
6.3. The exercise of the Council's various enforcement functions consistent with the 

enforcement policy and its principles should also help achieve the following key 
Community Plan themes – 

Page 137



 6 

 

• A Safe and Supportive Community.  This means a place where crime is 
rare and tackled effectively and where communities live in peace together. 

• A Great Place to Live.  This reflects the aspiration that Tower Hamlets 
should be a place where people enjoy living, working and studying and 
take pride in belonging. 

• A Prosperous Community.  This encompasses the objectives of reducing 
worklessness, supporting learning opportunities and fostering enterprise. 

 
6.4. An Equality Impact Assessment was prepared prior to approval of the 

enforcement policy by Cabinet on 8 September 2010.  Enforcement action may 
lead to indirect discrimination in limited circumstances, but this will be justified 
where the action is necessary and proportionate.  Necessity and proportionality 
are key considerations in respect of every application for authorisation under 
RIPA. 

 
 
7. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
7.1. The enforcement policy seeks to target the Council’s enforcement action in 

accordance with the Community Plan.  The Community Plan contains the 
Council’s sustainable community strategy for promoting or improving the 
economic, social and environmental well-being of Tower Hamlets and 
contributing to the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom.  To the extent that the enforcement policy aligns enforcement action 
with the Community Plan it will tend to promote sustainable action for a greener 
environment. 

 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. Enforcement action carries with it a variety of inherent risks, including the 

potential for allegations of over- or under-enforcement, discrimination, adverse 
costs orders and damage to the Council’s reputation.  It is considered that proper 
adherence to RIPA, the codes of practice, the Council's policies and guidance 
will ensure that risks are properly managed.  Oversight by the Standards 
Committee should also provide a useful check that risks are being appropriately 
managed. 

 
 
9. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
9.1. The report does not propose any direct expenditure.  Rather, it is concerned with 

regularising decision-making in areas in which the Council is already active.  The 
enforcement policy seeks to ensure that enforcement action is targeted to the 
Council’s policy objectives.  This is more likely to lead to efficient enforcement 

Page 138



 7 

action than a less-controlled enforcement effort.  It is also proposed that 
members will have an oversight role through the Standards Committee.  This will 
provide an opportunity to judge whether the Council’s enforcement action is 
being conducted efficiently. 

 
 
12. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Summary of Quarter 1 RIPA authorisations 
Appendix 2 – Summary of Quarter 2 RIPA authorisations 

 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

 
Brief description of “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder 

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 
 

Page 139



 8 

 

Page 140



 9 

APPENDIX 1 - SUMMARY OF QUARTER 1 RIPA AUTHORISATIONS 
 

CS0001 Summary information 

Service area:  Community Safety 

URN granted: 20 May 2011 

Application on correct form? Yes 

Date of gatekeeper clearance: This matter went direct to the authorising officer 

Date of authorisation: 4 July 2011 

Expiry date and time: 3 October 2011 

Scheduled review date(s): 1 August 2011, 5 September 2011 

Dates of reviews: 1 August 2011, 5 September 2011 

Cancellation: 30 September 2011 

Total time open: 89 Days 

Type of covert investigation: Directed surveillance 

Subject matter of investigation: Touting in the Brick Lane area 

Necessity: 

Touting continues in the Brick Lane, with potential 
offences contrary to section 136(1) of the Licensing 
Act 2003, section 237 of the Local Government Act 
1972, regulations 9 and 11 of the Consumer Protection 
From Unfair Trading Regulations 2008.  The 
associated anti-social behaviour affects residents and 
others in the Brick Lane area.  The trading 
malpractices affect consumers and businesses that do 
not use touts. 

Proportionality: 

Other less intrusive investigative means were tried, 
including: prosecution of touts; a letter sent to 
restaurants warning them of the criminal 
consequences of touting; publicity of anti-touting 
enforcement; and overt walk-throughs.  Evidence 
obtained through overt means (ie without recording) 
has been successfully challenged as unreliable. 

Collateral intrusion: 

Visual images would be recorded of passers-by and 
restaurant customers.  A tape would be prepared of 
highlights and any remaining material kept under seal 
to be made available in criminal proceedings in 
accordance with the Criminal Procedure Rules. 

Outcome: 
Breaches were identified in relation to four businesses.  
Some licence reviews were triggered and further 
enforcement action is being considered. 

Page 141



 10 

APPENDIX 2 - SUMMARY OF QUARTER 2 RIPA AUTHORISATIONS 
 

CS0002 Summary information 

Service area:  Community Safety 

URN granted: 27 July 2011 

Application on correct form? Yes 

Date of gatekeeper clearance: This matter went direct to the authorising officer 

Date of authorisation: 29 July 2011 

Expiry date and time: 28 October 2011 

Scheduled review date(s): 26 August 2011 

Dates of reviews: 26 August 2011 

Cancellation: 
13 September 2011 (However, the authorising officer 
instructed orally that the surveillance should cease on 
12 September 2011 at 1700) 

Total time open: 46 Days 

Type of covert investigation: Directed surveillance 

Subject matter of investigation: 
Homophobic hate crime and criminal damage in a 
housing property 

Necessity: 

Less intrusive investigation failed to identify the 
perpetrator.  Homophobic graffiti causing harassment, 
alarm and distress to residents and visitors at the 
property.  One resident felt targeted and notified a 
desire to move. 

Proportionality: 

There were potential offences under: section 1 of the 
Criminal Damage Act 1971 (graffiti); and section 4 of 
the Public Order Act 1986 (causing harassment, alarm 
or distress).  Other less intrusive investigative means 
were tried, including: a letter to the block requesting 
information; a request for extra police patrols; a block 
“door knock” requesting information.  Residents 
reported feeling intimidated, vulnerable and fearful.  
There was a threat to community cohesion as some 
residents felt they might be blamed.  There were 
concerns about escalation of the situation. 

Collateral intrusion: 

The cameras were sited in communal areas and there 
was thus a risk of collateral intrusion.  The cameras 
were placed so as not to view inside any private 
dwelling.  The investigating officer undertook to delete 
any recording unrelated to the offences. 

Page 142



 11 

Outcome: 
The perpetrator was identified and information 
provided to the police. 

 

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Committee: 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
 

Date: 

 
7th February 2012 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. 

 
Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of: 
 
Service Head, Democratic Services 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services

Title: 
Referral Back to the Mayor of Mayor’s 
Decision Called-In: Contract for 2012 Olympic 
Festival Live Site (Mayor's Decision 20 October 
2011, Log No. 009) 
 
Wards: Bow East and Bow West 

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The attached report arising from the call-in of the Mayor’s executive decision on the 

Contract for 2012 Olympic Festival Live Site (Mayor's Decision 20 October 2011, Log 
No. 009) endorsed the call-in and referred the decision back for further 
consideration.  

 
1.2 The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested that the referral be 

reported back to the Committee together with the Chair’s letter to the Mayor. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Overview and Scrutiny note the referral made as set out in appendix 1 of the 

report  
 
2.2 That Overview and Scrutiny note the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 

letter to the Mayor attached as appendix 2 to this report 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 
 and address where open to inspection 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 22nd November 2011 Antonella Burgio 
 0207 364 4881 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 145



 

2 

Page 146



 

3 

APPENDIX 1 
Committee: 

 
 
 

Date: 

 
23rd November 2011 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 

Report of: 
Service Head, Democratic Services 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services 

Title: 
Mayor Decision: 
Contract for 2012 Olympic 
Festival Live Site (Mayor's 
Decision 20 October 2011, Log 
No. 009) 
 
Ward:  

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Contract for 2012 Olympic Festival Live Site (Mayor's Decision 20 October 2011, Log 

No. 009) was published 31 October 2001 and was “Called In” for further 
consideration in accordance with the provisions of Part 4 of the Council’s 
Constitution by Councillors Joshua Peck, Anwar Khan, Carli Harper-Penman, Carlo 
Gibbs and Bill Turner. 

 
2. DECISION OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorsed the call-in and referred the decision 

back to the Mayor for further consideration.   
 
2.2 In view of the urgency of the matter, the Mayor gave further consideration to the 

issue on 23rd November.  Having considered the points raised by the Committee, the 
Mayor decided to confirm his original decision as published on 31st October. 

 
2.3 Notwithstanding that the referral back had to be considered as a matter of urgency 

by the Mayor, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee nevertheless wished to submit 
a report to the Cabinet meeting, setting out a number of issues of concern arising 
from the decision and the call-in discussion.  These issues are set out in this report 
and the attached letter from the Chair of the Committee to the Mayor. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
3.1 That the Cabinet note and comment on the matters set out in the report 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 
 and address where open to inspection 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 22nd November 2011 Antonella Burgio 
 0207 364 4881

Page 147



 

 

 

4 

 
4. THE MAYORS DECISION 
 
4.1 The Mayor agreed on 20th October 2011:- 

A To consider the proposed terms of the contract for the 2012 Olympic 
Festival Live Site in Victoria Park and: 

 
B Authorised the Corporate Director of Communities, Localities and 

Culture to approve the final version of the contract in consultation with 
the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 

 
C Authorised the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) to execute 

the Festival Live Sites contract on behalf of London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets as soon as it can be agreed by all parties in the terms set out in 
this report. 

 
 
5. THE ‘CALL IN’ REQUISITION 
 
5.1 The Call-in requisition signed by the five Councillors listed gave the following 

reasons for the Call-in: 
 
“The motion on Victoria Park events passed by Full Council on 8 December 
2010 resolved to ask officers to: bring forward a separate policy that addresses 
the particular needs of the 2012 Live Site during Olympic year, recognising that 
this is a one-off occasion but also recognising the needs of local residents. 
This policy fails to consider impacts on residents living around Victoria Park.  

 
Officers did not consult with residents or local ward councillors to inform their 
negotiations, despite knowing that residents had had serious concerns about 
commercial events in Victoria Park.  

 
The taking of this decision behind closed doors denied residents and 
councillors that represent them the opportunity to make representations in 
advance.  

 
The hours of operation are significantly longer and later (midnight and 
00.30am) than those currently in operation for commercial events that have 
caused residents serious disturbance.  

 
850,000 – 1.2million visitors to the park over the course of three weeks is likely 
to leave the park in a very poor state and make large parts of it unusable for 
the months that follow. This receives no consideration within the report.  

 
The profit share should come to the Council to be spent either on the park or 
on local amenities.  

 
The Council’s statement that it has reserved its normal programme of commercial 
events in the park – and adverts for these events – make clear that this use of the 
park would be additional to the normal programme of commercial events that have 

Page 148



 

 

 

5 

caused residents problems. There is no consideration of the cumulative impact of 
this within the report, nor of limiting events either within the Live Site or the 
commercial programme to limit the impact on residents.” 

 
 

6. ALTERNATIVE ACTION PROPOSED 
 
6.1 The Call-in Councillors proposed the following alternative course of action: 
 

Not to sign the contract until local residents, the Friends of Victoria Park Group 
and ward councillors have been consulted to ensure that their concerns can be 
reflected in the agreement; 

 
To take any decision at Cabinet, where residents and councillors can make 
representations  
 
To limit the hours of operation to a 10 pm close on week nights and 11pm on 
weekend nights  
 
Reduce the noise levels permitted at events 
 
To make a commitment not to run commercial events in the same year as the 
park is used as a live site. 

 
 
 
7. CONSIDERATION OF THE “CALL IN” 
 
 
7.1 The chair noted the constitutional arrangements that allowed the Mayor to 

make executive decisions. 
 
7.2 Councillor Joshua Peck gave a presentation to the Committee outlining the 

reasons for the call in and the concerns raised.  The Chair permitted 
representations to be made by community representatives.  Councillor Peck 
then responded to questions from the Committee.  The concerns highlighted 
together with Councillor Peck’s answers were summarised in the following 
categories:  

 

• Decision making: 

• the decision was published on 31 October 2011; however the consultation was 
due to start on 23 November therefore consultation would take place after the 
decision had been made. 

• the decision was made in private which offered residents, Ward Councillors 
and community groups no opportunity to hear of the decision or raise 
concerns. 

• the Mayor was not in attendance at the Overview and Scrutiny meeting which 
had been convened to consider the call-in to answer the issues raised. 

• Councillor Peck queried the projected income for the Council against the 
expected contribution. 

Page 149



 

 

 

6 

• Councillor Peck queried the liability accepted by the Council set at £20 million. 

• the intended recipients and sum of the charitable contribution to be made by 
the event organiser had not been specified. 

• Councillor Peck challenged the Mayor's previous undertaking that Olympic 
events would not be additional to the regular events in Victoria Park as there 
was evidence that Ticketmaster website had already advertised events. 

 

• Capacity issues: 

• Victoria Park infrastructure would not cope with the dispersal of the projected 
number.  Bethnal Green tube station was not been designated as a TFL 
dispersal route but has nevertheless been used. 

• there was concern over the projected 850,000 to 1 million visitors to the park 
as these raised noise nuisance and overcrowding issues. 

• there were issues of antisocial behaviour when the crowds were to be 
dispersed. 

 

• Environmental issues: 

• Councillor Peck argued that the suggested programme of eight commercial 
events in addition to the established programme of events would have a very 
damaging impact on Victoria Park.   

• there was no evidence of consultation on impacts of the events with the Police, 
Transport for London or the Council’s environmental or waste services.  There 
was concern that the transport and security infrastructure would not be able to 
cope 

• the clean up that would be necessary following these events would in itself 
also caused disruption to the local community. 

• the after-effects of the events persisted long after the events were over e.g. the 
poor condition of the grass, time needed for grass to re-grow, time needed for 
cleansing and restoration of the site to its normal condition. 

• there was concern over the projected 850,000 to 1 million visitors to the park 
as these raised noise nuisance and overcrowding issues 

• impacts of the events extend far beyond the location of Victoria Park to the 
surrounding neighbourhoods. 

 

• Residents’ inconvenience 

• the proposed to finish time for the events was later than that of other London 
parks which had set a finish time of 10 p.m. 

• when holding events (in general) large parts of the park were taken out of use, 
depriving residents and other parts of the community of the Park facility, this 
event would exacerbate this.  The loss of amenity for those living in social 
housing in the Bow area had been underestimated as large events deprived 
many children and residents of use of the park.  (In contrast, the purpose for 
which the park was given, namely “the benefit of the area for celebration and 
temperance" was noted). 

• the community had been led to believe that the regular programme of 
community events would not take place in 2012 because of the cultural 
Olympic event programme. 

• post event cleanup activities disturbed the community as they took place early 
in the morning (6 a.m.) 

Page 150



 

 

 

7 

 
It was noted that in principal, there was no opposition to the Olympic Festival Live 
Site proposal as it would bring people together and offered opportunities to generate 
revenue.  The Ward Members’ and the community’s support for the events however 
was lost when the frequency of events was such that they adversely affected 
residents’ lives. 
 
 
7.3 Heather Bonfield, Interim Head of Culture and Jill Bell, Head of legal Services 

– Environment responded to the concerns raised informing the Committee that: 
 

• the contract had been a joint negotiation covering Hyde Park, and Trafalgar 
Square also. The tender had been complex and was unusual in that it was not 
funded by the Olympic authority. 

 

• Planning and licensing consultation was due to start on 23 November and 
offered an opportunity for community input.  

 

• when the tender was put, it was apparent that it would require commercial 
events to fund these and most of the money in this respect was to be raised by 
commercial events in Hyde Park. 

 

• the Olympic live site events were free to enable wider access to Olympic 
events. No ticket price was payable for these, only a booking fee.  A proportion 
of the free tickets were reserved for the local community.  The Organisers 
would raise their income from other commercial events not those in Victoria 
Park. 

 

• there would be no late night dispersal as the events were for the purpose of 
watching Olympic events not for musical entertainment. 

 

• a dispersal strategy had been prepared. 
 

• the maximum capacity 30,000 people.   
 

• only 17 live site events were planned and their purpose was to enable viewing 
Olympic events to those who would otherwise be prevented from attending. 

 
7.4 According to access to information rules, the contractual issues raised by the 

Committee concerning indemnification were discussed in closed session.  The 
Committee questioned Heather Bonfield and Jill Bell on these matters and the 
risks to the Council and community. 

 
8. ALTERNATIVE COURSES OF ACTION PROPOSED 
 
8.1 The Committee considered the views and comments made by Councillor Peck 

in presenting the call-in, the information given by Heather Bonfield Interim 
Head of Culture in response to Councillor Pecks issues and the answers to the 
Committee’s questions given by Heather Bonfield Interim Head of Culture and 
Jill Bell Head of Legal Services - Environment.   

Page 151



 

 

 

8 

 
8.2 The committee's discussion of the call-in brought forward the following views: 
 

• The committee remained unhappy with the lack of transparency and 
accountability of the decision making. 

• The committee felt that they should have been access to information on this 
decision beforehand and noted that, despite Ward Councillors’ efforts, 
information on the proposal and proposed arrangements had not been 
forthcoming, neither through Councillors’ enquiries nor through requests at 
Council.  

• the committee felt that the process taken had not been transparent. 

• the committee wished that the forthcoming consultations be undertaken as 
widely as possible and also reported widely to Ward Councillors and regulatory 
committees as appropriate. 

• the Committee remained concerned about the scale of the indemnification 
accepted. 

• the Committee accepted that the event would be beneficial to the community 
however in their view this did not justify the process that had engaged in 
decision making. 

• the Committee was disappointment that the Mayor had not attended to answer 
its concerns 

• the decision had been incorrectly categorised as not a Key Decision as the 
effects evidently would extend beyond the limits of one Ward and significant 
sums of money were involved. 

 
The Committee felt that the decision on a matter of great importance had been taken 
in an unaccountable and opaque way.  In Member’s view the matter should have 
been considered in an open manner.  The chair wished therefore request to meet with 
the Mayor to address her issues and to propose that in future significant Borough 
issues were addressed appropriately. 
 
Following discussion, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorsed the reasons for 
the call-in and alternative action proposed as submitted by the call-in Members and 
set out above. 
 
The Chair acknowledged that due to urgency it would be necessary for the further 
consideration of the decision to be undertaken by the Mayor rather than at the 
Cabinet meeting.   However given the committee's serious concerns they would still 
wish to report to the Cabinet on the matter and setting out those concerns. 
 
The Committee endorsed the Chair’s comments In particular, in relation to the 
process for the decision, the Committee felt that the Mayor’s decision not to treat this 
matter as a Key Decision, thereby avoiding the requirement for prior publicity and/or 
consultation with the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the matter 
was wrong. 
 
The Committee agreed to make a report to the next Cabinet meeting on this matter 
and to discuss with the Mayor guidelines for dealing with such matters in future. 
 

Page 152



 

 

 

9 

The Committee further expressed disappointment that neither the Mayor nor the 
relevant Cabinet Member was in attendance at the O&S Committee meeting, leaving 
officers to represent the executive and denying the Committee and public the 
opportunity to hear from the Mayor his reasons for the decision and for making it in 
private. 
 

Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
PROFORMA:  

 
MAYORAL DECISION SUBJECT TO CALL-IN AND REFERENCE BACK 

 

 

 
Mayoral Decision Log No:  009 
 
 

 

 
Title:  CONTRACT FOR 2012 OLYMPIC FESTIVAL LIVE SITE 
 
 

 

 
Is this a Key Decision:  No  
 
 

 

 
UNRESTRICTED / RESTRICTED:  Unrestricted 
 
 

 
 
DATE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  22nd November 2011 
 
 
 
DECISION OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 
To refer the above decision back to the Mayor for further consideration. 
 
 
 
REASONS FOR THE REFERENCE BACK 
 
The Call-in requisition in relation to the above decision set out the following 
reasons for the call-in:- 
 
The motion on Victoria Park events passed by Full Council on 8 December 
2010 resolved to ask officers to: bring forward a separate policy that 
addresses the particular needs of the 2012 Live Site during Olympic year, 
recognising that this is a one-off occasion but also recognising the needs of 
local residents.  

Page 155



 
This policy fails to consider impacts on residents living around Victoria Park.  
 
Officers did not consult with residents or local ward councillors to inform their 
negotiations, despite knowing that residents had had serious concerns about 
commercial events in Victoria Park.  
 
The taking of this decision behind closed doors denied residents and 
councillors that represent them the opportunity to make representations in 
advance.  
 
The hours of operation are significantly longer and later (midnight and 
00.30am) than those currently in operation for commercial events that have 
caused residents serious disturbance.  
 
850,000 – 1.2million visitors to the park over the course of three weeks is 
likely to leave the park in a very poor state and make large parts of it unusable 
for the months that follow. This receives no consideration within the report.  
 
The profit share should come to the Council to be spent either on the park or 
on local amenities.  

 
 The Council’s statement that it has reserved its normal programme of 

commercial events in the park – and adverts for these events – make clear 
that this use of the park would be additional to the normal programme of 
commercial events that have caused residents problems.  

 
 There is no consideration of the cumulative impact of this within the report, 

nor of limiting events either within the Live Site or the commercial programme 
to limit the impact on residents. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTION RECOMMENDED BY THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (IF ANY) 
 
The Call-in requisition proposed the following alternative action in relation to 
the Mayor’s decision:- 
 
Not to sign the contract until local residents, the Friends of Victoria Park 
Group and ward councillors have been consulted to ensure that their 
concerns can be reflected in the agreement; 
 
To take any decision at Cabinet, where residents and councillors can make 
representations  
 
To limit the hours of operation to a 10 pm close on week nights and 11pm on 
weekend nights  
 
Reduce the noise levels permitted at events 
 

Page 156



To make a commitment not to run commercial events in the same year as the 
park is used as a live site. 
 
 
ANY OTHER COMMENTS 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the call-in request which 
was presented by Councillor Joshua Peck. 
 
During consideration of the matter, at the invitation of the Chair the Committee 
received contributions from members of the public who were present.  They 
stated that there had been a lack on consultation in relation to the Mayor’s 
decision, and provided information on the impact of commercial events in the 
park on local residents.   
 
They were concerned that the Live Site proposals could have a very 
significant impact and that the transport infrastructure and policing/security 
agencies would not be able to cope.   
 
Following discussion, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorsed the 
reasons for the call-in and alternative action proposed as submitted by the 
call-in Members and set out above. 
 
The Committee also expressed great concern about the extent of the 
indemnity given in the contract to Live Nation and sought urgent advice on the 
responsibilities of Members in this regard.   
 
In addition they sought clarification of the programme of commercial events 
that was proposed in 2012 separately from the Live Site. 
     
In relation to the process for the decision, the Committee felt that the Mayor’s 
decision not to treat this matter as a Key Decision, thereby avoiding the 
requirement for prior publicity and/or consultation with the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the matter was wrong. 
 
The Committee agreed to make a report to the next Cabinet meeting on this 
matter and to discuss with the Mayor guidelines for dealing with such matters 
in future. 
 
The Committee further expressed disappointment that neither the Mayor nor 
the relevant Cabinet Member was in attendance at the O&S Committee 
meeting, leaving officers to represent the executive and denying the 
Committee and public the opportunity to hear from the Mayor his reasons for 
the decision and for making it in private. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



DECISION OF THE MAYOR 
 
I have reconsidered my decision Log No. 009 in the light of the information 
provided by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 22nd 
November 2011 as set out above. 
 
Having taken into account all of the relevant information I have decided to:- 
 
(a) Confirm my decision of 20th October 2011 on the matter*; or 
 
(b) Amend my decision of 20th October 2011 on the matter as follows*:- 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………  
 
(* Delete as applicable) 
 
 

 
Signed ……………………………..….   Date …………...  
 
Mayor Lutfur Rahman 
 

Page 158



APPENDIX 2 

 

To – The Mayor. 

 

 

I decided to not produce my specific conclusions ( See Below) regarding the Scrutiny findings 

on the Mayors’  decision 20 October 2011 (Log No.009)  until I had further outlined my 

concerns on the issue at December Cabinet, and heard more from the Mayor and Officers 

on it.  

I wanted to make sure I was not presuming a Mayoral disregard for the seriousness of the 

issues Scrutiny raised as being those only of opposition; rather than sincere reservations 

about the possible unanticipated impact that the Olympics may have on our borough. That 

the ‘Live Site’ needs to be considered as more than just a ‘Statutory’ business as usual 

Planning item; but as one part of an overall  Borough response  on the Olympics. Tower 

Hamlets needs to take ownership of its part in the Games, and ensure that we do all 

possible to investigate how the Olympics will affect the borough; and that we prepare for it 

as thoroughly as we can. This includes informing our residents as far as possible on issues 

we face, and taking on board their concerns. 

I am also disappointed that I have been unable to gain a meeting with the Mayor to go over 

my concerns, despite trying every day from the 23
rd

 November. 

 

I found the Mayors response on the live site raised by me at Cabinet as insufficient, and 

will consider the matter further as regards the scrutiny function as a whole. 

 

I was disappointed once more last night to find that despite trying as far as politically 

possible to be fair on issues as a scrutiny committee, we continue to meet with a blank wall. 

The lack of proper consideration and discussion of Scrutiny responses at Cabinet affects our 

residents and is a far cry from upholding the Mayors commitment to the spirit of One Tower 

Hamlets. Last night I was also left with the deeply unsettling impression that both the Mayor 

and the Cabinet had not considered the Live site / Olympics implications in any depth 

whatsoever. 

The issue is of major concern, and I conclude that we cannot afford to let it rest, so I am 

therefore going to conduct a Scrutiny Challenge session on the traffic / people management 

issues for Tower Hamlets and the Olympics. 

 

I await your response, 

 

 

 

 

Cllr Ann Jackson 

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159



Scrutiny Chairs’ Conclusions – Extraordinary Scrutiny  Meeting 22
nd

 November 2011 

 

To further clarify Overview and Scrutiny’s position on the above, and to explain why I as 

Chair have been contesting the validity of the decision making process used on this decison - 

  

First point is that the decision was a key one, proven by the constitution –   

A “key decision” is an executive decision which is likely...... 

To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area 

comprising two or more wards in the borough. 

Whether the decision may incur a significant social, economic or environmental risk. 

The likely extent of the impact of the decision both within and outside of the borough. 

Whether the decision is likely to be a matter of political controversy. 

The extent to which the decision is likely to result in substantial public interest. 

 

The above points cover the live site decision, and are FIVE of any of the six reasons for a 

decision being key. 

  

The decision had been on the forward plan for months with other key decisions, and was 

not presented at Cabinet due to time constraints (evidence from Officers) due to the late 

closure of the four way negotiation (I have had no sight of documents to show this) which 

did not allow for the item to make its way through the normal process  - Consultation - 

Cabinet – (possible Call in to O&S – Refer back  with recommendations.) 

  

The decision then declared to now be a business as usual one, and was signed off and only 

published on the web.  

  

Given the above key decision process as per the constitution;  as O&S chair I should have 

been notified and asked to sign off, and briefed as to why the decision was now a rush one. 

As the Mayor and advisors did not do this, we have been left with an O&S meeting that had 

no effect on decision making. 

If the decision had been ‘business as normal’ it would have had had time to come to O&S for 

review and then to Cabinet for the Mayor to review. If the decision was earmarked as Key, a 

method could have been found to inform Residents about the decision and need for speed, 

and their views sought. There was a month to do so. 

  

In taking the decision in this manner, it leaves the motives rightly open to interpretation –  

That the implications for TH / East London / London /UK, TFL and other partner bodies  that 

sit around what would normally a statutory consultation function, had not been assessed 

properly as in regards to it being an Olympic one by the Mayor and his advisors, or 

That the Mayor and his advisors sought to avoid the process,  having had the decision on the 

forward plan (key decision) since April 2011. 

In either case this decision goes against the principles of decision making and the 

presumption of openness. 

  

The repercussions for this sit with the Mayor, as he is the sole decision maker for the 

Borough and is held accountable by the electorate. 

  

Page 160



Residents and Councillors have a right to be consulted on matters that so markedly affect 

the environment, no matter that the decision was one ‘felt’ to be mostly beneficial, and 

one that is mostly imposed on us by outside events. The borough needs to be satisfied 

that all has been done by TH to ensure its reputation and that of London and the UK has 

been protected by as thorough a consideration of these decisions as is reasonably 

possible; especially given the lack of information and confidence on traffic management 

models being used by TFL for the Olympics. If these models fail, TH will suffer the most as 

all roads lead to us as the gateway to the Olympics. Residents livelihoods, council services, 

amenity and safety could all suffer greatly if not enough thought and planning is done. We 

as a council have to ensure we have made the needed representations to involved bodies; 

that due consideration has been given to as many factors as possible to mitigate as much 

as we can, the strain that the Olympics will place on TH and on London.  

  

The committee hopes that extra attention can be given to a full briefing of members in 

Licensing and Planning meetings to ensure they understand the full extent of the issues 

involved in decisions both on the live site, and others that may be affected / affect this. Can 

anything be done to allow residents to participate more than just on a statutory basis, to 

allow for them to have their views and suggestions heard other than as Objections? 

  

Second Issue -  Legal Advice / Constraints 

Members present were outraged to hear that all attendees except members of O&S  and 

call in Councillors were excluded from the restricted discussion around the indemnity on the 

contract. This seemed badly thought out and explained; and in fact – could be unlawful, and 

some members will be following this up as a separate issue. The amount of indemnity and 

restrictions were seen to be excessive and there were concerns around how this had been 

negotiated and agreed on. Members are also concerned as to the cost incurred  for 

Insurance and how the borough will budget for this. 

  

Third Issue – The Mayors increasing lack of public decision making and discussion 

Given the Mayors movement towards less discussion and decision making in Cabinet, his not 

taking part in Council discussion; the fact that he now does not lately take O&S 

recommendations on board on call in reviews, how do residents now know that due care is 

being taken on major decisions that affect their lives?  The Mayor can and does take 

decisions alone, without his executive, as he did so on this occasion; and it is also his 

decision as to if he reports to Cabinet or Council on any of these decisions. Up until now he 

has only done this on Manifesto issues, O&S requests that now agrees to report on sole 

decisions at Cabinet in future, so that residents and Councillors not involved in these 

decisions have a chance to contribute. 

  

The fact that the Mayor did not attend the meeting placed Officers in a very awkward 

position, which was felt to be unfair, and is hoped that this will not continue to be the case.  

  

This stands as additional to the referred back papers from O&S 22/11/11 -  submitted to the 

Mayor on the 23/11/11  re the above Decision.  The Mayor did not revise the decision. I 

request a full response from The Mayor. I have also asked for a meeting with the Mayor to 

discuss these points further, and ask to also bring the issue and any consequent information 

on it to Decembers Cabinet Meeting. 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Committee: 
 
Overview And 
Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
7 February 2012 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda 
Item 
No. 

Report of: 
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officers: 
Sarah Barr, Senior Strategy Policy and  
Performance Officer 
 

Title: 
 
OSC Annual Review Process 
 
Wards: All 

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report asks OSC Members to consider the process for the OSC 
Annual Review which will in turn inform the work programme for 
2012/13 municipal year. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 OSC members are asked to consider the questions in this paper and 

agree a process for producing the 2011/12 OSC Annual Review, in 
particular: 

• Agree proposal to work with Centre for Public Scrutiny to review 
the year and consider ways in which the Committee could 
increase its effectiveness. 

• Agree that all scrutiny members will contribute individual 
responses to questions in paper.  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 163



 2 

3.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Review 
 
3.1 Each year the Overview and Scrutiny Committee produces an annual 

review, looking back on the year’s work, highlighting achievements and 
areas for further consideration. 

 
3.2 The way in which the OSC carries out its functions has changed 

throughout 2011/12, particularly given the reduction in officer resource 
directly supporting the Committee. It is therefore more important than 
ever to look back on the year and reflecting on what has worked well 
and what has worked less well, and what lessons can be learned as we 
develop a work programme for the year ahead.  

 
3.3 To this end, the One Tower Hamlets team propose to invite the Centre 

for Public Scrutiny to work with the Committee to review the year and 
look ahead, developing ways in which the Committee could work more 
effectively, given the reduced officer resources. 

 
3.4 It is also proposed that all Committee members contribute to the 

review, initially by reflecting on the year individually, considering the 
following questions: 

 

• What do you think has gone well this year? 

• What do you think has gone less well this year? 

• What would your priorities for 2012/13 be, both in terms of 
issues to be scrutinised and the way in which the committee 
works? 

• What are the biggest challenges for scrutiny and the 
Committee in 2012/13? 

 
3.5 Response to these questions will form the basis of the review, inform 

any workshop sessions with Centre for Public Scrutiny and to develop 
the work programme. 

 
3.6  The proposed timetable for the above is as follows: 
 

Early – mid March OSC members submit individual 
responses for review. 

Mid April 
 

Work with CfPS 

8 May  
 

Annual Review Report on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
agenda 

  
 
 
 

Page 164


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5.1 Cabinet Decision Called-in: Corporate and Commercial Events in Parks (CAB 061/112)
	5.1a Corporates Cabinet Report Jan 12 v3 final HB2212110917am

	6.1 Enterprise Strategy
	6.1b Enterprise Strategy 230112 NSNL1901121401pm
	6.1c Enterprise Strategy ActionPlan050112 NSNL1901121401pm
	6.1d Enterprise Strategy Appx 3 Consultation Report 15 Aug 2011 NL1901121424pm
	6.1e Enterprise Strategy EQIA revised 040112 NSNL1901121401pm

	6.2 Covert investigation under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
	6.2a RIPA Report to Standards 120112 v3

	8.1 Mayoral Decisions
	8.1b Mayoral Decision call in referred back proforma Live Site
	8.1c Chairs Letter to Mayor scrutiny 22 11 11

	9 OSC Annual Review Process

